COTTONWOOD UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
20512 West First Street
Cottonwood, California 96022

AGENDA FOR Tuesday, February 15, 2021, 6:30 P.M.

Regular Board Meeting, West Cottonwood Library

The Cottonwood Union School District Board desires that its meetings be conducted i an open fashion and encourages public participation
Persons attending a meeting who wish to speak concerning an agenda item should notify the Board Chairperson of thetr desire to speak prior to
the start of the meeting and should come forward during the time set astde for public comment and communication It may be necessary, at
times, for the Chairperson to limit discussions due to time considerations

Arrangements to place an item on the agenda and make a presentation concerning said 1tem must be established with the Supermtendent, or any
Board Member, at least ten calendar days i advance of the meeting The request to address the Board shall be submutted 1n writing and the
proposed stated 1n, or with, the request

1.0 Call Regular Meeting to Order
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance
3.0 Approval of Agenda

4.0 Recognition (Students, Staff, Curriculum) /Curriculum review
None at this time.

5.0 Public Forum/Hearing of Persons Wishing to Address the Board

In order to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient manner, the Board requires that public presentations to the Board comply with the
following procedures

At a time so designated on the agenda at a regular meeting, members of the public may bring before the Board matters that are not Listed on the
agenda The Board shall take no action or discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as authorized by law (Education
Code 35145 3, Government Code 54954 2) Without taking action, Board members or district staff members may briefly respond to statements
made or questions posed by the pubhic about 1tems not appeanng on the agenda Additionally, on their own initiative or 1n response to questions
posed by the public, a Board or staff member may ask a question for clanfication, make a brief announcement, or make a bricf report on his/her
own activities (Government Code 54954 2)

Furthermore, the Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, ask staff to report back to
the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action directing staff to place a matter of business on a fiture agenda.

Comments shall be limited to 3 minutes per person and 20 mnutes for all comments, unless different time lmuts are set by the Chairman subject
to the approval of the Board

6.0 Consent Agenda

6.1 Review of Consent Agenda
611 Approval of Board Meeting Minutes for
Regular Board Meeting held on January 18, 2022 (pg 4-6)
612 Approval to hire — None at this time
613  Accept Letter of Resignation from Kelly Touvell — Speech-Language Pathologist (pg 7)

6.2 Approval of Consent Agenda
7.0 Discussion/Action Items:
7.1 Consider approval of the Commercial Warrants. (pg 8-25)

7.2 Board Members to complete Statement of Economic Interest Forms. (Due to District Office by
April 1). The form 700 and Reference Pampbhlet available at http://www.fppc.ca.gov/Form700.html




———

7.3 Consider approval of the School Safety Plan - West Cottonwood Junior High.
7.4 Consider approval of the School Safety Plan - North Cottonwood Elementary.

7.5 Consider approval of the School Plan for Student Achievement- West Cottonwood Junior High.
(pg 26-90)

7.6 Consider approval of the School Plan for Student Achievement- North Cottonwood Elementary.
(pg 91-156)

7.7 Consider approval of 2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Actions & Services
Mid-Year Report (pg 157-1 97)

7.8  Consider approval of the School Calendar for 2022/2023 (pg 198)

7.9 Consider approval of the Annual Audit Report for the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year for the
Cottonwood Union School District. (pg. 199-292)

7.10 Consider approval: Board Policies/ Administrative Regulations-

BP 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal (pg 293-300)

BP 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures (pg 301-310)

AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complamt Procedures (pg 311-330)

E (1) 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures (pg 331-332)

E (2) 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures (pg 333-334)

AR 3515.6 - Criminal Background Checks for Contractors (pg 335-338)
AR 4217.3 - Layoff/ Rehire (pg 339-346)

AR 5125 - Student Records (pg 347-369)

8.0 Informational Items-

81 CTA Report
82 Superntendent’s Report
83 Principal’s Report

9.0 Information/Communication Items,
9.1 Enrollment Report (pg 370)
92 Shasta County Pooled Investment Report for December 31, 2020 (pg 371-372)
93 Letter from De’An Chambless, SCOE, regarding the First Interim Report for 2021/22 (pg 373)
94 Consolidated Application (pg 374-383)

10.0 Governing Board Discussion and Suggested Agenda Items

11.0 Future Meetings:

111 Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, March 15,2022, 6:30 p.m. mn the West
Cottonwood School Library, 20512 W Fuirst Street, Cottonwood, CA 96022

12.0  Closed Session: Adjournment to Closed Session during this meeting to consider and/or take action
upon the following items:

121 Pursuant to Government Code section 54957
Public Employee / Discipline / Dismissal / Release




13.0 Adjournment

AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE

In compliance with the Amenicans with Disabilities Act, those requiring special assistance to access the Board of Trustees meeting room, to
access written documents being discussed at the Board meeting, or to otherwise participate at Board meetings, please contact the District
Office at (530) 347-3165 Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to the Board meeting and to provide any required accommodation, auxiliary aids or services

DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY
Documents provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on this agenda, including documents distributed to the

board less than 72 hours 1n advance of a board meeting are available for public mspection at the District office located at 20512 West First
Street, Cottonwood, CA 96022 during normal business hours

NOTE Copies of the agenda, approved board minutes and board packets may be reviewed/downloaded on the Cottonwood Unton
School District’s website at www cwusd com Each month’s board packet will be available on the website after 3 00 pm on the
Friday prior to the Regular Board Meeting

To review and/or print a board packet

Go to www cwusd com

Click on Board of Trustees n the right hand column
Click on Board Meeting Documents 1n the left hand column, and
Click on Meeting Agendas, Minutes, or Board Meeting Packets to review or download as you would like




COTTONWOOD UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

20512 West First Street Cottonwood, California 96022

Minutes for Tuesday, Tuesday. January 18, 2022 6:30 P.M.
Regular Board Meeting, West Cottonwood School Library

Members Present Mr lles, Mrs Cordova, Mrs Sulzer, and Mr O’Brien
Members Absent Mrs McDougall
Others Present Doug Geren, Superintendent

Principals Cecile LaMar, Terr1 Wright

Vice Principal Kara McNeely

Laura Merrick, CBO

Staff and Community 1 community member was present

1.0 Call Regular Meeting to Order at 6:30 p.m. by Mr.Iles
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr.Iles

3.0 Approval of Agenda
ACTION: Remove item 7 6 per request of Superintendent Mr Obrien moved, seconded by Mrs
Cordova, to approve the agenda as presented after removal of item 7 6
VOTE: Unanimous tn favor

4.0 Recognition (Students, Staff, Curriculum)/Curriculum Review —
None at this time

5.0 Public Forum/Hearing of Persons Wishing to Address the Board
None at this time

6.0 Consent Agenda

61 Review of Consent Agenda
611 Approval of Board Meeting Minutes for
Regular Board Meeting held on December 14, 2021
612 Approval to Hire No one at this time
613 Accept Letter of Resignation from Accept Letters of Resignation from Hannah Valenza-
Instructional Assistant, Tina Gibson — Instructional Assistant Cortney Elam — Preschool
Teacher

62 Approval of Consent Agenda
ACTION: Mrs Cordova moved, seconded by Mrs Sulzer, to approve the Consent Agenda
VOTE: Unanimous 1n favor

7.0 Discussion/Action Items:

7.1 Consider Approval: Commercial Warrants
ACTION: Mrs Cordova moved, seconded by Mrs Sulzer, to approve Commercial Warrants
VOTE: Unanimous 1n favor

7.2 Consider Approval: Consider approval of New Vice Principal Position at North
ACTION: Mr Obrien moved, seconded by Mrs Cordova, to approve New Vice Principal
Position at North
VOTE: Unanimous 1n favor




8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

7.3

7.4

Consider approval of the 2021 SARC Report for West Cottonwood Junior High.
ACTION: Mrs Cordova moved, seconded by Mr O’Brien, to approve 2021 SARC Report for
West Cottonwood Junior High
YOTE: Unanimous 1n favor

Consider approval of the 2021 SARC Report for North Cottonwood Elementary School.
ACTION: Mrs Cordova moved, seconded by Mr O’Brien, to approve 2021 SARC Report for
North Cottonwood Elementary School
VOTE: Unanimous 1n favor

7.5 Consider Approval of Revised Resolution #2021-8 establishing day, time, and place for regular

Board Meetings.

ACTION: Mrs. Cordova moved, seconded by Mr. O’Brien Approve Revised
Resolution #2021-8 establishing day, time, and place for regular Board Meectings
VOTE: - Unanimous in Favor

7.5 Consider Approval: Consider Approval: Educator Effectiveness Block Grant_

ACTION: Mrs Cordova moved, seconded by Mrs Sulzer to approve the Educator Effectiveness
Grant
VOTE: - Unanimous in Favor

7.6 Consider approval: Board Policies/ Administrative Regulations-

ACTION: Tabled until next meeting at request of superintendent
VOTE: - none taken

Informational Items:

81
82

83

CTA Report - None

Superintendent’s Report — Mr Geren reported an update on the solar project and the teams that are
collaboratively working together, update on restrooms at West and the financial obligation we currently
have Mr Geren reports the district will be m 8 days of independent study due to the current covid
numbers Mention of Ninja Gym being set up on campus 1n the spring

Principal’s Reports —

Mrs Wright — we made 1t through today

Mrs LaMar - none

Information/Communication Items.

91
9.2
93
9.4
95

Enrollment Report

Shasta County Pooled Investment Report for October & November 2021
Annual Certification Regarding Workers’ Compensation from STISIG
CAASPP Comparisons

Mid-Year Reports & LCAP Supplement to the Annual Update

Governing Board Discussion and Suggested Agenda Items.

None at this time

Future Meetings:

111

Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, February 15, 2022, 6:30 p.m. in the West
Cottonwood School Library, 20512 W First Street, Cottonwood, CA 96022




12.0 Closed Session: Adjournment to Closed Session at 6:56pm to consider and/or take action
upon the following items:

12.1 Pursuant to Government Code section 54957
Public Employee / Discipline / Dismissal / Release

Public Noti f Action Taken in Closed Sessi
No Action Taken

13.0 Adjournment- the meeting adjourned at 7 30p m

Matt Iles, President Heather Sulzer, Clerk

Kim Cordova, Member Deidre McDougall, Member

James O’Brien, Member




Kelly Touvell

19050 Bruce Dr
Cottonwood, CA 96022
kellytouvell@yohoo com

01/14/2022

Cottonwood Union School District
20512 1st St
Cottonwood, CA 96022

To Whom It May Concern,

Please accept this letter as formal notification that | will not be returning
to Cottonwood Union School district for the 2022/2023 school year as a
Speech and Language Pathologist with Cottonwood Union School District.
I will continue to fulfill my duties as a Speech-Language Pathologist for the
current school year: 2021/2022. My last day will be June 10th, 2022.

Thank you for the opportunity to work In this position for the past year |
have enjoyed and appreciated the opportunities and growth I've had in
supporting students, holding meetings, and aiding with improvement of
curriculum for those students recelving special education support. 've
had the opportunity to develop my skills iIn managing time,
communicating with staff and parents, and with implementing
curriculum-related therapy, all of which I will take with me throughout my

career.

Please let me know If there is anything | can do to aid with this transition., |
would be happy to assist with onboarding a new Speech-Language
Pathologist at any time | hope to stay in touch 1n the future.

Sincerely,

W

Kelly Touvell M.S. CFY-SLP
Speech-Language Pathologist
Cottonwood Union School District




. aeeNA

ReqPay05a Payment Register

Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 . Bank Account COUNTY - County

Number of Payments 125
Number of Checks 48 $248,286 18
Number of ACH Advice 0
Number of vCard Advice 0
Total Check/Advice Amount $248,286 18
Total Unpaid Sales Tax $00
Total Expense Amount $248,286 18 APPROVAL DATE
CHECK/ADVICE AMOUNT DISTRIBUTION COUNTS
$0-  $99 7
$100 - $499 8
$500-  $999 8
$1,000- $4,999 14
$5,000 -  $9,999 3
$10,000 - $14,999 4
$15,000 - $99,999 4

$100,000 - $199,999
$200,000 - $499,999
$500,000 - $999,999
$1,000,000 - -

P ITEMS OF INTEREST *****
* Number of payments to a different vendor

o,
I Number of Prepaid payments ¥
@ Number of Liability payments
& Number of Employee Also Vendors
? denotes check name different than payment name
F denotes Final Payment
Report Totals - Payment Count 125 Check Count 48 ACH Count 0 vCard Count 0 Total Check/Advice Amount $248,286 18
$525,580 14
Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch ld(s) = 025280, ESCAPE Xé\ INES
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 18 of 18
048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




ReqPay05a

Payment Register

Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor ACSA
FOUNDATION FOR EDUCATIONAL ADM (000026/5)
1575 BAYSHORE HIGHWAY
BURLINGAME, CA 94010
2021/22 03/12/21 TIER 2 LKALNINS INV20898 02/09/22 Audit 3,750 00 3,750 00
2022 (005629) 01-050-7425-0200-5210-5760-1110- 100-
Total Invoice Amount 3,750 00 Check
AP Vendor AMAZON/ SYNCB (000560/2)
P O BOX 530958
ATLANTA, GA 30353-0958
F 2021/22 01/05/22 R4822-00227 INSTRUCTIONAL 595346759575 02/02/22 Audrt 17155 171 55
MATERIAL
2022 (001189) 01-050-1100-2420-4310-1110-1000-100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00227 Register #
F 2021/22 01/05/22 R4822-00224 SP ED CASE 647967459999 02/02/22 Audit 32370 32370
MANAGEMENT
FOLDERS
2022 (002371) 01-020-6500-0200-4310-5760-1110-100-
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00224 Register #
2021/22 01/07/22 R4822-00223 INSTRUCTIONAL 63473898973 02/02/22 Audit 7347 7347
MATERIAL
2022 (004282) 01-060-0000-1573-4310-0001-1000-LC1-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00223 Register #
Total Invoice Amount 568 72 Check
Direct Vendor ANDERSON UNION HIGH SCHOOL DST (000085/1)
1469 FERRY ST
ANDERSON, CA 96007
2021/22 01/25/22 TECH SERVICES INV22-00108 02/02/22 Audit 13,5615 20 13,515 20
OCT21- DEC21
2022 (004212) 01-020-0000-2420-5801-1110-1000-LC1- 6,757 60
2022 (004213) 01-050-0000-2420-5801-1110-1000-LC1- 6,757 60
2021/22 01/25/22 AG TEACHER INV22-00109 02/02/22 Audit 5,192 64 5,192 64
OCT21-DEC21
2022 (004215) 01-020-0100-2209-5801-1110-1000-LC2-
2021/22 01/26/22 TECH ADMIN INV22-00110 02/02/22 Audit 7,450 00 7,450 00
SERVICES
OCT21-DEC21
Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? =Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, ESCAPE g

Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? =Y)

Page 1 0of 18

048 - Cottonwood Union School District

Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM



S Aeena

ReqPay05a Payment Register

Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount

Direct Vendor ANDERSON UNION HIGH SCHOOL DST (000085/1) (continued) (continued)
2021/22 01/26/22 TECH ADMIN INV22-00110 (continued) 02/02/22 Audit (continued)

SERVICES
OCT21-DEC21
2022 (004212) 01-020-0000-2420-5801-1110-1000-LC1- 3,725 00
2022 (004213) 01-050-0000-2420-5801-1110-1000- LC1- 3,725 00
Total Invoice Amount 26,157 84 Check
Direct Vendor ANDERSON-COTTONWOOD DISP SRVCE (000005/1)
PO BOX 541065
LOS ANGELES, CA 90054-1065
2021/22 01/06/22 TRASH SERVICE 2227961-0531-0 02/07/22 Audit 1,164 47 1,164 47
2022 (002086) 01-001-0000-8240-5510- 0000-8200-000-
2021/22 01/06/22 TRASH SERVICE 2233780-0531-6 02/03/22 Audit 91575 91575
2022 (002086) 01-001-0000-8240-5510-0000-8200- 000-
2021/22 02/01/22 TRASH SERV 2246064-0531-0 02/08/22 Audit 91575 91575
2022 (002086) 01-001-0000-8240-5510-0000-8200- 000-
2021/22 02/03/22 TRASH SERV 2245835-0531-4 02/08/22 Audit 1,164 47 1,164 47
2022 (002086) 01-001-0000-8240-5510-0000-8200-000-
Total Invoice Amount 4,160 44 Check
Direct Vendor AT&T (000043/3)
P O BOX 9011
CAROL STREAM, IL 60197-5025
2021/22 01/19/22 PHONE SERVICES 000017646854 02/02/22 Audit 7597 7597
12/19/2021-01/18/20
22
2022 (001384) 01-001-0000-7200-5910-0000-7200- 000-
2021/22 02/01/22 TELEPHONE 000017704238 02/04/22 Audit 2392 2392
2022 (001384) 01-001-0000-7200-5910-0000-7200-000-
Total Invoice Amount 9989 Check
AP Vendor BEARCOM (000980/1)
2229 ENTERPRISE STREET
ESCONDIDO, CA 92029
F 2021/22 01/19/22 R4822-00190 HAND HELDS 5319524 02/02/22 Audit 9,490 14 9,490 14
2022 (004981) 01-001-3210-0000-4410-0000-8200-000-
2022 (006371) 01-001-3212-0000-4410-0000-8200-000- 9,490 14

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? =Y, Approval Batch ld(s) = 025280, I'ESCA PE ¢ ] 8 .
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 2 of 18
048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




. AeENDA

ReqPay05a Payment Register
Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
AP Vendor BEARCOM (000980/1) (continued)
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00190 Register #
Total Invoice Amount 9,490 14 Check
Direct Vendor BLUE STAR GAS (000796/1)
6775 EASTSIDE ROAD
ANDERSON, CA 96007
2021/22 01/06/22 PROPANE IN-0030513 02/09/22 Audit 3,537 71 3,537 71
2022 (001307) 01-001-0000-8260-5510-0000-8200- 000-
Total Invoice Amount 3,53771 Check
Direct Vendor CALIFORNIA SAFETY CO (000021/1)
PO BOX 990956
REDDING, CA 96099-0956
2021/22 02/04/22 ALARM SERVICE 494371 02/08/22 Audit 180 00 180 00
-FEB
2022 (004217) 01-050-0000-8110-5801-0000-8110-100- ~
2021/22 02/04/22 ALARM SERV FEB 494372 02/08/22 Audit 262 50 262 50
2022 (004214) 01-020-0000-8110-5801-0000-8110-100-
2021/22 02/04/22 ALARM SERV FEB 495243 02/08/22 Audit 142 50 142 50
2022 (003204) 01-001-0000-0000-5801-0000- 3600- 100-
Total Invoice Amount 58500 Check
Direct Vendor CASCADE UNION ELEM SCHOOL DIST (000094/1)
1645 WEST MILL ST
ANDERSON, CA 96007
2021/22 01/01/22 JAN 2022 TRANSP INV22-00255 02/09/22 Audit 1,902 23 1,902 23
BILLING
2022 (003204) 01-001-0000-0000-5801-0000-3600-100-
2021/22 01/10/22 BTW TRAINING INV22-00235 02/02/22 Audit 32500 32500
2022 (003200) 01-001-0000-0000-5210-0000-3600-000-
Total Invoice Amount 2,227 23 Check
AP Vendor CDW-G (000159/1)
75 REMITTANCE DR
STE 1515
CHICAGO, IL 60675-1515
F 2021/22 01/11/22 R4822-00212 THINK PADS Q684875 02/02/22 Audit 11,993 33 11,993 33

2022 (006201) 01-001-3210-2420-4410-1110-1000-000-

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280,
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y)

| ESCAPE | Ghibas |
Page 3 of 18

048 - Cottonwood Union School District

Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




ReqPay05a Payment Register

Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense

Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
AP Vendor CDW-G (000159/1) (continued)
F 2021/22 01/11/22 R4822-00212 THINK PADS Q684875 (continued) 02/02/22 Audit (continued)

2022 (006372) 01-001-3212-2420-4410-1110-1000- 000- 11,993 33
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00212 Register #
Total Invoice Amount 11,993 33 Check

Direct Vendor CHAVAN & ASSOCIATES, LLP (000776/2)

15105 CONCORD CIRCLE, STE 130
MORGAN HILL, CA 95037
2021/22 02/07/22 LEA AUDIT CA-17366 02/08/22 Audit 2,000 00 2,000 00
SERVICES - SDC
2022 (003529) 01-001-0000-7100-5812-0000-7190- 000-

Total Invoice Amount 2,00000 Check

Direct Vendor COMPLIANCE ASSOCIATES INC (000176/1)
20279 ENGINEERS LANE
REDDING, CA 96002
2021/22 01/117/22 CONSORTIUM 51141 02/02/22 Audit 150 00 150 00
ENROLLMENT FEE
2022 (003204) 01-001-0000-0000-5801-0000- 3600- 100-

Total Invoice Amount 15000 Check

Direct Vendor COTTONWOOD WATER DISTRICT (000002/1)
PO BOX 2130
COTTONWOOD, CA 96022
2021/22 01/20/22 WATER 012022 02/02/22 Audit 31029 31029
12/16/2021-01/20/20
22
2022 (001309) 01-001-0000-8230-5510-0000- 8200- 000-

Total Invoice Amount 31029 Check

Direct Vendor COUNTY OF SHASTA
DEPT OF PUBLIC WORKS (000051/1)
CSA DIV
1855 PLACER ST
REDDING, CA 96001
2021/22 02/01/22 SEWER FEES DEC 20012022 02/04/22 Audit 3,339 60 3,339 60
/JAN
2022 (001308) 01-001-0000-8220-5510-0000- 8200- 000-

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch ld(s) = 025280, [ ESCAPE
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y)

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM

Page of 18




ReqPay05a Payment Register

Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022

Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal  Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Total Invoice Amount 3,339 60 Check
Direct Vendor CRESSWELL PHYSICAL THERAPY (000271/1)
PO BOX 492006
REDDING, CA 96049
2021/22 01/13/22 OT SERVICES 169 02/02/22 Audit 9,431 25 9,431 25
01/2022
2022 (002527) 01-001-6500- 0204-5101-5760-1190- 100- ) ) )
2021/22 01/20/22 OT SERVICES 170 02/02/22 Audit 3,800 00 3,800 00
01/2022
- 2022 (002527) 01-001-6500-0204-5101-5760-1190-100- ) o 3 -
2021/22 02/03/22 OT SERVICES 171 02/07/22 Audit 1,287 50 1,287 50
(TR (DCOHT) O1-001-0800-0204-S00T-STe0- 1e00-300- T
Total Invoice Amount 14,518 75 Check
Direct Vendor CROSS PETROLEUM (000083/1)
PO BOX 492200
REDDING, CA 96049-2200
2021/22 01/15/22 FUEL CL16831 02/02/22 Audit 2,301 45 2,301 45
2022 (003195) 01-001-0000-0000- 4601-0000- 3600- 000- 2,231 42
o 2022 (001889»_) 13-_001-5310- 0000-4510- Q000-3700-000- ;70 0% B e ) o
2021/22 01/31/22 FUEL CL17227 02/02/22 Audit 1,108 42 1,108 42
2022 (003195) 01-001-0000-0000- 4601-0000- 3600- 000- 1,074 66
2022 (001889) 13-001-5310-0000-4510-0000- 3700- 000- 3376 ) ) 3
Total Invoice Amount 3,409 87 Check
Direct Vendor FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA
MASTERCARD (000129/1)
PO BOX 2818
OMAHA, NE 68103-2818
2021/22 02/06/22 ZOOM FEB 2022 INV131786257 02/07/22 Audit 14 99 14 99
2022 (001359) 01-001-0000-2700- 5801- 0000- 2700- 000- o R o -
Total Invoice Amount 1499 Check

Direct Vendor FRANZ FAMILY BAKERIES (000537/1)
P O BOX 742654
LOS ANGELES, CA 90074-2654
2021/22 01/03/22 BAKERY 143028002518 02/03/22 Audit 164 10 164 10
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700- 000-

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, ?L*F_S_CAEQ .
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 5 of 18
048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM

B




Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022

o Acenpa

ReqPay05a Payment Register

Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor FRANZ FAMILY BAKERIES (000537/1) (continued) {continued)
2021/22 01/10/22 BAKERY 143028002589 02/03/22 Audit 103 00 103 00
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000- 3700- 000-
2021/22 01/18/22 BAKERY 143028002674 02/03/22 Audit 198 90 198 90
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 01/24/22 BAKERY 143028002777 02/03/22 Audit 8240 82 40
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
Total Invoice Amount 54840 Check
Direct Vendor GATEWAY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC (000959/1)
PO BOX 494040
REDDING, CA 96049
2021/22 0111722 COVID TESTING 01112022 02/02/22 Audit 525 00 525 00
2022 (006370) 01-001-3212-0000-5801-1110-3140-000-
2021/22 01/20/22 675 00 01202022 02/10/22 Audit 67500 675 00
2022 (006370) 01-001-3212-0000-5801-1110-3140- 000-
Total Invoice Amount 1,200 00 Check
AP Vendor GIBSON HEATING & AC (000711/1)
1163 PRESTIGE WAY
REDDING, CA 96003
F 2021/22 01/12/22 R4822-00008 REPLACE HVAC 24876010 02/02/22 Audit 13,100 00 13,100 00

UNIT IN ROOM #37
2022 (003520) 01-020-8150-8110-5630-0000-8110- LC2-

Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00008 Regster #
2021/22 01/14/22 SERVICE CALL 40031 02/02/22 Audit 200 00 200 00
2022 (001337) 01-020-0000-8200-5630-0000-8200- 100- i
Total Invoice Amount 13,30000 Check
Direct Vendor GOLD STAR FOODS, INC (000630/2)
P O BOX 4328
ONTARIO, CA 91761
2021/22 01/19/22 FOOD 4587536 02/03/22 Audit 622 89 622 89
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000- o
2021/22 01/25/22 FOOD 1437605 02/03/22 Audit 325- 3 25-
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 01/26/22 FOOD 4567635 02/03/22 Audit 1,278 94 1,278 94
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710- 0000-3700-000- o
Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, ESCAPE ;
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 6 of 18
048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022

ﬁ

RegPay05a Payment Register

Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor GOLD STAR FOODS, INC (000630/2) (continued) (continued) —I
2021/22 02/01/22 PROCESS STATE 4666925 02/07/22 Audit 10 80 10 80
FEE
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310- 0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
Total Invoice Amount 1,909 38 Check
Direct Vendor INDEPENDENT ED PROGRAMS (000547/1)
1756 SOUTH ST
ANDERSON, CA 96007
2021/22 01/31/21 IEP 01/2022 CWUSD012022 02/02/22 Audit 13,260 00 13,260 00
2022 (001371) 01-001-6500- 0203-5805-5760-1180- 100-
2021/22 02/03/22 GROUP CWUSDNPA12022  02/03/22 Audit 17500 175 00
COUNSELING
SESSIONS
2022 (001371) 01-001-6500- 0203-5805-5760-1180- 100-
Total Invoice Amount 13,43500 Check
Direct Vendor LAUNDRY WORLD (000141/1)
PO BOX 98
ANDERSON, CA 96007
2021/22 01/12/22 LAUNDRY SERVICE 246790 02/02/22 Audit 755 755
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000-8250-5510-0000- 8200-000-
2021/22 01/12/22 " LAUNDRY 246791 02/02/22 Audit 67 69 67 69
SERVICES
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000- 8250-5510-0000- 8200-000-
2021/22 01/12/22 LAUNDRY SERVICE 246792 02/02/22 Audit 9137 9137
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000- 8250-5510-0000-8200- 000-
2021/22 01/19/22 LAUNDRY SERVICE 247216 02/02/22 Audtt 755 755
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000- 8250-5510-0000-8200-000-
2021/22 01/19/22 LAUNDRY SERVICE 247219 02/02/22 Audit 9137 9137
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000- 8250-5510- 0000- 8200- 000-
2021/22 01/26/22 LAUNDRY 247648 02/07/22 Audtt 755 755
SERVICES
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000- 8250-5510-0000- 8200- 000-
- 2021/22 01/26/22 LAUNDRY 247649 02/07/22 udit 67 69 67 69
SERVICES

2022 (001306) 01-001-0000-8250-5510- 0000- 8200- 000-

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Optron, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? =Y, Approval Batch ld(s) = 025280,
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y)

| ESCAPE_ | VTS |
Page 7 of 18

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM

R




ReqPay05a Payment Register
Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment {Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor LAUNDRY WORLD (000141/1) (continued) {continued)
2021/22 01/26/22 LAUNDRY 247650 02/07/22 Audit 9137 9137
SERVICES
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000-8250-5510-0000-8200-000- .
2021/22 02/02/22 LAUNDRY SERVICE 248075 02/07/22 Audit 10 00 10 00
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000-8250-5510-0000-8200-000-
2021/22 02/02/22 LAUNDRY 248076 02/07/22 Audit 67 69 6769
SERVICES
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000-8250-5510-0000-8200-000-
2021/22 02102122 LAUNDRY 248077 02/07/22 Audit 9137 9137
SERVICES
2022 (001306) 01-001-0000-8250-5510-0000-8200-000-
Total Invoice Amount 60120 Check
Direct Vendor MT SHASTA SPRING WATER (000036/1)
1878 TWIN VIEW BLVD
REDDING, CA 96003-1501
2021/22 09/09/21 WATER SERVICE 149404 02/02/22 Audit 4318 4318
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700- 100-
) 2021/22 (09/30/21 WATER SERVICE 155757 02/02/22 Audit 660 6 60
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100-
" 2021/22 09/30/21 CREDIT MEMO CM09302021 02/02/22 Audit 42 69- 42 69-
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700- 100-
2021/22 11/15/21 WATER SERVICE 169512 02/02/22 Audit 1140 1140 -
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100-
o 2021/22 12/04/21 LATE FEE 183360 02/02/22 Audit 10 00 10 00
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100-
2021/22 12/28/21 WATER SERVICE 181849 02/02/22 Audit 3325 3325
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100-
2021/22 01/01/22 "LATE CHARGE 186165 02/02/22 Audit 1000 1000
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100-
2021/22 01/19/22 WATER SERVICE 189463 02/02/22 Audit 22 60 22 60
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700- 100-
Total Invoice Amount 94 34 Check
Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? =Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, LE_S_C_“A_PE_ :
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 8 of 18
048 - Cottonwood Unton School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




ReqPay05a Payment Register
Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor MTN VALLEY SP ED JPA (000934/1)
10140 OREGON TRL
REDDING, CA 96003
2021/22 02/08/22 SPEC ED SRVCS INV22-00099 02/09/22 Audit 31,552 66 31,552 66
07/1-01/31/2022
2022 (004218) 01-001-0000-3140-5801-0000-3140-100- 1,742 46
2022 (006346) 01-001-3213-3120-5801-0000-3120-100- 3,003 87
2022 (005164) 01-001-6500-0000-5801-5001-2700-100- 2,469 55
2022 (005189) 01-001-6500-0200-5801-5760-1110-100- 11,510 20
2022 (005162) 01-001-6500-0200-5805-7110-1110-100- 12,736 58
Total Invoice Amount 31,55266 Check
Direct Vendor NORTH STATE GROCERY, INC (000476/1)
P O BOX 439
COTTONWOOD, CA 96022
2021/22 02/06/22 MILK 003402274611 02/07/22 Audit 897 897
2022 (004765) 01-060-0000-1573-4710-0001-3700-LC1- o
Total Invoice Amount 897 Check
AP Vendor OFFICE DEPOT, INC (000091/4)
PO BOX 29248
PHOENIX, AZ 85038-9248
2021/22 01/07/22 R4822-00231 OFFICE SUPPLIES 220217827001 02/02/22 Audrt 284 60 284 60
2022 (001242) 01-020-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100- |
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00231 Register # |
F 2021/22 01/07/22 R4822-00231 OFFICE SUPPLIES 220226492001 02/02/22 Audit 642 642 |
2022 (001242) 01-020-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100- ‘
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00231 Register # |
F 2021/22 01/07/22 R4822-00230 INSTRUCTIONAL 220284614001 02/02/22 Audit 276 30 276 30
MATERIAL
2022 (001159) 01-020-1100-2420-4310-0000-2420-100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00230 Register #
F 2021/22 01/07/22 R4822-00233 OFFICE SUPPLIES 220624496001 02/02/22 Audit 252 08 252 08
2022 (001247) 01-001-0000-2700-4510-0000-2700-100-
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00233 Regster #
2021/22 01/08/22 R4822-00228 INSTRUCTIONAL 219612971001 02/02/22 Audit 1Mm21 1121
MATERIAL
2022 (001189) 01-050-1100-2420-4310-1110-1000-100-
Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, | ESCAPE |18 INE
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 9 of 18

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022

ReqPay05a Payment Register

Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal Invoice Payment id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
AP Vendor OFFICE DEPOT, INC (000091/4) (continued) (continued)
Batchid _Check Date PO# P4822-00228 Register #
2021/22 01/08/22 R4822-00226 INSTRUCTIONAL 219650398001 02/02/22 Audlt 2935 29 35
MATERIAL
2022 (001188) 01-050-1100-0000-4310-1110- 1000- 100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822 00226 Register #
F 2021/22 01/09/22 RA4822-00228 INSTRUCTIONAL 219612973001 02/02/22 Audit 228 81 228 81
MATERIAL
2022 (001189) 01-050-1100-2420-4310-1110- 1000- 100-
Balchld Check Date PO# P4822 00228 Register #
2021/22 01/10/22 R4822-00228 INSTRUCTIONAL 219606367001 02/02/22 Audlt 367 99 367 99
MATERIAL
2022 (001189) 01-050-1100-2420-4310-1110- 1000- 100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00228 Register #
— — o LheckD ———— e T
202122 0110/22 R4 R4822-0C 00226 INSTRUCTIONAL 219644032001 02/02/22 Audit 36 28 3628
MATERIAL
2022 (001188) 01-050-1100-0000-4310-1110- 1000- 100-
Batchld _Check Date PO# P4822-00226 Register #
2021/22 01/11/22 R4822-00226 INSTRUCTIONAL 219644032002 02/02/22 AUdlt 2520 2520
MATERIAL
2022 (001188) 01-050-1100-0000-4310-1110- 1000- 100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00226 Regster #
2021/22 01/11/22 R4822-00226 INSTRUCTIONAL 219650411001 02/02/22 Audit 29 38 2938
MATERIAL
2022 (001188) 01-050-1100-0000-4310-1110- 1000-100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00226 Register #
F 2021/22 01/11/22 R4822-00232 INST MATERIAL 220688716001 02/02/22 Audlt 2,272 20 2,272 20
2022 (001235) 01-050-6300-0000-4310-1110- 1000-LC1-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00232 Register #
2021/22 01/12/22 R4822-00226 INSTRUCTIONAL 219644032003 02/02/22 Audit 1263 1263
MATERIAL
2022 (001188) 01-050-1100-0000-4310-1110- 1000- 100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00226 Regrster #
Total Invoice Amount 3,93245 Check

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type =N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280,
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y)

ESCAPE

Page 10 of 18

L

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABELY), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




ReqgPay05a Payment Register
Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC CO (000007/1)
BOX 997300
SACRAMENTO, CA 95899-7300
2021/22 02/07/22 JAN ELECTRIC 02072022 02/10/22 Audit 2,079 48 2,079 48
CAFE
2022 (001307) 01-001-0000-8260-5510-0000-8200-000-
Total Invoice Amount 2,07948 Check
Direct Vendor PRODUCERS DAIRY (000203/1)
PO BOX 1231
FRESNO, CA 93715-1231
2021/22 01/10/22 DAIRY 6352201000 02/03/22 Audit 263 59 263 59
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 01/10/22 DAIRY 6352201098 02/03/22 Audit 23212 23212
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 01/13/22 DAIRY 6352201334 02/03/22 Audit 338 87 338 87
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 01/13/22 DAIRY 6352201343 02/03/22 Audit 263 85 263 85
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 01/18/22 DAIRY 6352201886 02/03/22 Audit 18773 18773
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 01/31/22 DAIRY 6352203179 02/08/22 Audit 520 14 520 14
2022 (001880) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000- o
2021/22 01/31/22 DAIRY 6352203180 02/08/22 Audit 22550 22550
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 02/03/22 DAIRY 6352203413 02/08/22 Audit 113 08 113 08
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000-
2021/22 02/03/22 i DAIRY 6352203414 02/08/22 Audit 341 56 341 56
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000- L -
Total Invoice Amount 2,486 44 Check

Direct Vendor PROFESSIONAL EXTERMINATORS (000403/1)
PO BOX 991507
REDDING, CA 96099
2021/22 01/19/22 PEST SERVICE 64091 02/02/22 Audit 4500 4500

2022 (004214) 01-020-0000-8110-5801-0000-8110-100-

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? =Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, [_E_S~C‘_A/LP_EW
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y)

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM

Page 11 of 18




Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022

—~*

ReqgPay05a Payment Register

Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Total Invoice Amount 4500 Check
Direct Vendor PROPACIFIC FRESH (000491/1)
P O BOX 1069
DURHAM, CA 95938
2021/22 01/07/22 PRODUCE 6907937 02/03/22 Audit 161 36 161 36
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000- 3700- 000-
2021/22 01/14/22 PRODUCE 6909534 02/03/22 Audit 576 94 576 94
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310- 0000-4710-0000-3700- 000-
Total Invoice Amount 73830 Check
Direct Vendor QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC (000974/1)
PO BOX 6813
CAROL STREAM, I 60197-6813
2021/22 01/31/22 POSTAGE 31225765 02/04/22 Audit 500 00 500 00
2022 (001 392) 01-001-0000-7200-5930- 0000- 7200- LC2- 166 67
2022 (001391) 01-020-0000- 2700-5930- 0000- 2700- 100- 166 67
2022 (001393) 01-050-0000- 2700-5930- 0000- 2700- 100- 166 66
Total Invoice Amount 50000 Check
AP Vendor SCHOOL TECH SUPPLY (000386/2)
PO BOX 31001-3055
PASADENA, CA 91110-3055
F 2021/22 02/01/22 R4822-00093 INTERACTIVE TV'S - INV-0001200 02/02/22 Audit 15,400 21 15,400 21
4TH GRADE
2022 (006200) 01-050-1 100- 2420-4410-1110- 1000- 100-
2022 (005259) 01-050-3210- 2420-4410-1110- 1000- 000-
2022 (006373) 01-050-3212- 2420-4410-1110- 1000- 000- 15,400 21
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00093 Register #
F 2021/22 02/08/22 RA4822-00093 INTERACTIVE TV'S - INV-0001262 02/09/22 Audit 4,745 00 4,745 00
4TH GRADE
2022 (006200) 01-050-1100- 2420- 4410-1110- 1000- 100-
2022 (005259) 01-050-3210- 2420-4410-1110- 1000- 000-
2022 ( 006373) 01-050-3212-2420- 4410- 1110-1000- 000- 4,745 00
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00093 Register #
Total Invoice Amount 20,14521 Check

Direct Vendor

SHASTA CO OFFICE OF EDUCATION (000055/1)
1644 MAGNOLIA AVE
REDDING, CA 96001

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type =N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280,
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y)

R

ESCAPE

Page 12 of 18

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCARBEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




ﬁ

RegPay05a Payment Register

Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County

Fiscal  Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor SHASTA CO OFFICE OF EDUCATION (000055/1) (continued)
2021/22 01/28/22 INTERNET SERVICE  INV22-01501 02/03/22 Audtit 3,358 00 3,358 00
2021/22
2022 (001388) 01-020-0000-2700- 5920- 0000- 2700- 100- 1,679 00
2022 ( 001386) 01-050-0000- 2700- 5920- 0000- 2700- 100- 1,679 00
2021122 01/31/22 21/22 P-1 EXCEL INV22-01525 02/02/22 Audit 5,460 00 5,460 00
2022 ( 004187) 01-001-6500-0000- 5805- 5760 3120 100-
Total Invoice Amount 8,818 00 Check
AP Vendor SHASTA CO SCHOOL ADMINISTR
ATORS ASSOCIATION (000983/1)
2200 EUREKA WAY, SUITE B
REDDING, CA 96001
F 2021/22 01/19/22 R4822-00200 SCHOOL CULTURE  119-1202022 02/02/22 Audit 720 00 720 00
BY DESIGN
2022 (001286) 01-050-0000-2700-5210-0000- 2700- 100- 90 00
2022 (004793) 01-050-4035- 0000-5210- 1110- 1000- 000- 630 00
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00200 Register #
Total Invoice Amount 720 00 Check
AP Vendor SIGNARAMA REDDING (000527/1)
4351 CATERPILLAR RD
REDDING, CA 96003
F 2021/22 12/15/21 R4822-00194 REPLACEMENT INV-12730 02/02/22 Audit 184 80 184 80
SIGN FOR CLOSED
CAMPUS
2022 (001244) 01-020-0000-8200- 451 0-0000-8200-100-
Batchld Check Date PO# P4822-00194 Reg»sier #
Total Invoice Amount 184 80 Check
Direct Vendor STATE OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE (00011 1/1)
ACCOUNTING OFFICE
PO BOX 944255
SACRAMENTO, CA 94244-2550
2021/22  02/03/22 FINGERPRINTS 559891 02/08/22 Audit 49 00 49 00
2022 (001 360) 01- 001- -0000- 7207- 5801- 0000- 7200- 000- e
Total Invoice Amount 4900 Check

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, GHNEINES
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 13 of 18
048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM

R




ReqPay05a Payment Register
Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor SYSCO FOOD SVCS OF SACRAMENTO (000169/1)

PO BOX 138007
SACRAMENTO, CA 95813-8007

202122 11/08/21 POT HOLDERS 331442725 02/08/22 Audtt 70 52 70 52
2022 (001889) 13-001-5310-0000-4510-0000-3700- 000-
2021/22 01/06/22 FOOD 331526820 02/03/22 Audit 626 78 626 78
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000- 569 23
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000-4790-0000-3700-000- 5755
2021/22 01/13/22 FOOD 331536499 02/03/22 Audit 770 49 77049
2022 (001889) 13-001-5310-0000-4510-0000-3700- 000- 55 57
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000- 527 42
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000-4790-0000-3700-000- 187 50 o
2021/22 01/20/22 - FOOD 331545869 02/03/22 Audtt 390 10 390 10
2022 (001889) 13-001-5310-0000-4510-0000-3700- 000- 155 08
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700- 000- 185 38
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000-4790-0000-3700- 000- 49 64
2021122 01/27/22 " FOOD 331556179 02/03/22 Audit 569 22 560 22
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000- 449 46
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000- 4790-0000- 3700- 000- 11976
Total Invoice Amount 2,427 11 Check
Direct Vendor THE DANIELSON COMPANY (000495/1)
435 SOUTHGATE COURT
CHICO, CA 95928
2021/22 01/07/22 FOOD 267428 02/03/22 Audit 1,79199 1,791 99
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700- 000- 1,629 88
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000-4790-0000- 3700- 000- 162 11
2021722 01/14/22 FOOD 268047 02/03/22 Audit 2,169 50 2,169 50
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700- 000- 2,008 06
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000-4790-0000-3700-000- 161 44
2021/22 01/21/22 FOOD 268625 02/03/22 Audit 660 05 660 05
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700- 000- 467 62
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000-4790- 0000- 3700- 000- 192 43
2021/22 01/28/22 FOOD 269234 02/03/22 Audit 815 58 81558
2022 (001890) 13-001-5310-0000-4710-0000-3700-000- 75109
2022 (001891) 13-001-5310-0000-4790-0000- 3700-000- 64 49
Total Invoice Amount 543712 Check
Selection Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? =Y, Approval Batch ld(s) = 025280, ESCAPE {iss) 2
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? =) Page 14 of 18

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM



ReqPay05a Payment Register
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Direct Vendor TRI-COUNTIES BANK (000371/2)
P O BOX 60532
CITY OF INDUSTRY, CA 91716-0532
2021/22 01/15/22 PRESCHOOL FOOD  2862240-655051 02/03/22 Audit 151 30 151 30
2022 (004765) 01-060-0000-1573-4710-0001-3700-LC1-
Total Invoice Amount 15130 Check
Direct Vendor US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE (000558/1)
P O BOX 790448
STLOUIS, MO 63179-0448
2021/22 01/26/22 COPIERS 463697169 02/04/22 Audit 3,345 74 3,34574
2022 (001312) 01-020-1100-1120-5610-1110-1000-100- 1,67287
2022 (001321) 01-050-1100-1120-5610-1110-1000- 100- 1,672 87
Total Invoice Amount 3,34574 Check
Direct Vendor US OMNI & TSACG COMPLLANCE (000986/1)
PO BOX 2799
FORT WALTON BEACH, FL 32549
2021/22 01/14/22 403BS 75795 02/10/22 Audrt 28 20 28 20
2022 (001358) 01-001-0000-7200-5801-0000-7200-000-
Total Invoice Amount 2820 Check
Direct Vendor VALLEY WEST ACE HARDWARE (000241/1)
20639 GAS POINT RD
COTTONWOOD, CA 96022
2021/22 01/10/22 MAINT SUPPLIES 072959 02/08/22 Audit 46 72 46 72
2022 (001245) 01-020-0000-8110-4510-0000-8110-100-
2021/22 01/10/22 MAINT SUPPLIES 072961 02/08/22 Audit 8 14 814
2022 (001245) 01-020-0000-8110-4510-0000-8110-100-
- 2021'/22 01/14/22 MAINT SUPPLIES 072995 02/08/22 Audit 3779 3779
2022 (001245) 01-020-0000-8110-4510-0000-8110-100- .
2021/22 01/14/22 MAINT SUPPLIES 072997 02/08/22 Audit 364 364
2022 (001244) 01-020-0000-8200-4510-0000-8200-100-
2021/22 01/19/22 MAINT SUPPLIES 073038 02/08/22 Audit 15 64 1564
2022 (001245) 01-020-0000-8110-4510-0000-8110-100- B
2021/22 01/25/22 ) MAINT SUPPLIES 073085 02/08/22 Audit 18 41 18 41
2022 (001245) 01-020-0000-8110-4510-0000-8110- 100-
Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280, | ESCAPE xﬁ

Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y)

Page 15 of 18

048 - Coftonwood Union School District

Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM

. AeENA



ReqPay05a Payment Register
Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
Total Invoice Amount 130 34 Check
Direct Vendor VERIZON WIRELESS (000208/2)
P O BOX 660108
DALLAS, TX 75266-0108

2021/22 01/17/22 HOTSPOTS DEC 9897521993 02/03/22 Audit 104 02 104 02
18-JAN 17/2022
2022 (006390) 01-001-3212-2420-5801-1110-1000- 000-

Total Invoice Amount 104 02 Check

Direct Vendor WALLNER PLUMBING COMPANY (000463/1)
1651 HARTNELL AVE
REDDING, CA 96002-2231
2021/22 01/07/22 SERVICE CALL 206132 02/03/22 Audtt 21500 21500
2022 (004217) 01-050-0000-8110-5801- 0000-8110- 100-

Total Invoice Amount 21500 Check

Direct Vendor WESTAMERICA BANK (000072/1)
PQ BOX 1260
SUISAN CITY, CA 94585
2021/22 02/01/22 PMT 4 OF 30 526-01260 02/10/22 Audit 46,921 88 46,921 88
2022 (001999) 25-001-9010-2020-7438-0000-9100-000- 12,889 91
2022 (002002) 25-001-9010-2020- 7439- 0000-9100- 000- 34,031 97
Total Invoice Amount 46,921 88 Check
Direct Vendor WILGUS FIRE CONTROL, INC (000660/1)

1703 SONOMA ST

REDDING, CA 96001
2021122 01/20/22 SYSTEM SERVICE 36916 02/03/22 Audit 166 10 166 10
2022 (001322) 01-050-0000-8200- 5630- 0000- 8200- 100-

Total Invoice Amount 166 10 Check

Direct Vendor WORLD TELECOM, INC (000509/1)
1819 KEYSTONE CT
REDDING, CA 96003
2021/22 01/14/22 SERVICE CALL 23891 02/03/22 Audit 62 50 62 50
2022 (001343) 01-001-0000-8200-5630-0000-8200-000-
F 2021/22 01/31/22 R4822-00236 NEW PHONES 23939 02/04/22 Audit 27959 27959
2022 (001343) 01-001-0000-8200-5630-0000-8200-000- 125 33
2022 (001337) 01-020-0000-8200-5630-0000-8200-100- 154 26
Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? = Y, Approval Batch ld(s) = 025280, [__E SCAPE | i
Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? = Y) Page 16 of 18

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM




ReqPay05a Payment Register
Scheduled 02/02/2022 - 02/10/2022 Bank Account COUNTY - County
Fiscal Invoice Payment Id Paymt Check Invoice Unpaid Expense
Year Date Req# Comment (Trans Batch Id) Sched Status Status Amount Sales Tax Amount
AP Vendor WORLD TELECOM, INC (000509/1) (continued) (continued)
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00236 Register #
2021/22 01/31/22 R4822-00236 NEW PHONES 23940 02/04/22 Audit 354 85 354 85
2022 (001343) 01-001-0000-8200-5630-0000-8200-000- 159 06
2022 (001337) 01-020-0000-8200-5630-0000-8200-100- 19579
Batchid Check Date PO# P4822-00236 Register #

Total Invoice Amount

EXPENSES BY FUND - Bank Account COUNTY

Fund Expense Cash Balance Difference

01 187,713 76 4,025,813 79 3,838,100 03

13 13,650 54 32,696 40- 46,346 94-

25 46,921 88 111,322 14 64,400 26
Total 248,286 18

696 94 Check

Selection  Sorted by AP Check Order Option, Filtered by (Org = 48, Payment Method = N, Payment Type = N, On Hold? =Y, Approval Batch Id(s) = 025280,

Page Break by Check/Advice? = N, Zero? =)

048 - Cottonwood Union School District Generated for AMANDA MCABEL (AMCABEL), Feb 11 2022 12 07PM



Schoo! Year 2021-22

School Plan for Student Achievement
(SPSA) Template

Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template
Instructions

County-District-School Schoolsite Councill Local Board Approval
School Name (CDS) Code (SSC) Approval Date Date |
West Cottonwood Junior  45-69955-6050207 + December 14, 2021 February 15, 2022

High School

Purpose and Description

Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and
Improvement)

Schoolwide Program

Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs

West Cottonwood Junior High will meet ESSA requirements to support academic achievement so
that all students demonstrate proficiency on the State's Academic Standards and California
Dashboard Indicators School goals will influence the entire educational program of the school and
are aligned with the goals of the LCAP regarding student outcomes and student and parent
engagement Goals will support the school in iImproving state Dashboard indicators related to
school climate, academic achievement, graduation rate, college and career readiness, and local
indicators as defined in the Dashboard

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



T AcENDA

Table of Contents

SPSA Title Page 1
Purpose and Description 1
Table of Contents 2
Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 4
Data Analysis 4
Surveys 4
Classroom Observations 4
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 4
Stakeholder Involvement 7
Resource Inequities 8
School and Student Performance Data 9
Student Enroliment 9
CAASPP Results 11
ELPAC Results 17
Student Population 20
Overall Performance 22
Academic Performance 23
Academic Engagement 34
Conditions & Climate 37
Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 39
Goal 1 39
Goal 2 42
Goal 3 44
Goal 4 47
Goal 5 48
Budget Summary 49
Budget Summary 49
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 49
Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 50
Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 50
Expenditures by Funding Source 50
Expenditures by Budget Reference 50
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 50
Expenditures by Goal 51
School Site Council Membership 52
Recommendations and Assurances 53
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Instructions
Instructions Linked Table of Contents
Purpose and Description
Stakeholder Involvement
Resource Inequities
Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review
Annual Review
Budget Summary
Appendix A Plan Requirements
Appendix B
Appendix C Select State and Federal Programs

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 65

54
54
55
55
55
56
57
58
60
63
65

West Cottonwood Junior High School



Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components

Data Analysis
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis Is provided

Surveys
This section provides a description of surveys (1 e , Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-

year, and a summary of results from the survey(s)

West Cottonwood Junior High students were able to respond to the survey titled "School Safety
Survey" This survey was sent out via Google docs Students were able to answer questions
anonymously with regards to school safety both in and out of the classroom, cleanliness of campus,
teacher and student engagement, and parent involvement West Cottonwood Junior High Staff uses
this information to determine needs and support to increase student learning Parent surveys and
staff surveys were also used to identify areas of need These areas are addressed in our actions
within this plan

Classroom Observations

This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during
the school-year and a summary of findings ) ) )

As part of our district Professional Learning Communities collective commitments, the Principal, Vice
Principal, and academic coaches conduct focused walk-throughs to reinforce and monitor the
targeted areas in the plan Formal observations are also conducted as part of the certificated
personnel evaluation process In addition, to the informal class visits and formal observations
conducted by the administrative team, the currniculum coaches conducted classroom observations to
assist with curriculum and also provided coaching supports

Analysis of Current Instructional Program

The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of
1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs) In conjunction with the needs assessments, these
categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterize current instructional
practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are

« Not meeting performance goals
* Meeting performance goals
« Exceeding performance goals

Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on
verifiable facts Avoid vague or general descriptions Each successive school plan should examine the
status of these findings and note progress made Special consideration should be given to any
practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical
programs

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Standards, Assessment, and Accountability

Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA)

WCJH uses IReady, CAASPP summative assessments, English Language Proficiency Assessment,
STAR Math and Reading benchmark assessments, and local assessments developed by teachers
in the DnA portal to monitor progress, modify instruction, and improve student learning

Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction
(EPC)

Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify
instruction

Utihzation of IReady, STAR Math, STAR Reading, and CAASPP assessment data to
monitor curriculum based assessments, facilitate PLC discussions, and progress monitor
all learners

Instructional decisions, intervention class assignments, and modifications are made as we

consider data from summative assessments, including classroom assessments, IReady
benchmarks and data through reports

Staffing and Professional Development

Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA)

All certificated teachers at West Cottonwood Junior High meet the highly qualified teaching
standards

Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e g , access to instructional
materials training on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC)

All teachers have met the requirements for teaching Additionally, teachers participate in district-wide
and site based professional development

Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional
needs (ESEA)

The staff at West Cottonwood Junior High are involved in a program of ongoing professional
development linked to California’s Common Core State Standards and student success

Instructional planning is driven by the review of student outcomes on assessments that target prionty
5th thru 8th grade standards through rigorous curriculum design Our PLC teams focus on the key
areas In language arts, mathematics and grade level objectives and instructional practices to
optimize student performance Staff members have the opportunity to attend a variety of district-
organized staff development events — Capturing Kids Hearts, IReady etc

Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e g , use of content experts and instructional
coaches) (EPC)

West Cottonwood Junior High provides professional development for all staff for all academic

subjects and Professional Learning Community meetings In addition, West Cottonwood Junior High
provides curriculum support to all teachers

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K—8]) and department (grades
nine through twelve) (EPC)

The West Cottonwood Junior High Staff receives weekly minimum days for collaboration These
meetings are used to identify the current state of student learning through common formative
assessments, identify the underlying causes of student error and misconceptions, and agree upon
common instructional strategies and implementation to increase student achievement PLC teams
meet In grade level and vertical teams to review assessments, formulate SMART goals, create
instructional plans, and refiect on instructional practices

Teaching and Learning

Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA)
All curriculum aligns with state standards

Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K-8)
(EPC) ) ) B )

Each grade level meets or exceeds the recommended daily instructional minutes for ELA, Math, and
Physical Education

Lesson pacing schedule (K-8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention
courses (EPC) ) )

Grade level collaboration ensures a consistent lesson and pacing schedule among teachers English
language arts intervention time 1s built into the regular day Mathematics intervention 1s embedded
within the school days as well Additionally, intervention classes for both ELA and Math are
established to support students who need it

Avallability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA)

Our students have high quality standards-based instructional materials that are aligned to state and
district standards and designed to support all learning styles

Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials,
and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC)

All curniculum 1s State Board of Education adopted and all other instructional materials are
standards-based and appropriate for all student groups Intervention materals are aligned to the
standards and are targeted to support our most at-risk students and extend students that need to be
stretched |

Opportunity and Equal Educational Access

Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards
(ESEA)

West Cottonwood Junior High has a variety of programs that aid in supporting under performing
students In addition to RSP and Special Day Classes we also offer web based intervention
programs, intervention classes and small group reading classes (Excel) to build student academic
levels

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement

The Cottonwood Elementary School District uses evidence-based educational practices including
but not imited to Professional Learning Communities, Capturing Kids Hearts, Fred Jones,
standards-aligned walk-throughs, student and staff goal setting, etc to raise student achievement
Weekly collaboration and instructional coaches in ELA and Mathematics help to ensure the use of
such educational practices

Parental Engagement

Resources avallable from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students
(ESEA)

Parents and the community are very supportive of the educational programs at West Cottonwood
Junior High School Parents volunteer in classrooms, for special events, for fundraisers, on field trps
as chaperones, and on various school district committees such as School Site Council and Parent
Club Parents also have the opportunity to participate by attending Back to School Night, Open

House, Parent Nights, Superintendents Dessert, LCAP Advisory Meetings, and School Board
Meetings

Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and
students In secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs
(6 California Code of Regulations 3932)

At the school level parents are engaged In the process of developing the School Safety Plan, and
the SPSA through the School Site Council At the district level, parents assist with the development
of the LCAP through special LCAP Advisory Meetings Parents are also invited to a dessert with the
Superintendent to ask questions, provide feedback and express ideas

Funding

Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards
(ESEA)

West Cottonwood Junior High 1s currently using an intervention teacher to help our underperforming
students Additionally we have classroom aides to help facilitate small groups for reading and math
Interventions

Fiscal support (EPC)
West Cottonwood Junior High receives funding based on the number of pupils attending

Stakeholder Involvement

How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this
SPSA/Annual Review and Update?

Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update

Parents and the community are very supportive of the educational programs at West Cottonwood
Junior High School Parents volunteer in classrooms, for special events, fund-raisers, field trips and
as chaperones Parents and community members who wish to participate in a leadership role also

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




volunteer on various school committees such as site council  Parent, community, and student
surveys are completed annually, and stakeholder input 1s also received through group and individual
meetings and various events such as the Superintendent's Coffee

The School Plan Student Achievement (SPSA) I1s annually reviewed and updated by the School Site
Council The School Site Council (SSC) is comprised of the vice principal, 2 teachers, 1 certificated
counselor, 1 classified support staff, and 5 parent/community members The SSC annually reviews
data and sets goals based on the data Once the goals are set, the committee brainstorm
actions/services to the support the goals The SSC meets regularly to review the School Plan for
Student Achievement (SPSA) and revises the goals, actions, and services based on the latest data
The Academic Coaches/Teachers then target students and grade levels that need extra support
Professional development is also targeted based on the local and state data All parents are
encouraged to attend the SSC meetings and provide feedback in the development of the School

Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) and the District Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)

Resource Inequities

Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs
assessment, as applicable

The needs assessment involved examining data from the California School Dashboard, local
assessments, benchmarks, conversations with the School Site Council (SSC), and other
stakeholders No resource inequities were identified

School Pian for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

Student Enrollment
Enroliment By Student Group

Student Enroliment by Subgroup
Student Group Percent of Enroliment Number of Students

18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21
American Indian 322% 385% 27% 13 16 11
African American 0 99% 144% 17% 4 6 7
Asian 149% 12% 07% 6
Filipino 025% 0% % 1
Hispanic/Latino 14 6% 15 38% 16 5% 59 64 67
Pacific Islander 05% 0 48% 03% 2 2 1
White 74 5% 7163% 71 4% 301 298 290
Multiple/No Response 4 21% 6 01% 6 4% 17 25 26

Total Enroliment 404 416 406
Student Enroliment
Enroliment By Grade Level
Student Enroliment by Grade Level
Grade Number of Students
18-19 19-20 20-21

Grade 5 129 101 102
Grade 6 85 128 99
Grade 7 100 87 119
Grade 8 90 100 86
Total Enroliment 404 416 406

Conclusions based on this data

1 We continue to increase our enrollment within our African American, White and Hispanic populations
2 There has been a significant decease In our Asian population

3 We had a substantial increase in enroliments in grade levels 5 Our numbers decreased in grade levels 6, 7 and 8

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School!




School and Student Performance Data

Student Enroliment
English Learner (EL) Enroliment

English Learner (EL) Enroliment
Student Group Number of Students Percent of Students
18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21
Enghish Learners 9 12 9 22% 29% 2 2%
Fluent English Proficient (FEP) 12 7 8 3 0% 17% 2 0%
Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) 0 0 0 0 0% 00% 00%

Conclusions based on this data
1. We have seen an overall decrease of English Learners over the past three years
2. Only 2 2% of our total population are English Learners

3 Almost all of our English Language Learner students are Fluent English Proficient 0% were reclassified to Fluent
English Proficient in 2018-19

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

CAASPP Results
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)

Overall Participation for All Students
Grade | #of Students Enrolled | # of Students Tested # of Students with % of Enrolled Students
Level | 47.18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21

Grade 5 99 130 100 97 124 92 97 124 92 98 954 920
Grade 6 103 85 96 101 83 81 101 83 81 98 1 97 6 844
Grade 7 91 107 116 86 102 99 86 102 99 94 5 95 3 853
Grade 8 97 96 87 96 93 78 96 93 78 99 96 9 897

All Grades | 390 418 399 380 402 350 380 402 350 97 4 96 2 877

The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability
purposes

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was Issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school! year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Overall Achievement for All Students

Grade Mean Scale Score % Standard % Standard Met | % Standard Nearly | % Standard Not

Level 17-18118-1920-21|17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 {17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade § 2485 [2505 (2498 [ 928 [2016|17 39|34 02|3226|27 17|27 84|2581|3043(2887[2177|2500
Grade 6 2519 (2492 12528 | 495 | 482 |1111|4158|2289|4321|3465|3976|2716|1881]3253|1852
Grade 7 2530 12566 [2579 | 581 [{1765|2020|3837|4314|4444|2907|2451(24242674)1471 |11 11
Grade 8 2567 | 2551 |2539 [1042[1075|1026|4063(2796(2949|3125(3548|3077 1771|2581 (2949
All Grades | N/A | N/A | N/A | 763 {1418 {1514(38683209|3629|3079|3060|2800|2289|2313|2057

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Reading
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
1718 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 5 1856 | 3226 | 1196 | 5670 | 4839 | 6957 | 2474 | 1935 | 1848
Grade 6 2178 | 1084 | 1481 | 5248 | 4337 | 6790 | 2574 | 4578 | 1728
Grade 7 1279 | 2843 | 1919 | 5233 | 4902 | 6869 | 3488 | 2255 | 1212
Grade 8 2083 | 1505 897 4688 | 5376 | 6282 | 3229 | 3118 | 2821
All Grades 1868 | 2289 | 1400 | 5211 | 4876 | 6743 | 2921 | 2836 | 1857

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



Writing
Producing clear and purposeful writing
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 5 1443 | 2177 | 1848 | 5361 5645 | 5543 | 3196 | 2177 | 2609
Grade 6 10 89 723 988 5644 | 5663 | 6543 | 3267 | 3614 | 2469
Grade 7 2442 | 3431 3636 | 5581 5294 | 5152 | 1977 | 1275 | 1212
Grade 8 2708 | 2151 1923 | 5625 | 5591 5128 | 1667 | 2258 | 2949
All Grades 1895 | 2189 | 2171 5553 | 5547 | 5571 | 2553 | 2264 | 2257

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Listening
Demonstrating effective communication skills
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level

17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 5 722 19 35 1087 | 7320 | 6452 | 7935 19 59 16 13 978
Grade 6 14 85 482 1235 | 7228 | 7952 | 7901 12 87 1566 8 64
Grade 7 698 14 71 1616 | 6047 | 7059 | 7273 | 3256 14 71 1111
Grade 8 833 15 05 897 7917 | 6774 | 7308 12 50 17 20 17 95
All Grades 947 14 18 1229 | 7158 | 6990 | 76 00 18 95 1592 1171

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data is available to report for this year

Research/Inquiry
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18419 | 20-21
Grade 5 1856 | 2016 | 1522 | 5979 | 5323 | 6304 | 2165 | 2661 | 2174
Grade 6 17 82 964 1605 | 6733 | 6506 | 7531 1485 | 2530 8 64
Grade 7 1512 | 2451 | 2929 | 6279 | 5882 | 6465 | 2209 | 1667 6 06
Grade 8 2708 | 1720 | 1410 | 5208 | 5484 | 7564 | 2083 | 2796 | 1026
All Grades 1974 | 18 41 1914 | 6053 | 5746 | 6914 | 1974 | 2413 | 1171

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data i1s available to report for this year

Conclusions based on this data.

1 97% of our students were tested which was a 1% decrease from the previous year

2 The following grades were above standard
5th-20%
6th-5%
7th-18%

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



8th-11%

The following students were at standard
5th-32%
6th-23%
7th- 43%
8th- 27%

The following students were near standard

5th-26%

6th-37%

7th-25%

8th-35%

The following students were below standard

5th-22%

6th-35% ‘
7th-15%

8th- 26%

Data shows an increase in overall achievement from 9 87 to 14 18

3 More of our students fall in the above standard for English Language Arts in grades 5and 7

Schoo! Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

CAASPP Results
Mathematics (All Students)

Overall Participation for All Students

Grade | #of Students Enrolled | # of Students Tested # of Students with % of Enrolled Students

Level 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 5 99 130 100 98 124 92 98 124 92 99 954 920
Grade 6 103 85 96 101 84 81 101 84 81 98 1 98 8 84 4
Grade 7 91 107 116 87 103 99 87 103 99 956 96 3 853
Grade 8 97 96 87 96 93 75 96 93 75 99 96 9 86 2
All Grades | 390 418 399 382 404 347 382 404 347 97 9 96 7 870

* The % of Enrolled Students Tested” showing In this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability

purposes

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was I1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Overall Achievement for All Students

Grade Mean Scale Score % Standard o, Standard Met | % Standard Nearly | % Standard Not

Level 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19|20-21 |17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 5 2492 [2493 [2494 |1429|1290|1848|1633|2500{2065|3980|3226|2609(2959|2984|3478
Grade 6 2514 | 2508 [2522 | 891 {1071|1235|3168|2143|27 16|33 66 (3690|3704 |2574 309523 46
Grade 7 2549 | 2563 |2564 |16 09|22 33 (222232 183592(3030|2989|2233(2929|2184|1942)|18 18
Grade 8 2566 | 2563 {2541 |17 71|21 51|16 00|36 46 {25 81|26 67|22 92|23 66|28 00|22 92|29 03|29 33
All Grades | N/A | N/A | N/A {14 14|16 83|17 5829 06|27 232622 |3168|2871)2997 |25 13|27 232622

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the

2019-2020 school year, thus no data is available to report for this year

Concepts & Procedures

Applying mathematical concepts and procedures

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level

17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 5 22 45 18 55 18 48 3571 3790 | 4783 | 4184 | 4355 3370
Grade 6 2079 1548 1358 | 4356 | 4405 | 6173 3564 | 4048 | 2469
Grade 7 2759 | 4272 31 31 41 38 3107 55 56 3103 | 2621 1313
Grade 8 30 21 26 88 933 4583 | 4301 6267 | 2396 30 11 28 00
All Grades 2513 | 2599 1902 | 4162 38 61 56 48 3325 3540 | 2450

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data Is available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 14 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level

17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 1819 | 20-21
Grade 5 1122 15 32 1739 | 5510 | 5161 5978 | 3367 | 3306 | 2283
Grade 6 8 91 714 1235 | 5446 | 5119 | 6296 | 3663 | 4167 | 2469
Grade 7 2069 | 2816 | 2020 | 5632 | 5049 | 6566 | 2299 | 2136 14 14
Grade 8 2396 | 2043 1467 | 5313 | 5376 | 5467 | 2292 | 2581 3067
All Grades 1597 18 07 1643 | 5471 5173 | 6110 | 2932 | 3020 | 2248

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Communicating Reasoning
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 1819 | 20-21
Grade 5 918 1129 1630 | 5408 5968 | 5217 | 3673 | 2903 | 3152
Grade 6 10 89 1071 1728 | 54 46 5714 | 6790 | 3465 | 3214 14 81
Grade 7 2299 | 2816 1515 | 5747 | 5243 | 7475 19 54 19 42 1010
Grade 8 2292 | 2796 1600 | 5417 | 4409 | 6800 | 2292 | 2796 16 00
All Grades 16 23 19 31 1614 | 5497 | 5371 6571 2880 | 2698 18 16

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data i1s available to report for this year

Conclusions based on this data:

1. lWe had a 97% participation rate for the assessment
2. p significant amount of our students have nearly met or are above standard in mathematics

3 Above Standard
'5th - 13%
6th - 11%
7th - 22%
8th-21%

At Standard
5th- 25%
6th- 21%
7th- 36%
8th- 26%

Near Standard
5th-32%
6th-37%
7th-22%
8th-24%

Below Standard
5th- 30%

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




6th- 31%
7th- 19%
8th- 30%

Grade 7th and 8th have shown good growth over the last three years Interventions should be focused in grades 5th
and 6th

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data
ELPAC Results

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students
Grade Overall Oral Language Written Language Stu':i:’r:‘tge';eosft ed
Level 4718 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 1819 | 20-21
5 . * N * * * x * * " * %
6 * * * * * * * * * * * *
7 * x % * * * * * * * 4 *
8 * * x * * * * N * * x *
All Grades * 10 7

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Overall Language
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students
Grade Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number
17-18(18-1920-21 | 17-18{18-19|20-21[17-1818-19|20-21 [ 17-18 | 18-19| 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21

5 N * . * . * . * . * * *

6 . * * * * * * x * * * * . N

7 . * . * . * . * N * . *

8 * * . * . * » * . . . *

All Grades | * . * * . * N * * N * * . * N

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Oral Language
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students
le_;;\.,c;? Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Tgftasltzl(l;::‘l::r
17-18|18-19/20-21 [17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21|17-18|18-19|20-21 | 17-18 |18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21

5 * x * * * * x * * * * *

6 . . * * " * * * * * * * *

7 * * * * * * * * * * * *

8 * * * * * * * N * . * * *

All Grades | * x * * * * * * * * * * * .

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data I1s available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achtevement (SPSA) Page 17 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



Written Language
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students
e | _toes |ty | __teez |t | Tl
17-18 |18-19[20-21 |17-18 | 18-19 [ 20-21 |[17-18 [ 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21

5 * * * * * * * * * * * *

6 * * * * * * * * * * * * *

8 * * " * * N x * * * * * *

All Grades | * * * * * * * * * * * * * » *

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Listening Domain
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students
Grade Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Tgftasltr::’x:‘l::r
Level 1™ 7 48 | 18-19 | 2021 | 1718 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 1819 | 20-21
5 * * x * * * % * * *
6 * * * * * * * * * % *
7 * * * % * * * * * *
8 * * * * * * * * % * *
All Grades * * * * x * * * * * . *

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data Is available to report for this year

Speaking Domain
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students ‘
?_::,:? Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning TgftasltI::;r:ltt):r
17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 1718 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
5 * * . . N . . * * .
6 . " . * x . . * . .
7 * * * * * . . * . *
8 . " * * . * * * . * *
All Grades . . * . * * * * * * * *

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Reading Domain

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students

E::,:? Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Tgftasltr:::‘l::r
17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
5 * * * * * * * * * "
6 * * * * * * * * * * *
7 * . * * * * x * * *
8 " * * * x * * % * *
All Grades * * * * * " . * * * . *

2019-20 Data

Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the

2019-2020 school year, thus no data Is available to report for this year

Writing Domain

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students

Grade Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Tgftasltr::;r:::zr
Level ™7 18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 1718 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
6 : : N N : N N N . N
o N 3 N X : . 3 N N N N
All Grades |+ . . N . N : . X N N 3

[

2019-20 Data

Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the

2019-2020 school year, thus no data Is avallable to report for this year

Conclusions based on this data:

1. We have too few English Learners to be able to display the data

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

Student Population

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included

in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021

Thts section provides information about the school’s student population

2020-21 Student Population

Total Socioeconomically English Foster
Enroliment Disadvantaged Learners Youth
406 50.7 2.2 2.0

This 1s the total number of
students enrolled

This 1s the percent of students
who are eligible for free or

reduced priced meals, or have
parents/guardians who did not
receive a high school diploma

This 1s the percent of students
who are learning to communicate
effectively in English, typically
requiring instruction in both the
English Language and i their

academic courses

This 1s the percent of students
whose well-being s the
responstbility of a court

2019-20 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group

Student Group Total Percentage
English Learners 9 22
Foster Youth 8 20
Homeless
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 206 507
Students with Disabilities 49 121

Enroliment by Race/Ethnicity

Student Group Total Percentage
African American 7 17
American Indian or Alaska Native 11 27
Asian 3 07
Filipino
Hispanic 67 165
Two or More Races 26 64
Native Hawauan or Pacific Islander 1 02
White 290 714

Conclusions based on this data

1. our significant student groups are Whlté; Hispanic and Socioeconomically Disadvantage

2. 52% of our student population has been identified as Socioeconomically Disadvantage

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 20 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




3. 10% of our student population have a disability

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

Overall Performance

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included

in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enroliment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent

data (2019 Fall) is provided here

l 2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students l

E ‘Academl‘c 'Pérfor‘rfnance ; E 'Acadgmlc“Engageme‘nt E ‘ Condi‘tidns&‘CIlmatg:&', i
English Language Arts Chronic Absenteeism Suspension Rate }
N s~ 5,
£ 73 £5 VALY
Green Orange Green
|
]

Mathematics
£N

Green

Conclusions based on this data:

1 Review and focus on ELA, Math, Absenteeism, Suspension Rate

2. Chronic absenteeism has been identified as an area of concern

3. Interventions will be refined for ELA

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 22 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




S hcenoa

School and Student Performance Data

Academic Performance
English Language Arts

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
In these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made avallable the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Red Orange Yellow Green Blue

Lowest
Performance

Highest
Performance

This section provides number of student groups in each color

l 2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report
L & || Qmm |

TIF e % l

0 1 ‘ 2 1

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment This measure Is based on
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which Is taken annually by students in grades 3-8
and grade 11

[ 2019 Fall Dashboard Enghish Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group

All Students English Learners Foster Youth

Green
4 4 points below standard

Increased ++5 4 points

f -~ 5y

No Performance Color
53 1 points below standard

Declined -7 4 points

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

3

3
372 12
Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities
TN N, 1 Ny
£ AN £1N
No Performance Color Orange Yellow

24 2 points below standard

Maintained ++2 3 points

187

60 points below standard

Increased ++12 9 points

61

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 23 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




[ 2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity l

African American

American Indian

Asian

Filipino

£

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy

£

No Performance Color
29 4 points below standard
Declined Significantly -18 8

£
No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy

16 5 points below standard

Increased ++8 1 points

54

6 6 points below standard

Declined -3 1 points

17

4 points 6 1
12
Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White
£1% £ £ £AN
Yellow No Performance Color No Performance Color Green

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy

2

0 points below standard

Increased ++6 8 points

274

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment This measure Is based on
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3-8

and grade 11

2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners

Current English Learner

Reclassified English Learners

English Only

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

8

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

A

2 2 points below standard

Increased ++5 6 points

351

Conclusions based on this data

1. Our Hispanic group had a significant growth with +8 1 points

2. Wehada significant decrease in our Native American group - 18 8 in the area of Language Arts

3. We showed growth an increase in Hispanic and White sub groups

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 24 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

Academic Performance
Mathematics

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Lowest f“‘ 5 !_’5 '\! f I:! f '\2! ii z Highest

Performance Red Orange Yellow Green Blue Performance
This section provides number of student groups in each color
I 2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report
[ Red! } i_ Sfe i) ; f l (Green) 2IUE )
0 1 3 0 0

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment This measure I1s based on student
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which Is taken annually by students in grades 3-8 and

grade 11

2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group

21 7 points below standard

62 8 points below standard

All Students English Learners Foster Youth
S, £, o7y,
£ 7y y A1 y 2 Y
Green No Performance Color No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data Not

Yellow

43 2 points below standard

Increased ++4 points Increased
Significantly 3
+421 2 nninte
371 "
Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities
P LN : N,
£ 1N AN

Orange

101 6 points below standard

Displayed for Privacy
Increased ++6 6 points Increased
3 Significantly
+4+1R A nninte
186 60
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




T AGENDA

L 2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity T
African American American Indian Asian Filipino
L™ " "
£ £ £ £
No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color
Less than 11 Students - Data 6 points above standard Less than 11 Students - Data Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy Not Displayed for Privacy Not Displayed for Privacy
Increased
4 Significantly 6 1
++4AN A nAInte
12
Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White
~ T, ., Tl T
£1N £ £ £1N
Yellow No Performance Color No Performance Color Yellow
35 2 points below standard 30 7 points below standard Less than 11 Students - Data 18 2 points below standard
Not Displayed for Privacy
Increased Increased ++10 4 points Maintained -0 3 points
Significantly 2
++17 7 nAainte
53 17 274

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment This measure Is based on student
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which Is taken annually by students in grades 3-8 and

grade 11
[ 2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners j
Current English Learner Reclassified English Learners English Only
Less than 11 Students - Data Not Less than 11 Students - Data Not 20 6 points below standard
Displayed for Privacy Displayed for Privacy
Maintained ++2 1 points
7 4

351

Conclusions based on this data.

1. Al students, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, EL and Students with Disabilities showed growth
2. students with Disabilities are performing at a much lower rate than all students but are showing growth

3. Allofour student groups showed growth toward meeting math standards

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School

T




School and Student Performance Data

Academic Performance
English Learner Progress

Although both Senate Bili 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made avaiable the Enroliment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency
or maintaining the highest level

2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator

English Learner Progress

No Performance Color

making progress towards English
language proficiency

Number of EL Students

Performance Level No Data

This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (1 e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level

2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results

Decreased Maintained ELPI Level 1, Maintained Progressed At Least
One ELPI Level 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H ELPI Level 4 One ELPI Level

Conclusions based on this data:

1. we haveitoo few English Learners to show data English Learners will receive designated and integrated EL time

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

Col

Academic Performance
lege/Career Measures Only Report

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included

in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made availlable the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021

Number and Percentage of Students in the Combined Graduation Rate and/or
Dashboard Alternative School Status (DASS) Graduation Rate by Student Group

Student Group

Cohort Cohort
Totals Percent

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Fihpino

Hispanic

Native Hawanan or Pacific Islander

White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

Foster Youth

Homeless

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 28 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Advanced Placement Exams — Number and Percentage of Four-Year Graduation Rate Cohort Students

Cohort Cohort
Totals Percent

Student Group

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawaunan or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students with Disabilities
Foster Youth

Homeless

*

This table shows students In the four-year graduation rate cohort by student group who scored 3 or higher on at least
two Advanced Placement exams

International Baccalaureate Exams — Number and Percentage of Four-Year Graduation Rate Cohort

Cohort Cohort
Totals Percent

Student Group

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawarnan or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students with Disabilities
Foster Youth

Homeless

*

This table shows students in the four-year graduation rate cohort by student group who scored 4 or higher on at least
two International Baccalaureate Exams

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Completed at Least One Career Technical Education (CTE) Pathway — Number and Percentage of All Students

Student Group

Cohort
Totals

Cohort
Percent

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawanan or Pacific Islander

White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

Foster Youth

Homeless

*  This table shows students in the combined graduation rate and/or DASS graduation rate by student group who
completed at least one CTE Pathway with a grade of C- or better (or Pass) In the capstone course

Completed a-g Requirements — Number and Percentage of All Students

Student Group

Cohort
Totals

Cohort
Percent

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander

White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socloeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

Foster Youth

Homeless

*  This table shows students in the combined graduation rate and/or DASS graduation rate by student group who met the
University of California (UC) or California State University (CSU) a-g criteria with a grade of C or better (or Pass)

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




Completed a-g Requirements AND at Least One CTE Pathway — Number and Percentage of All Students

Student Group

Cohort
Totals

Cohort
Percent

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawanan or Pacific Islander

White

Two or More Races

Enghsh Learners

Sociloeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

Foster Youth

Homeless

*  This table shows students in the combined graduation rate and/or DASS graduation rate by student group who met the
UC or CSU a-g cniteria with a grade of C or better (or Pass) AND completed at least one CTE Pathway with a grade of

C- or better (or Pass) in the capstone course

Completed College Credit Courses — Number and Percentage of All Student
Students Completing One Semester, Two Quarters, or Two Trimesters of College Credit Courses

Student Group

Number of Students

Percent of Students

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawanan or Pacific Islander

White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socloeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

Foster Youth

Homeless

*

This table shows students in the combined graduation rate and/or DASS graduation rate by student group who

completed Academic or CTE subject college credit courses with a grade of C- or better (or Pass)

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School



Completed College Credit Courses — Number and Percentage of All Student
Students Completing Two Semesters, Three Quarters, or Three Trimesters of College Credit Courses

Student Group Number of Students | Percent of Students

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

Foster Youth

Homeless

*

This table shows students in the combined graduation rate and/or DASS graduation rate by student group who
completed Academic or CTE subject college credit courses with a grade of C- or better (or Pass)

Earned the State Seal of Biliteracy — Number and Percentage of All Students

Cohort Cohort
Totals Percent

Student Group

All Students

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawaian or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races

English Learners

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students with Disabilities
Foster Youth

Homeless

*  This table shows students In the combined graduation rate and/or DASS graduation rate by student group who earned
the State Seal of Biliteracy

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 65 West Cottonwood Juntor High School

R




Conclusions based on this data-

1. Thisisa high schoo] lndlcétor This state>|7nd|cator 1S nof applicable to oljr school

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

Academic Engagement
Chronic Absenteeism

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enroliment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent

data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Lowest

Performance Red

Orange

£33 AN AN £A £

Yellow Green

This section provides number of student groups in each color

Highest

Performance
Blue

| 2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report

L

| Req

0 4

This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10

S j : |

0

percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled

2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group

All Students English Learners Foster Youth
PN Py “u
FANAY £ £
Orange No Performance Color No Performance Color
113 182 Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy
Increased +0 9 11
7
441
Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities

£
No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

5

AN
Orange

159

Increased +1 7

233

AN
Orange

20

Increased +1 8

70

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 34 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School




2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity l

African American

American Indian

Asian

Filipino

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy

£
No Performance Color

133

Increased +1 3

£
No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Prnivacy

£

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy

113

Increased +2 7

62

105

Increased +3 4

19

5 7 1
15
Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White
AN £ £ AN
Orange No Performance Color No Performance Color Orange

Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy

3

116

Increased +0 7

329

Conclusions based on this data.

1. No subgroup stands out Absenteeism the same across the board

2 Two or More Races had the highest increase in absenteeism

3. We will address chronic absenteeism in our plan

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 35 of 65

West Cottonwood Junior High School



School and Student Performance Data

Academic Engagement
Graduation Rate Additional Report

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
In these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enroliment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021

2021 Graduation Rate by Student Group
Number qf
Student Group swdtflztf " gl:::j?:‘rt : sf ﬁ?frt?'nb\?;:: Grag:ta::lon
Graduation Graduates
Rate
All Students
English Learners
Foster Youth
Homeless

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students with Disabilities

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawaunan or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races

Conclusions based on this data

1. This state indicator Is only applicable to High Schools

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




School and Student Performance Data

Conditions & Climate
Suspension Rate

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021

California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
In these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data avallable All other reports are not avatlable for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent

data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Lowest

Performance Red

Orange

£ AN AN LA £

Yellow Green

This section provides number of student groups in each color

Highest

Performance
Blue

l 2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report

[ @ ]

Bleiilef-

1 l

0 1

This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been

suspended at least once in a given school year Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once

2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group

All Students English Learners Foster Youth
-, Pl 9
£A £ £
Green No Performance Color No Performance Color
49 0 Less tr_xan 11 Stug:len_ts - Data Not
8
Declined -2 4 11
450
Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities

£A

AN

No Performance Color Green Orange
Less than 11 Students - Data Not 54 113
6
Declined Significantly -6 1 Increased +0 4
239 71
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity

African American American Indian Asian Filipino
S, Y T, ~
£ £ £ £
No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color
Less tr_man 11 Stu_den_ts - Data 67 Less tr_Ian 11 Stug:len_ts - Data Less tr_1an 11 Stugen_ts - Data
6 7 1
Increased +2 7
15
Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White
%N o "y, o Ty, Eall Y
£1% £ £ £
Yellow No Performance Color No Performance Color Green
97 0 Less tr_1an 11 Studen_ts - Data 45
3
Declined -4 1 Maintained 0 Declined -2 3
62 19 337
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended
l 2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year
l 2017 2018 2019
73 49

Conclusions based on this data

1. Need to review suspenston policies/procedures

2. e showed a deciine in overall In suspensions from7 3to 4 9

3. student with Disabilities 1s the only group to have showed an increase In suspensions

Schoo! Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 38 of 65

West Cottonwood Jurior High School




Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school's goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject
Language Arts

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase academic Proficiency and Support Learning

Goal 1

Increase the percentage of students grade 5-8 reading at grade level or above with sufficient
accuracy and fluency to support comprehension by 3%

Identified Need

Funding will be used toward intervention classes and para educators Our interventions will be
geared to our most at-risk students, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged and Students with
Disabilities

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metric/indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome
Increase student achievement  Star Reading Assessment Increase 3% or more
on STAR Reading =39% Star Reading Assessment =
Increase student achievement  SBAC State Assessment 41%
on SBAC Testing =49 75% SBAC State Assessment =
52 75%
IReady Results
5th=23% IReady Goal
6th=32% 5th=25%
7th=25% 6th=35%
8th=33% 7th=28%
8th=36%

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activites Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All students grade 5-8

Strategy/Activity

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




IReady Intervention/Excel Intervention for 5th grade/Curriculum Coaches Grades 5-8/Purchase
curriculum/Intervention materials/Intervention Teacher/Professional Development/Improve
technology and software/EL Liaison/

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

15000 00 Lottery Instructional Matenals
4000-4999 Books And Supplies
IReady Subscription

2000 00 Lottery Instructional Matenals

4000-4999 Books And Supplies
Library Books

2600 00 Lottery Instructional Matenals
4000-4999 Books And Supplies
Flocabulary/Spelling City Programs

Local Categorical
4000-4999 Books And Supplies

66402 00 LCFF - Supplemental
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salares
Instructional Assistants

115688 00 Title | Part A Allocation
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries
Curnculum/Instructional Coaches

2000 00 LCFF - Supplemental
2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries
EL Liaison/EL Parent support

Annual Review

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school i1s in the first year of
implementing the goal, an analysis Is not required and this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

West Cottonwood incorporated an invention online program (IReady) for all students Additionally
we incorporated Excel reading class for all students in grade levels 5 and 6 In addition we have an
intervention teacher to help facilitate the intervention pieces for both math and ELA for 5th and 6th
grades

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



o ——7—————_—_—.__

Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

Based on STAR Reading assessment the following percentages were reported with student in the
benchmark category Grade 5 -1%, Grade 6 -2%, Grade 7 0% change, Grade 8 -11%

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis Identify where those changes can
be found in the SPSA

It 1s West Cottonwood Junior High's goal to roll out the Excel reading programs in all grade levels In
the future

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’'s goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject
Math

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase Academic Proficiency and Support Learning

Goal 2

Increase the percentage of students grades 5-8 meeting or exceeding grade level math standards
by 3%

Identified Need

West Cottonwood Junior High has a need for para educators to support interventions and lower the
student teacher ratio  Our interventions are geared to meeting the needs of our most at-risk
students Socioeconomically Disadvantaged and Students with Disabilities

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metric/indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome
STAR Math assessment - STAR Math assessment Increase by 3% from last year
students meeting or exceeding  results=49% of students
standard grades 5-8 met or exceeded STAR Math assessment
CAASPP/SBAC Testing standards results= 52% of students
results-students meeting or grades 5-8 met or exceeded
exceeding standard CAASPP/SBAC Testing standards
IReady Results- results=41 25% of students
grade 5-8 met or exceeded CAASPP/SBAC Testing
standards results=44 25% of students
grade 5-8 met or exceeded
IReady results standards
5th grade=15%
6th grade=18% IReady goal
7th grade=20% 5th grade=18%
8th grade=26% 6th grade=21%

7th grade=23%
8th grade=29%

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activiies Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

School! Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




All students 5-8 grade

Strategy/Activity

I-Ready Intervention/ Curriculum and Instructional Coaches/Intervention Teacher/ Instructional
Aides/Instructional Aids

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

66402 00 Local Categorical
2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries
Instructional Assistants

115688 00 Title | Part A Allocation
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries
Currniculum/Instructional Coaches

Annual Review

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school Is In the first year of
Implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall iImplementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

Teacher incorporate the IReady math program in their classes weekly Teacher are able to
customize learning to meet the specific needs of each student thus allowing students to regain
unlearned skill sets

Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

Students who met or exceeded grade level standards on CAASPP for the 2017- 2018 Grade 5 =
26 26 Grade 6 32 59, Grade 7 44 00, Grade 8 35 79 Students who met or exceeded grade level
standards on CAASPP for the 2018- 2019 Grade 5 = 30 62 Grade 6 40 69, Grade 7 48 27, Grade
8 54 19 When comparing the two years it was found that grade 5 made a 4 36% growth, grade 6
made a 8 1% growth grade 7 made 4 27% growth, and grade 8 made a 18 4% growth Overall
grades 5- 8 made an 8 47% gains in growth What a success!

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis Identify where those changes can
be found in the SPSA

Teachers will examine IReady scores and adjust targeted objectives that are specific to each
students needs to help reclaim missing skill sets

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject

Communication

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase Effective Communication/Connectedness and Promote a Positive Culture/Climate

Goal 3

Increase home, community, and school communication and dissemination of school information
through School Website App with 50% or more parents downloading the App We will continue
using other social media sites such as Facebook and the use of auto dialers to disseminate
information as well

Identified Need
Align goal with LCAP and to increase parent involvement

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome
Follow up Parent Survey Current Parent Survey Results  Positive follow-up survey
Follow up Site Council Parent Feedback/Comments results

feedback Positive Parent Feedback
Follow up Parent study session

feedback

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All students grade 5th-8th grade

Strategy/Activity

Parent Survey/ Parent Meetings/Site Council Discussion and Feedback/Newsletter/Reader
Board/emails/All Calls/Website/Facebook/Positive Phone Calls home/Back to School Night/Open
House

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

100 00 Local Categorical
4000-4999 Books And Supplies
Parent Surveys

1500 00 LCFF - Supplemental
2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries
Instructional Assistant - Website Update/Set up

0

Positive Teacher phone calls home
0

Principal's Monthly Newsletter Home
0

Back to School Night/Open House
0

Parent All Calls-Auto Dialer
0

Website/Facebook/emails

Reader Board/Student Recognition/Schedule of
Events

Annual Review

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school s in the first year of
implementing the goal, an analysis Is not required and this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall mplementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategles/activities to achieve the articulated goal

West Cottonwood Junior high implemented student surveys using Google doc, All Call through
Aeries Communicate, Monthly newsletters, Emails via Aeries Communicate Additionally teacher
emall weekly grade reports to parents

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

There were no major difference to this goal It was implemented with success

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or
strategles/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis Identify where those changes can
be found In the SPSA

There were no changes made to this goal

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject

LEA/LCAP Goal

Goal 4

Identified Need

Annual Measurable Outcomes
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school's strategies/activities Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

Strategy/Activity
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding

source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

School! Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




T AsENoA

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject

LEA/LCAP Goal
Goal 5

Identified Need

Annual Measurable Outcomes
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school's strategies/activities Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

Strategy/Activity
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding

source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High Schoo!




Budget Summary

Complete the table below Schools may include additional information Adjust the table as needed The Budget Summary
Is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and
Improvement (CSI)

Budget Summary
Description Amount
Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application $
Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI $
Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals In the SPSA $387,380 00

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

List the additional Federal programs that the school 1s including in the schoolwide program Adjust the table as needed If
the school 1s not operating a Title | schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted

Federal Programs Allocation ($)

Title | Part A Allocation ’ . $231,376 00

Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school $231,376 00

List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program Duplicate the
table as needed

State or Local Programs Aliocation ($)
7 $0 00

LCFF - Supplemental $69,902 00

Local Categorical - 7 . $66,502 00

Lottery Instructional Matenials | $19,600 00

Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school $156,004 00

Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school $387,380 00

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School ‘



Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan

The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source

Funding Source Amount

Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source

LCFF - Supplemental
Local Categoni:al
Lottery Instructional Matenals

Title | Part A Allocation

Expenditures by Budget Reference

Budget Reference
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salares
2000-2999 Classified Personne! Salanes

4000-4999 Books And Supplies

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source

Budget Reference Funding Source
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel LCFF - Supplemental
Salaries
2000-2999 Classified Personnel LCFF - Supplemental
Salaries
2000-2999 Classified Personnel . Local Categorical
Salaries
4000-4999 Books And Supplies Local Categorical
4000-4999 Books And Supplies Lottery Instructional Matenals

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 65

Balance
Amount |
000 |
69,902 00
66,502 00
19,600 00
231,376 00
Amount
297,778 00
69,902 00
19,700 00
Amount
000
66,402 00
3,500 00
66,402 00
100 00
19,600 00

West Cottonwood Junior High Schoo!



1000-1999 Certificated Personnel
Salaries

Expenditures by Goal

Goal Number
V Goal 1
Goal 2

Goal 3

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

‘Title | Part A Allocation

Page 51 of 65

231,376 00

Total Expenditures
203,690 00
182,090 00

1,600 00

West Cottonwood Junior High School




School Site Council Membership

Californta Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC) The SSC shall be
composed of the principal and representatives of teachers selected by teachers at the school, other school personnel
selected by other school personnel at the school, parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents, and, In
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school The current make-up of the SSC is as follows

1 School Principal
2 Classroom Teachers
2 Other School Staff

5 Parent or Community Members

Name of Members Role
Kara McNeely Vice Principal or Designee
Taylor Hyde Classroom Teacher
Ten Doty Classroom Teacher
Brittany Stevenson Other School Staff
Cecelia Swetland 7 Other School Staff
Lindsay Ballard Parent or Community Member
Lindsay Fernandez | Parent or Community Member
Suzanna Ramirez ¢ Parent or Community Member
Heather Gtppner Parent or Community Member
Kim Robertson ! Parent or Community Member

At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure party between (a) the principal, classroom
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a) At secondary schools there must
be, In addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students Members must
be selected by their peer group

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



Recommendations and Assurances

The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for
approval and assures the board of the following

The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law

The SSC reviewed Iits responsibilities under state law and district governing board polictes, including those board policies
relating to matenal changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval

The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan
Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name

State Compensatory Education Advisory Committee

Other School Site Council

The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such
content requirements have been met, including those found In district governing board policies and in the local educational
agency plan

This SPSA 1s based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance The actions proposed herein form a sound,
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance

This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on December 14, 2021

Attested
Principal, Mrs Terri Wnght on December 14, 2021

SSC Chairperson, Taylor Hyde on December 14, 2021

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Instructions

The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing
student achievement SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and
Accountability Plan process

The SPSA consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through
the consolidated application (ConApp), and for federal school Improvement programs, including
schoolwide programs, Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSl), Targeted Support and
Improvement (TSI), and Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to California
Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) This template Is designed to meet schoolwide program
planning requirements It also notes how to meet CSlI, TSI, or ATSI requirements, as applicable

California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to Improving student group performance
through the utilization of federal resources Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students The implementation
of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized
under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF)

The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet
the needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and Iifelong learning The
SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement
Consistent with EC 65001, the Schoolsite Council (SSC) 1s required to develop and annually review
the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing
needs and priorities, as applicable

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

The SPSA template meets the requirements of schoolwide planning (SWP). Each section also
contains a notation of how to meet CSl, TSI, or ATSI requirements.

Stakeholder Involvement

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Planned Strateqgies/Activities

Annual Review and Update

Budget Summary
Appendix A _Plan Requirements for Title | Schoolwide Programs

Appendix B Plan Requirements for Schools to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning
Requirements
Appendix C_Select State and Federal Programs

For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact
the Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde ca gov

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title | schoolwide planning, please contact the local
educational agency, or the CDE’s Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde ca gov

For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning
requirements (for CSI, TSI, and ATSI), please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support
Office at SISO@cde ca gov

Purpose and Description

Schools identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSl), Targeted Support and
Improvement (TSI), or Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI) must respond to the
following prompts A school that has not been identified for CSl, TSI, or ATSI may delete the Purpose
and Description prompts

Purpose

Briefly describe the purpose of this plan by selecting from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive
Support and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and
Improvement)

Description
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA requirements in alignment with the
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs

Stakeholder Involvement

Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is cnitical to the development of
the SPSA and the budget process Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory
groups, as applicable (e g , English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and
tribal organizations present in the community, as appropriate, etc ) and seek input from these
advisory groups In the development of the SPSA

The Stakeholder Engagement process Is an ongoing, annual process Describe the process used to
Involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update

[This section meets the requirements for TSI and ATS! ]

[When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall partner with the school in the development and
Implementation of this plan ]

Resource Inequities

Schools eligible for CSI or ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA-
and school-level budgeting as a part of the required needs assessment Identified resource inequities
must be addressed through implementation of the CS| or ATSI plan Briefly identify and describe any
resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment and summarize how the
identified resource inequities are addressed In the SPSA

[This section meets the requirements for CSI and ATS! If the school is not identified for CSI or ATSI
this section is not applicable and may be deleted ]

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review

In this section a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school This
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to
meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific
strategies and activities

Goal

State the goal A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all
strategies/activities are directed A goal answers the question What is the school seeking to achieve?

It can be helpful to use a framework for wrniting goals suchthe SMART approach ASMART
goal ts one that I1s Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound A level of specificity
Is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess whether it 1s
reasonably achievable Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a realistic
approach that supports student success

A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference

[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, improvement goals shall align to the goals,
actions, and services in the LEA LCAP ]

Identified Need

Describe the basis for establishing the goal The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable
state data, including local and state indicator data from the California School Dashboard (Dashboard)
and data from the School Accountability Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by
districts to measure pupil achievement

[Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements]

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating
progress toward accomplishing the goal A school may identify metrics for specific student groups
Include In the baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available
at the time of adoption of the SPSA The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator
includes data reported in the annual update of the SPSA In the subsequent Expected Outcome
column, identify the progress the school intends to make in the coming year

[When completing this section for CSI the school must include school-level metrics related to the
metrics that led to the school’s identification ]

[When completing this section for TSI/ATSI the school must include metrics related to the specific
student group(s) that led to the school’s identification |

Strategies/Activities
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the described goal A school may
number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of reference

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with state
priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the local
educational agency’s budgeting, its local control and accountability plan, and school-level budgeting,
if applicable

[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, this plan shall include evidence-based
interventions and align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA LCAP ]

[When completing this section for CSI and ATSI, this plan shall address through implementation,
identified resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-
level budgeting ]

Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the strategies/activities by indicating “All Students”
or listing one or more specific student group(s) to be served

[This section meets the requirements for CSI ]

[When completing this section for TSI and ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received the
TSI or ATSI designation For TSI, a school may focus on all students or the student group(s) that led
fo identification based on the evidence-based interventions selected |

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

For each strategy/activity, list the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures for
the school year to implement these strategies/activities Specify the funding source(s) using one or
more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, as applicable), Other
State, and/or Local

Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the
expenditure first appears in the SPSA Pursuant to Education Code, Section 64001(g)(3)(C),
proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or
governing body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s budgeting,
its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable

[This section meets the requirements for CSI, TSI, and ATSI ]

[NOTE Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI In addition,
funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff |

Annual Review

In the following Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and
what actually occurred as well as significant changes In strategies/activities and/ or expenditures from
the prior year This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates
to the plan

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School



Analysis

Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal Respond to the prompts as
instructed Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school is In the first year of
implementing the goal the Annual Review section Is not required and this section may be deleted

e Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of
the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

e Briefly describe any major differences between either/or the intended implementation or the
budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

e Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes,
metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable Identify where those changes
can be found in the SPSA

[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual
measurable outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the CSI, TSI, or ATS!
planning requirements CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the
Instructions For example, as a result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a
goal(s), see the Goal section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements |

Budget Summary

In this section a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures
described in the SPSA The Budget Summary 1s required for schools funded through the ConApp and
that receive federal funds for CSI If the school Is not operating a Title | schoolwide program this
section Is not applicable and may be deleted

From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distnibute funds across its schools that meet the criteria
for CSI to support implementation of this plan In addition, the LEA may retain a portion of its total
allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to serving schools eligible for
CSlI

Budget Summary
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary as
follows

e Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application This amount s the
total amount of funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year The
school year means the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated

e Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA This amount is the total of
the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities
reflected in the SPSA To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are
Iisted in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once

A school receiving federal funds for CSI should complete the Budget Summary as follows

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 65 West Cottonwood Jurior High School




e Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI This amount is the total
amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA

[NOTE Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for TSI or ATS! In addition, funds
for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff |

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Appendix A: Plan Requirements

Schoolwide Program Requirements
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide
program plan The requirements below are for planning reference

A school that operates a schoolwide program and recelves funds allocated through the ConApp 1s
required to develop a SPSA The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the
school through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the SSC The content of a
SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement

Requirements for Development of the Plan
I The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions

A Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the school’s
goals contained in the SPSA

1 The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall

a Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state prionties as
noted In Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by all indicators described Iin
Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupll
performance against state-determined long-term goals The school may include data
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes (described in the
Identified Need), and

b Be based on academic achievement information about all students in the school,
including all groups under §200 13(b)(7) and migratory children as defined in section
1309(2) of the ESEA, relative to the State's academic standards under §200 1 to—

I Help the school understand the subjects and skills for which teaching and
learning need to be iImproved, and

n Identify the specific academic needs of students and groups of students who are
not yet achieving the State's academic standards, and

n Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the components of the
schoolwide program under §200 28

v Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the participation of
individuals who will carry out the schoolwide program plan

v Document how It conducted the needs assessment, the results it obtained, and
the conclusions it drew from those results

B ldentification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of the SPSA
and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA (described in the
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review and Update)

Requirements for the Plan
Il The SPSA shall include the following

A Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student groups as
identified through the needs assessment

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 65 West Cottonwood Jumior High School



B Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and Activities)

1 A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to address school
needs, including a description of how such strategies will--

a provide opportunities for all children including each of the subgroups of students to
meet the challenging state academic standards

b use methods and instructional strategies that
| strengthen the academic program In the school,
1 Increase the amount and quality of learning time, and

m provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs,
activities, and courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education

c Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly the needs of those at
rnisk of not meeting the challenging State academic standards, so that all students
demonstrate at least proficiency on the State’s academic standards through
activities which may include

| strategies to improve students’ skills outside the academic subject areas,

I preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education and
the workforce,

m implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem
behavior,

v professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals,
and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data, and

v strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood
education programs to local elementary school programs

C Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing

board or body of the local educational agency (may include funds allocated via the
ConApp, federal funds for CSI, any other state or local funds allocated to the school), to
address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state prionties, including
identifying resource inequities, which may include a review of the LEAs budgeting, it's
LCAP, and school-level budgeting, If applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and
Budget Summary) Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a
single cost objective

D A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met (described In

the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual Review and Update)

1 Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the schoolwide
program, using data from the State's annual assessments and other indicators of
academic achievement,

2 Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in increasing the
achievement of students in meeting the State's academic standards, particularly for
those students who had been furthest from achieving the standards, and

3 Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to ensure
continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




E A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, review,
and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in Stakeholder Involvement
and/or Strategies/Activities)

F A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who experience
difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic achievement standards will be
provided with effective, timely additional support, including measures to

1 Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis, and
2 Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to those students

G For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool students in
the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school

H A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components
(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities)

| A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC (described in
the Strategies/Activities)

Authority Cited S Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200 25-26, and
200 29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(1)-(m) and 1118(b) of the ESEA EC sections 6400 et seq

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Appendix B:

Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning
Requirements
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting Federal School Improvement Planning

Requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at
SISO@cde ca gov

Comprehensive Support and Improvement

The LEA shall partner with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and
parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes,
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Stakeholder Involvement)

The CSI plan shall

1 Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual
Review and Update, as applicable),

2 Include evidence-based interventions (Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and Update, as
applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U S Department
of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” at
https //iwww?2 ed gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment pdf),

3 Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable), and

4 |dentify resource Inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, to
be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual
Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review and Update, as
applicable)

Authority Cited Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(1), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA

Targeted Support and Improvement

In partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and parents)
the school shall develop and implement a school-level TSI plan to improve student outcomes for each
subgroup of students that was the subject of identification (Stakeholder Involvement)

The TSI plan shall

1 Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual
Review and Update, as applicable), and

2 Include evidence-based interventions (Planned Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and
Update, as applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U S
Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments”
https //www?2 ed gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment pdf )

Authority Cited Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(1), 1111(c)(4)(B) and 1111(d)(2) of the ESSA

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
A school identified for ATSI shall

1 Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting,
which will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Goal, ldentified Need,
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review
and Update, as applicable)

Authority Cited Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(1), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA
Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement

Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall
develop a SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds
(EC Section 64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019)

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP)
and all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan 1s able to demonstrate that the
legal requirements for each of the plans 1s met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716,
effective January 1, 2019)

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option
are avallable in the LCAP Instructions

Authority Cited EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January
1, 2019

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 65 West Cottonwood Juntor High School




Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs

For a list of active programs, please see the following links:

Programs included on the Consolidated Application https //www cde ca gov/fg/aa/co/

ESSA Title |, Part A School Improvement https //www cde ca gov/sp/swi/t1/schoolsupport asp
Avallable Funding https //www cde ca gov/fg/fo/af/

Developed by the California Department of Education, January 2019

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 65 West Cottonwood Junior High School




T aceNoa

School Year - 2021-22

School Plan for Student Achievement
(SPSA) Template

Instructions and requirements for com

pleting the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template
Instructions
County-District-School Schoolsite Council Local Board Approval
School Name ‘ (CDS) Code (SSC) Approval Date Date
North Cottonwood © 45699550111393
School

Purpose and Description

Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and
Improvement)

Schoolwide Program

Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in ahignment with the
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs

The school 1s committed to improving the academic and social emotional development of all
students through schoolwide targeted interventions and programs

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Table of Contents

SPSA Title Page
Purpose and Description
Table of Contents
Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
Data Analysis
Surveys
Classroom Observations
Analysis of Current Instructional Program
Stakeholder Involvement
Resource Inequities
School and Student Performance Data
Student Enroliment
CAASPP Results
ELPAC Results
Student Population
Overall Performance
Academic Performance
Academic Engagement
Conditions & Climate
Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
Goal 1
Goal 2
Goal 3
Goal 4
Goal 5
Budget Summary
Budget Summary
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds
Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
Expenditures by Funding Source
Expenditures by Budget Reference
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
Expenditures by Goal
School Site Council Membership
Recommendations and Assurances

School Pian for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 66

J

- a a
0 Hh O 0 0O N N DB DA DN DA DAN A A

a0 OGO AT AN RN DN WWWWNNDN
-h(a)l\)—-\—\—\—\—-\OOO\lb)OO')NI\)O\I—\O

North Cottonwood School




Instructions 55
Instructions Linked Table of Contents 55
Purpose and Description 56
Stakeholder Involvement 56
Resource Inequities 56

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review 57
Annual Review 58
Budget Summary 59
Appendix A Plan Requirements 61
Appendix B 64
Appendix C Select State and Federal Programs 66

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components

Data Analysis
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis Is provided

Surveys

This section provides a description of surveys (1 e, Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-
year, and a summary of results from the survey(s)

Student, parent and teacher surveys will be used In the spring as part of the LCAP process to get
stakeholder feedback on the overall performance of North Cottonwood School and the Cottonwood
Elementary School District

Classroom Observations

This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during
the school-year and a summary of findings B

Classroom observations are done on a regular basis by the principal, counselor and curriculum
coaches to ensure quality teaching and learning Teachers are also allowed to do peer observations
with the approval of the principal to better collaborate and learn from their fellow teachers

Analysis of Current Instructional Program

The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of
1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs) In conjunction with the needs assessments, these
categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterze current instructional
practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are

« Not meeting performance goals
» Meeting performance goals
« Exceeding performance goals

Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on
verifiable facts Avoid vague or general descriptions Each successive school plan should examine the
status of these findings and note progress made Special consideration should be given to any
practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical
programs

Standards, Assessment, and Accountability

Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA)
North Cottonwood School and the Cottonwood Elementary School District consistently uses state
and local assessment data to drive instruction, intervention and curriculum development at all grade
levels and for all student groups

Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction
(EPC) ) ) )

Teacher have bi-monthly collaboration days bult into the school schedule to review student data and
make Inprovements in curriculum and instruction The district also pays North teachers to work two
days in the summer to review student data and make the necessary changes to curriculum and
instruction to improve student performance

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 66 North Cottonwood School




T AceNDA

Staffing and Professional Development

Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA)
All teachers and support staff meet the requirements for highly qualifed staff (ESEA)

Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e g , access to instructional
materials training on SBE-adopted instructional maternials) (EPC)

All teachers are fully credentialed in their required subject area Noﬁh Cottohwood School has to
teachers that are intern teachers in therr designated credential areas

Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional
needs (ESEA)

Staff development I1s focused and aligned to the content standards, studentv performance data and

professional needs The Cottonwood Elementary School District is committed to having all staff
trained in the Professional Learning Communities and Capturing Kids Hearts

Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e g , use of content experts and instructional
coaches) (EPC)

The Cottonwood Elementary School District has two fuIItlmc-zﬁlnstructlonaI support coaches, one In
ELA and one in mathematics, to supply ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers

Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K-8]) and department (grades
nine through twelve) (EPC)

Teacher have bi-monthly collaboration days built into the school schedule to review student data and
make inprovements in curriculum and instruction Most of these days involve grade level

collaboration but there are also assigned days for vertical collaboration with other grade levels
Teaching and Learning

Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA)
‘Curriculum, instruction and materials are all aligned to the content and performance standards

Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K—8)
(EPC)

Each grade' Ieveluméets or exceeds the recommended daily instructional minutes for ELA and
mathematics

Lesson pacing schedule (K-8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention
courses (EPC)

Grade level collaboration ensures a consistent lesson pacing schedule among all teachers Whole

school ELA intervention time is built into the regular school day Mathematics intervention 1s
embedded within the classroom day, as needed

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Avallability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA)
All students have access to standards-based instructional matenals {

Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional matenials, including intervention materials,
and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC)

All curriculum 1s state-adopted and all other instructional materials are standards-based and
approprate for all student groups

Opportunity and Equal Educational Access

Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards
(ESEA)

All students have equal access and service within the general educational setting to meet standards
Interventions within the classroom are designed to help all students but especially those
underperforming students

Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement

The Cottonwood Elementary School District uses evidence-based educational practices including
but not limited to Professional Learning Communities, Capturing Kids Hearts, Second Step, etc to
raise student achievement Bi-monthly collaboration and instructional coaches in ELA and
mathematics help to insure the use of such educational practices

Parental Engagement

Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students
(ESEA)

North Cottonwood School and the Cottonwood Elementary School District are committed to
supplying/retaining all the necessary resources within and outside the school to assist under-

achieving students

Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and
students In secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs

(5 Califormia Code of Regulations 3932)
The Cottonwood Elementary School District involves all stakeholders in the LCAP process including
the Consolidated Application

Funding

Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards
(ESEA)

North Cottonwood School uses Title 1, Title II, Title IV funds and supplemental state funds to
improve student performance Academic Coaches, reading interventions, and small group
instructions are some of the actions/services to meet underperforming students

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Fiscal support (EPC)
North Cottonwood School I1s funded based on student population

Stakeholder Involvement

How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this
SPSA/Annual Review and Update?

Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update

The School Site Counsel (SSC) 1s made up of the school principal, four classroom teachers, two
school staff member and six parents Parental involvement i1s done on a volunteer basis The SSC
reviews the academic data and sets goals based on the data The group meets monthly, throughout
the school year, to discuss the progress made towards the goals and adjust the actions and services
accordingly At the end of the year, the group determines goals for the next school year

The SSC also provide feedback to the overall District Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)
actions and services Student, staff, and parent surveys are distributed to gain feedback for our
plans The feedback Is reviewed by the principal and shared with the SSC The plans are adjusted
based on the annual feedback that i1s received and the local/state data results

Resource Inequities

Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs
assessment, as applicable

We do not have any resource inequities as a result of the required needs assessment

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 66 North Cottonwood School



School and Student Performance Data

Student Enroliment
Enroliment By Student Group

Student Enrollment by Subgroup
Student Group Percent of Enroliment Number of Students |
18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21
American Indian 4 92% 6 83% 7 0% 26 36 38
African American 114% 0 95% 04%
Asian 076% 057% 06% 4 3
Filipino % 0% %
Hispanic/Latino 18 37% 17 65% 17 0% 97 93 92
Pacific Islander 0 38% 057% 04% 2 3 2
White 65 72% 64 71% 67 5% 347 341 365
Multiple/No Response 6 44% 417% 31% 34 22 17
Total Enrollment 528 527 541
Student Enroliment
Enroliment By Grade Level
Student Enrollment by Grade Level
Grade Number of Students

18-19 19-20 20-21
Kindergarten 123 126 124
Grade 1 121 103 110
Grade 2 87 107 101
Grade 3 100 92 115
Grade 4 97 99 91
Total Enroliment 528 527 541

Conclusions based on this data.

1 There was an increase in student enroliment in 20-21
2 ourtwo significant student groups are White and Hispanic/Latino

3. There was a slight decrease in Hispanic/Latino enroliment and an increase in White and Native American
enrollment

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 66 North Cottonwood School




School and Student Performance Data

Student Enroliment
English Learner (EL) Enroliment

English Learner (EL) Enroliment
Student Group Number of Students Percent of Students
18-19 19-20 20-21 18-19 19-20 20-21
English Learners 16 13 15 30% 25% 28%
Fluent English Proficient (FEP) 1 7 3 02% 13% 06%
Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) 0 5 0 0 0% 313% 00%

Conclusions based on this data.

1. Our English Learner population has stayed about the same for the past three years
2. Lessthan 3% of our total population are English Learners

3 No EL students were reclassified in 20-21

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 66 North Cottonwood School



School and Student Performance Data

CAASPP Results
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)

Overall Participation for All Students
Grade | # of Students Enrolled | # of Students Tested # of Students with % of Enrolled Students

Level 17-18 | 18419 | 20-21 | 1718 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 90 96 121 89 94 110 89 94 110 98 9 979 909
Grade 4 118 106 87 117 102 80 117 102 80 99 2 96 2 920
All Grades | 208 202 208 206 196 190 206 196 190 99 97 913

The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table 1s not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability
purposes

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Overall Achievement for All Students
Grade | Mean Scale Score % Standard % Standard Met | % Standard Nearly | % Standard Not
Level |17.18|18-19|20-21|17-18|18-19|20-21|17-18 |18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 2445 (2401 (2414 12247| 957 |1909|3596|2553|2182|3146|3298(3000|1011|3191|2909
Grade 4 2447 | 2455 (2445 11538|2059|1500|2564|2647[1875|1709|2059|3125|4188(3235|3500
All Grades | N/A | N/A | N/A |1845]1531|1737|3010/2602[2053|2330|2653)|3053[2816|32 143158

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Reading
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 2697 | 1383 | 1364 | 5281 | 5213 | 6273 | 2022 | 3404 | 2364
Grade 4 2222 | 1863 | 1750 | 4359 | 5588 | 6750 | 3419 | 2549 | 1500
All Grades 2427 | 1633 | 1526 | 4757 | 5408 | 6474 | 2816 | 2959 | 2000

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data i1s available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Writing
Producing clear and purposeful writing
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 1718 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 2360 8 51 818 5955 | 6064 | 6727 1685 | 3085 | 2455
Grade 4 940 1569 7 50 5214 | 5196 | 5875 | 3846 | 3235 | 3375
All Grades 16 53 12 24 7 89 55634 | 5612 | 6368 | 2913 | 3163 | 2842

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was tssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data Is available to report for this year

Listening
Demonstrating effective communication skills
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level

1718 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 1718 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 2247 | 1383 | 1000 | 6517 | 6596 | 7455 | 1236 | 2021 15 45
Grade 4 1282 | 1373 | 1000 | 6838 | 6863 | 7000 | 1880 | 1765 | 2000
All Grades 1699 | 1378 | 1000 | 6699 | 6735 | 7263 | 1602 | 1888 | 1737

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data is avallable to report for this year

Research/Inquiry
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
1718 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 3820 | 1064 | 1909 | 4831 | 5319 | 6182 | 1348 | 3617 | 1909
Grade 4 1538 | 1863 7 50 5641 | 5686 | 8250 | 2821 | 2451 10 00
All Grades 2524 | 1480 | 1421 | 5291 | 5510 | 7053 | 2184 | 3010 | 1526

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 schoo! year, thus no data I1s available to report for this year

Conclusions based on this data

1. Fewer stuaen{s tésted than in brewous years (91% co}n—pvared to é7% in 18-19) This s mos} likely due to COVID
related matters)

2 There was a considerable improvement in students at or near standards in Investigating, analyzing and presenting
information

3. Writing 1s an area of weakness relative to the other domains

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 66 North Cottonwood School



School and Student Performance Data

CAASPP Results
Mathematics (All Students)

Overall Participation for All Students

Grade | #of Students Enrolled | # of Students Tested # of Students with % of Enrolled Students

Level 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 90 96 121 89 94 110 89 94 110 989 97 9 909
Grade 4 118 106 87 117 102 80 117 102 80 99 2 96 2 920
All Grades | 208 202 208 206 196 190 206 196 190 99 97 913

* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table 1s not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability

purposes

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was tssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data is available to report for this year

Overall Achievement for All Students

Grade Mean Scale Score % Standard % Standard Met | % Standard Nearly | % Standard Not

Level |47.18|18-19|20-21(17-18|18-19|20-21|17-18|18-19|20-21|17-18 |18-19|20-21|17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 2447 2407 (2419 |1910| 745 |1000|44 942872|3364|2135/2872|3000|1461/351126 36
Grade 4 2455 (2460 (2444 | 684 | 980 | 750 |29 06|27 45|27 50|37 61|4118|3875(2650|2157|2625
AllGrades | N/A | NJA | N/A |1214] 867 | 895 [3592(28 06|31 05|3058|3520|3368|2136{2806 2632

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Concepts & Procedures
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 29 21 1383 1455 | 4944 | 4468 61 82 2135 | 4149 2364
Grade 4 1880 | 2157 1500 3590 | 4804 5500 | 4530 | 3039 3000
All Grades 2330 17 86 1474 | 4175 | 4643 58 85 3495 | 3571 26 32

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data I1s available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 12 of 66

North Cottonwood School




Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 26 97 957 1636 | 6067 | 5745 | 5364 | 1236 | 3298 | 3000
Grade 4 940 980 625 56 41 5686 | 5500 | 3419 | 3333 | 3875
All Grades 16 99 969 12 11 5825 | 5714 | 54 21 2476 | 3316 | 3368

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2018-2020 school year, thus no data is available to report for this year

Communicating Reasoning
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard
Grade Level
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 1718 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
Grade 3 3371 1596 | 2000 | 5506 | 5106 | 6273 | 1124 | 3298 | 1727
Grade 4 1026 | 1863 | 1000 | 5385 | 4804 | 6125 | 3590 | 3333 | 2875
All Grades 2039 | 1735 | 1579 | 5437 | 4949 | 62 11 2524 | 3316 | 2211

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data ts available to report for this year

Conclusions based on this data-
1. There was a considerable drop in participation percentage (91% compared to 97% in 18-19)
2. Grade 3 demonstrated achievement improvement overall andiln individual domains over 18-19

3 Inthe three domains, Problem Solving & Modeling/Data analysis is a relative weakness, while there 1s significant
Improvement in Communicating Reasoning and Concepts & Procedures

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 66 North Cottonwood School




School and Student Performance Data
ELPAC Results

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students
Grade Overall Oral Language Written Language Stub(lizrtze'; e(')sft ed
Level |™i7-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 1819 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 2021
K * * * % * * * * 0
1 % * * * * * * * * * 5 *
2 * * % * * * * * * * * *
3 x % * * « * * * * * * 5
4 x x * * * * * * * * * *
All Grades 20 11 11

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data I1s available to report for this year

Overall Language
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students
?_::,i? Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Tgftaslttll::::::r }
17-1818-19,20-21|17-18|18-19 /20-2117-1818-19|20-21{17-18 | 18-1920-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21

K * » * * " * » * *
1 * » * * * * * * * * * * "
2 * - * * " * * * * - " * "
3 * * * . * » " * * " * *
4 * * . * * " * * * " * * .

AllGrades| * (1818} 000 * 1454514545 * 3636|4545 * 000 | 909 | 20 11 11

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data Is available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Oral Language
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students
?_2?,:7 Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 T:ftasltzlgz‘t::r
17-1818-1920-2117-1818-19[20-21|17-1818-19|20-21 |17-18 | 18-19| 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21

K * * * * * * * * * *
1 * * * * . * % * * * x % *
2 * * * * * * * x * * N * *
3 . * - * * * % % % * * %
4 * * * * * * * x * * * " * *
AllGrades| * (3636|909 * |5455|6364| * 909 (2727 * 000|000 | 20 11 11

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was i1ssued which watved the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data i1s available to report for this year

Written Language
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students
?_:;?,1? Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Tgft:;lttl:;r:ltt):r
17-1818-19(20-2117-18 | 18-19 | 20-21|17-18 | 18-19| 20-21|17-18 | 18-19| 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21

K . . " * * * . .
1 » . " . . * * . . . . « «
2 . " * * * * * * * * * » * *
3 » * “ * . . * * * * . *
4 . . * . . * N . * . * * * *
AllGrades| * 000|000 | * |4545|1818| * |3636(4545( * (1818(3636| 20 11 11

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Listening Domain
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students
Grade Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Tgftz«gtt::;r:‘tt):r
Level 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
1 . * . * * * * * * . *
2 * " * * * * " " * * *
3 * * * - - * * * * *
4 " x " * * * * * " * > .
All Grades | 5500 | 4545 | 5455 * 54 55 | 4545 * 000 000 20 11 11

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 66 North Cottonwood Schootl



Speaking Domain
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students
Grade Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning T:;asltggg:‘l:ser
Level
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 18-19 | 20-21
K * * * * * * * *
1 * * %* * * * * * * * *
2 * * * * * * * * * * *
3 * * * * * * * * * *
4 * * * * * * * * * * *
AllGrades | 6500 | 3636 | 10 00 * 6364 | 9000 * 000 000 20 11 10
2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the

2019-2020 school year, thus no data is avallable to report for this year

Reading Domain
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students

E;?,:f Well Developed Somewhathoderater Beginning T:ftasltggg:ltt):r
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
1 * * x * * * * * » *
2 * * * * " * * x * * * *
3 x * * N * * * * * *
4 * * * * * * * * * * *
All Grades * 000 000 * 8182 | 5455 * 1818 | 4545 20 11 11

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the
2019-2020 school year, thus no data 1s available to report for this year

Wniting Domain
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students
?_ :;:7 Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning T:ftasltﬂgg:ll:se r
17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21 | 17-18 | 18-19 | 20-21
1 * * * * * * * * * * *
2 * * * * * x * x * * .
3 * * " * x * * * x N
4 * * * * * * * * * * *
All Grades * 909 909 | 6000 | 7273 | 6364 * 1818 | 2727 20 11 11

2019-20 Data
Executive Order N-30-20 was 1ssued which walved the assessment, accountabiliity, and reporting requirements for the
2018-2020 school year, thus no data is available to report for this year

Conclusions based on this data:
1.

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 66 North Cottonwood School

.




School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 17 of 66

North Cottonwood School




S acenoa

School and Student Performance Data

Student Population

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of vald and reliable data that would have been included

in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021

This section provides information about the school’s student population

2020-21 Student Population

Total Socioeconomically English Foster
Enroliment Disadvantaged Learners Youth
541 53.8 2.8 1.5

This 1s the total number of
students enrolled

This 1s the percent of students
who are eligible for free or

reduced priced meals, or have
parents/guardians who did not
recetve a high school diploma

This 1s the percent of students
who are learning to communicate
effectively in English, typically
requinng instruction in both the
English Language and in their
academic courses

This 1s the percent of students
whose well-being 1s the
responsibility of a court

2019-20 Enroliment for All Students/Student Group

Student Group Total Percentage
English Learners 15 28
Foster Youth 8 15
Homeless 2 04
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 291 538
Students with Disabilities 66 122

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity

Student Group Total Percentage
African American 2 04
American Indian or Alaska Native 38 70
Asian 3 06
Filipino
Hispanic 92 170
Two or More Races 17 31
Native Hawauan or Pacific Islander 2 04
White 365 675

Conclusions based on this data

1 Over half our student population is socioeconomically disadvantaged

2 Two or more races as well as American Indian are becoming significant subgroups

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 18 of 66

North Cottonwood School




o heeNmA

3 Students wnth— Disabilities and Foster Youth are increasing student éubgroupsv

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 66 North Cottonwood School



T AeENpA

School and Student Performance Data

Overall Performance

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
In these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

[ 2019 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students

§ - Aéadémi@: Perfofmance E o Ac‘ad‘emic Engagement I Conditions & Cllméte
English Language Arts Chronic Absenteeism Suspension Rate
. £ N
Orange Yellow Blue

Mathematics
AN

Orange

Conclusions based on this data.

1. We showed an Increase In growth in mathematics We showed a slight increase in English Language Arts
2 Chronic absenteeism needsito be an area of foéus v

3 Suspension rate Is an area of strength

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 66 North Cottonwood School




School and Student Performance Data

Academic Performance
English Language Arts

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021

California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
In these Dashboards

To meet this requrement, CDE has made avallable the Enroliment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the

College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Lowest

s TN g 2, o Highest
Performance 'lb‘:l Ii—l LD L2y L“:" Performance
Red Orange Yellow Green Blue

This section provides number of student groups in each color

l 2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report
| Re&d] 11 SIEDLL- | | [Green)

0 3 0 0

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment This measure is based on
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which Is taken annually by students in grades 3-8

and grade 11

[ 2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group
All Students English Learners Foster Youth
P ,, ,\ o
Orange No Performance Color No Performance Color

23 1 points below standard

Declined Significantly -16 5 points

184

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

7

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

7

Homeless

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

1

AN
Orange

36 2 points below standard
Declined -12 9 points

109

No Performance Color
83 8 points below standard

Declined Significantly -51 1 points

31

School Plan for Student Achtevement (SPSA)

Page 21 of 66

North Cottonwood School




[ 2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity

African American

American Indian

Asian

Filipino

No Performance Color

No Performance Color

No Performance Color

ju\

No Performance Color

34 6 points below standard

Declined Significantly -26 8
points

31

35 3 points below standard

Declined Significantly -20 5
points

14

0 Students

Less than 11 Students - Data Less than 11 Students - Data Less than 11 Students - Data 0 Students
Not Displayed for Privacy Not Displayed for Privacy Not Displayed for Privacy
1 5 1
Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White
N T, .
Orange No Performance Color No Performance Color Orange

16 points below standard

Declined -11 3 points

132

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school's performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-leve! standards on the English Language Arts assessment This measure Is based on
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3-8
and grade 11

2019 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners

Current English Learner Reclassified English Learners Enghish Only

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 0 Students

Displayed for Privacy

22 1 points below standard

Declhined Significantly -17 2 points
7

176

Conclusions based on this data:

1. we néed to focus on our interventions for students with disabilities and our IoW-lncome students

2. Our students with 2 or more races declined overall with English Language Arts
3. Overall, most of our school is at standard in ELA We need to show growth In all students to increase from an orange
on the dashboard to a green ELA interventions will continue to be a focus

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 66 North Cottonwood School




- hcEnpa

School and Student Performance Data

Academic Performance
Mathematics

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Lowest - v ) N, N, Highest

Performance ﬁ}":" IA_B. L‘I—l L2y LA Performance
Red Orange Yeliow Green Blue

This section provides number of student groups in each color

| 2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report

[ Red] ] { Slrivief- % . I Green)

i i

0 1 2 0

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school's performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment This measure I1s based on student
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which 1s taken annually by students in grades 3-8 and
grade 11

2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group

All Students English Learners Foster Youth
x ™ o
AN £ £
Orange No Performance Color No Performance Color

26 1 points below standard

Declined Significantly -15 4 points

184

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

7

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

7

Homeless

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

£

No Performance Color

Less than 11 Students - Data Not
Displayed for Privacy

1

AN
Orange

37 1 points below standard

Declined -13 1 points

109

No Performance Color
77 1 points below standard

Declined Significantly -38 6 points

31

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 23 of 66

North Cottonwood School




- hcENDA

l 2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity l

African American American Indian Asian Filipino I
No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color
Less than 11 Students - Data Less than 11 Students - Data Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy Not Drsplayed for Privacy Not Displayed for Pnvacy
1 5 1
Hispanic Two or More Races L Pacific Islander White
Yellow No Performance Color Yellow
24 1 points below standard 20 5 points below standard 24 9 points below standard
Declined Significantly -16 7 Declined Significantly -16 Declined -13 points
points points
31 14 132

This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment This measure I1s based on student
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which ts taken annually by students in grades 3-8 and
grade 11

2019 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners

Current English Learner Reclassified English Learners English Only

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 25 3 points below standard

Displayed for Privacy
Declined Significantly -15 5 points
7

176

Conclusions based on this data:

1. NOur White, Hlspér{lc, and twb or more ra;;es student grou}:s have shown an uicrease In mathematics
2. Our Students with Disabilities and Low Income student groups have shown a decrease in mathematics

3. 72% of ouf students are above, at or near standard in mathematics This is well above the state average

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 66 North Cottonwood School




School and Student Performance Data

Academic Performance
English Learner Progress

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enroliment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency
or maintaining the highest level

2019 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 1

English Learner Progress

P

No Performance Color

making progress towards English
language proficiency

Number of EL Students

Performance Level No Data

This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (1 e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level

2019 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results

Decreased Maintained ELPI Level 1, Maintained Progressed At Least
One ELPI Level 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H ELPI Level 4 One ELPI Level

Conclusions based on this data.
1.

School Pian for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 66 North Cottonwood School




School and Student Performance Data

Academic Performance
College/Career Measures Only Report

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021

California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021

The College/Career Measures Only Report is Expected in February 2021

Conclusions based on this data

1. This indicator 1s not appllcable to the elementary school level

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 66 North Cottonwood School




S acEwDA

School and Student Performance Data

Academic Engagement
Chronic Absenteeism

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent
data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Lowest ‘ R, > N, o Highest

Performance l:‘:" LA & £ 7 ‘l_zl Performance
Red Orange Yellow Green Blue

This section provides number of student groups n each color
! 2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report |

l IRed] ] L_A R atioe i ‘ l IGTeen I
1 1 3 0

This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled

2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group

All Students English Learners Foster Youth
!t«*“‘ I Y i } V }
Yellow No Performance Color No Performance Color
16 6 63 83
Declined -1 1 Declined -3 8 Increased +8 3
561 16 12
Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities
No Performance Color Red Yellow
Less than 11 Students - Data Not 216 141
Displayed for Privacy
Increased +17 Declined -5 6
2
320 64

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 66 North Cottonwood School




2019 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity

African American American Indian Asian Filipino
i " ﬁ iy E:} ﬁ ~,

No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color
Less than 11 Students - Data 367 Less than 11 Students - Data Less than 11 Students - Data
Not Displayed for Privacy 30 Not Displayed for Privacy Not Displayed for Privacy
8 4 0

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White
o, Sx Ny, 4,
£1% AN £ £1%
Yellow Orange No Performance Color Yellow
153 22 Less than 11 Students - Data 141

Not Displayed for Prnivacy
Declined -4 5 Dechned -7 7 Declined -1 6
2
98 50 369

Conclusions based on this data:

1. We have a high percentaée df studénts that aré chronlcally; absént While we ha;/e nﬁproved,wwe still have a lot of

work to do with chronic

absentee students

2. A deeper dive into the déta mcﬁcated that we need to target TK and kindergarten students for intervention and suppért
as they are the most chronically absent student groups within our district

3. The American Indian, Two or More Races, Hispanic, and Socioceconomically Disadvantaged student groups have a
very high chronic absenteeism rate As a staff, we will iIdentify the students that are chronically absent and see how
we can support them If we are able to decrease the chronically absent students, we should see an overall increase
in our English Language Arts and Mathematics academic indicator

School Plan for Student Achtevement (SPSA)

Page 28 of 66

North Cottonwood School



S hcEwDA

School and Student Performance Data

Academic Engagement
Graduation Rate Additional Report

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021
California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included

in these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enroliment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021

2021 Graduation Rate by Student Group
Number <_>f
Student Group Studttla]r;ts " g‘:;?:?.irt:; ﬁ?fmbs;:rf Grag:?etion
Graduation Graduates
Rate
All Students
English Learners
Foster Youth
Homeless

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students with Disabilities

African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Filipino

Hispanic

Native Hawauan or Pacific Islander

White

Two or More Races

Conclusions based on this data

1. Thisisa high school indicator and therefore {s not applicable to our dIStI’ICt'

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 29 of 66

North Cottonwood School




S acenoa

School and Student Performance Data

Conditions & Climate
Suspension Rate

Although both Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 130 suspended the publication of state indicators on the 2020 and 2021

California School Dashboards, these bills also required the reporting of valid and reliable data that would have been included
In these Dashboards

To meet this requirement, CDE has made available the Enrollment, Graduation Rate Additional Report and the
College/Career Measures Report data available All other reports are not available for 2020 and 2021, thus the most recent

data (2019 Fall) 1s provided here

The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order

Lo « “ .. "
towest £ AN £1N £

RN
/ ) Highest

Performance

Red Orange Yellow Blue
This section provides number of student groups in each color
[ 2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report —I
o i
l Red ] E ianoe ; ; l Green]
0 0

This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been
suspended at least once In a given school year Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once

2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group

All Students English Learners Foster Youth
£ £ £
Blue No Performance Color No Performance Color
03 0 0
Maintained 0 Maintained 0 Maintained 0
572 16 12
Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities
P Ul 2y
£ £ £
No Performance Color Blue Blue
Less tban 11 Students - Data Not 0 0
2
Declined -0 3 Declined -1 4
328 65
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 66 North Cottonwood School




2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity

African American American Indian Asian Filipino 1
!’: “ ., i . i -
No Performance Color No Performance Color No Performance Color
Less tr_1an 11 Studen_ts - Data o] Less than 11 Stu_dents - Data
8 4
Maintained 0
30
Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White
LR N = ey ra
£ £ £ £
Blue Blue No Performance Color Blue
0 0 Less than 11 Studen_ts - Data 05
2
Maintained 0 Maintained 0 Maintained 0
100 51 377
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended
l 2019 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year ]
l 2017 2018 2019
03 03

Conclusions based on this data

1.

Overall, we have a very low suspension rate

2. We will continue to refine our Positive Behavior Intervention Systems (PBIS), trauma-informed practices and social-
emotional learning, and research validated behavioral interventions

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

Page 31 of 66

North Cottonwood School




- AcENDA

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject
English Language Arts

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase Academic Proficiency and Support Learning

Goal 1

On the 2021/22 CAASPP, 5% more North Cottonwood third grade students will meet or exceed the
grade level language arts standards over the 2020/21 assessment results

Identified Need

To raise the level of proficiency on ELA standards as evidenced on the annual CAASPP
assessment

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome

CAASPP score results On the 20/21 CAASSP, 40% of On the 2021/22 CAASSP, 46%
third grade students met or of third grade students will
exceeded the grade level ELA  meet or exceed the grade level
standards ELA standards

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activites Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Ensure a minmum of 120 minutes of English Language Arts instruction daily

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

22,926 LCFF - Supplemental
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 66 North Cottonwood School




o heENoA

Strategy/Activity 2
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(ldentify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students Grades 1-4

Strategy/Activity

Ensure that each student receives 45 minutes of English Language Arts mterventldn services at
least 4x per week

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

86,135 LCFF - Supplemental
2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries

Strategy/Activity 3
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
1 fullime Curniculum Support Specialist to support classroom teachers

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

21,767 Title | Part A Allocation
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries

Strategy/Activity 4
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Use of the Data Collection System to monitor and assess student achievement on a regular basis

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 66 North Cottonwood School




T AcENDA

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

906 Lottery Instructional Matenials
4000-4999 Books And Supplies
EADMS Program/Software

Strategy/Activity 5
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Continue to use state adopted ELA curriculum

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (If Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

1952 Unrestricted
4000-4999 Books And Supplies
Wonders Curriculum

Strategy/Activity 6
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Fullime Libranan with comprehensive library services

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

14521 LCFF - Supplemental
2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries

Annual Review

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 66 North Cottonwood School

R .




- AceNDa

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school is In the first year of
implementing the goal, an analysis 1s not required and this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

Due to COVID school closures, we were unable to assess students in the spring 2020 and
therefore do not have an accurate baseline In 2020-21 we shifted our instructional model to meet
all student needs during the pandemic Instructional coaches became Distance Learning Instructors
and schoolwide interventions were not feasible due to social distancing and cohorting
requirements, staffing shortages Teachers provide interventions to struggling learners to the
amount feasible A significant increase in student social, emotional and behavioral needs was
observed and strategies implemented to mitigate the impact of stressors on student learning
However, the impacts of COVID were significant, Including negative impacts on student attendance
and continuity of instruction In addition, the ability of teachers to meet, collaborate, discuss and
review data and plan was negatively impacted during the pandemic

Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

North students have demonstrated a decrease in ELA achievement over the testing year 2019
However, due to COVID, we were unable to assess students in the spring of 2020 and therefore do
not have an accurate baseline Instructional gaps caused by school closures and COVID
quarantines have impacted student learning and continuity of instruction By necessity, we shifted

our instruction model to meet all student basic learning, health and emotional needs during the
pandemic

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or

strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis Identify where those changes can
be found in the SPSA

A goal of 5% improvement will remain, utihzing 2021's scores as a baseline when released A
reboot of the intervention program is being implemented Students are monitored on 5-6 week
formative assessment cycle Students not meeting standards receive targeted ELA interventions on
a 45 minutes a day, 4 days a week minimum

(Strategies 2 & 4)

The curriculum support specialist is working with teacher teams to support data review and analysis
and lesson planning Teachers are currently meeting twice a month as Professional Learning

Communities to analyze student data and adjust instruction to meet student needs (Strategies 3 &
4)

Schaool Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject
English Language Arts

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase Academic Proficiency and Support Learning

Goal 2

On the 2021/22 CAASPP, 5% more North Cottonwood fourth grade students will meet or exceed the
grade level language arts standards over the 2020/21 assessment results

Identified Need
To raise the level of proficiency on ELA standards as evidenced on the annual CAASPP
assessment

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome

CAASPP score results On the 2020/21 CAASSP, On the 2021/22 CAASSP,
33 75% of fourth grade 39%of fourth grade students
students met or exceeded will meet or exceed the grade
grade level ELA standards level ELA standards

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school's strategies/activities Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

Fourth Grade

Strategy/Activity
Ensure a minimum of 120 minutes of ELA instruction daily

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

22,926 LCFF - Supplemental
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 66 North Cottonwood School




T AGENDA

Strategy/Activity 2
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students Grades 1-4

Strategy/Activity

Ensure that each student receives 45 minutes of ELA Intervention services at a minimum of 4x per
week

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal Identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

86,135 LCFF - Supplemental
2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries

Strategy/Activity 3
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Fullime Curriculum Support Specialist to help classroom teachers

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as

applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

21,767 Title | Part A Allocation
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries

Strategy/Activity 4
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Use of the Data Collection System to monitor and assess student achievement on a regular basis

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 66 North Cottonwood School




S AcGENDA

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Siiurce(s)

906 [ ottery Instructional Matenials
<000-4999 Books And Supplies
t ADMS Program/Software

Strategy/Activity 5
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific s udent groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Continue to use state adopted ELA curriculum

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the prog >sed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, | ederal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Scurce(s)

1952 L nrestricted
4)00-4999 Books And Supplies
V 'onders Curriculum

Strategy/Activity 6
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific st ident groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Fulltme Libranian with comprehensive library service ;

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the prop: sed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, F =deral (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) So irce(s)

14521 LCFF - Supplemental
2(00-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries

Annual Review

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of t 5 North Cottonwood School




- acenoa

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goz | If the school Is In the first year of
Implementing the goal, an analysis i1s not required ar d this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall implementation of the strategies /activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

Due to COVID school closures, we were unable to z ssess students in the spring 2020 and
therefore do not have an accurate baseline In 2020 21 we shifted our instructional model to meet
all student needs during the pandemic Instructional coaches became Distance Learning Instructors
and schoolwide interventions were not feasible due o social distancing and cohorting
requirements, staffing shortages Teachers provide nterventions to struggling learners to the
amount feasible A significant increase in student sc z1al, emotional and behavioral needs was
observed and strategies implemented to mitigate the Impact of stressors on student learning
However, the impacts of COVID were significant, inc luding negative impacts on student attendance
and continuity of instruction In addition, the ability o teachers to meet, collaborate, discuss and
review data and plan was negatively impacted durin | the pandemic

Briefly describe any major differences between the ir tended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to iImplement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

North students have demonstrated a decrease in EL A achievement over the testing year 2019
However, due to COVID, we were unable to assess tudents in the spring of 2020 and therefore do
not have an accurate baseline Instructional gaps c: used by school closures and COVID
quarantines have impacted student learning and cor tinuity of instruction We have shifted our
instruction model to meet all student needs during th 2 pandemic

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, he annual outcomes, metrics, or

strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis ldentify where those changes can
be found in the SPSA

A goal of 5% improvement will remain, utihzing 2021 s scores as a baseline A reboot of the
Intervention program is being implemented Students are monitored on 5-6 week formative
assessment cycle Students not meeting standards r :ceive targeted ELA interventions on a 45
minutes a day, 4 days a week minimum

(Strategles 2 & 4)

The curriculum support specialist is working with teac her teams to support data review and analysis
and lesson planning Teachers are currently meeting twice a month as Professional Learning

Communities to analyze student data and adjust inst uction to meet student needs (Strategles 3 &
4)

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of ¢ 5 North Cottonwood School




o AcENDA

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject

Mathematics

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase Academic Proficiency and Support Learning

Goal 3

On the 2021/22 CAASPP, North Cottonwood 5% more third grade students will meet or exbeed the
grade level mathematics standards over the 2020/21 assessment results

Identified Need

To increase third grade student proficiency on the mathematics standards on the annual CAASPP
assessment

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome

CAASPP score results On the 2020/21 CAASSP, On the 2021/22 CAASSP, 49%
43 64% of third grade students  of third grade students will
met or exceeded grade level meet or exceed the grade level
mathematics standards mathematics standards

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Ensure a minimum of 60 minutes of mathematics instruction daily

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

22,926 LCFF - Supplemental
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 66 North Cottonwood School




S

Strategy/Activity 2
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Full ime Curnculum Support Specialist to support classroom teachers

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

21,767 Title | Part A Allocation
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries

Strategy/Activity 3
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Use of the Data Collection System to monitor and assess student achievement on a regular basis

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

906 Lottery Instructional Materals
4000-4999 Books And Supplies
EADMS Program/Software

Strategy/Activity 4

Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity

(Identify erther All Students or one or more specific student groups)
All Students

Strategy/Activity
Continue to use state adopted mathematics curriculum

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 66 North Cottonwood School

I e




S aceNoa

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

Annual Review 3
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school is in the first year of
implementing the goal, an analysis Is not required and this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

Due to COVID school closures, we were unable to assess students in the spring 2020 and
therefore do not have an accurate baseline In 2020-21 we shifted our instructional model to meet
all student needs during the pandemic Instructional coaches became Distance Learning Instructors
and schoolwide interventions were not feasible due to social distancing and cohorting
requirements, staffing shortages Teachers provide interventions to struggling learners to the extent
feasible A significant increase in student social, emotional and behavioral needs was observed
and strategies implemented to mitigate the impact of stressors on student learning However, the
Impacts of COVID were significant, including negative impacts on student attendance and
continuity of instruction

Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

North students have demonstrated a decrease in mathematics achievement over the testing year
2019 However, due to COVID, we were unable to assess students in the spring of 2020 and
therefore do not have an accurate baseline Instructional gaps caused by school closures and
COVID quarantines have impacted student learning and continuity of instruction We have shifted
our instruction model to meet all student needs during the pandemic

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis Identify where those changes can
be found in the SPSA

A goal of 5% improvement will remain, utiizing 2021's scores as a baseline Students are
monitored on a grade level developed formative assessment cycle

(Strategies 2 & 4)

The currniculum support specialist Is working with teacher teams to support data review and analysis
and lesson planning Teachers are currently meeting twice a month as Professional Learning
Communities to analyze student data and adjust instruction to meet student needs (Strategles 2 &
3)

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 66 North Cottonwood School



Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school's goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject

Mathematics

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase Academic Proficiency and Support Learning

Goal 4

On the 2021/22 CAASPP, North Cottonwood 5% more fourth grade students will meet or exbeed the
grade level mathematics standards over the 2020/21 assessment results

Identified Need

To increase the proficiency for North Cottonwood fourth graders on Mathematics standards as
Indicated by the annual CAASSP

Annual Measurable OQutcomes

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome

CAASPP score results On the 2020/21 CAASSP, 35%  On the 2021/22 CAASSP, 40%
of fourth grade students met or  of fourth grade students will
exceeded grade level meet or exceed the grade level
mathematics standards mathematics standards

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Ensure a minimum of 60 minutes of mathematics instruction daily

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (If Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

22926 LCFF - Supplemental
1000-1999 Certificated Personne! Salaries

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 66 North Cottonwood Schoo!




o aceNoa

Strategy/Activity 2
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity

Full ttme Curriculum éupport Specialist to help classroom teacheré (Instructional Coaches have
been placed in the Distance Learning program until COVID 19 dissipates and we return to regular
Instruction )

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

21,767 Title | Part A Allocation
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salaries

Strategy/Activity 3
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify erther All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Use of the Data Collection System to monitor and assess student achievement on a regular basis

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

906 Lottery Instructional Materials
4000-4999 Books And Supplies

Strategy/Activity 4
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

All Students

Strategy/Activity
Continue to use state adopted mathematics curriculum

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 66 North Cottonwood School




T TS, cenor E

Proposed Expenditures for this StrategylActivity
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specrfy the funding

source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal Identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

3,472 LCFF - Base
4000-4999 Books And Supplies

Annual Review
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school 1s In the first year of
Implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall Implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

Due to COVID school closures, we were unable to assess students in the spring 2020 and
therefore do not have an accurate baseline In 2020-21 we shifted our instructional mode] to meet
all student needs during the pandemic Instructional coaches became Distance Learning Instructors

Impacts of COVID were significant, Including negative Impacts on student attendance and
continuity of instruction

Briefly describe any major differences between the Intended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

2019 However, due to COVID, we were unable to assess students in the spring of 2020 and
therefore do not have an accurate baseline Instructional gaps caused by school closures and
COVID quarantines have Impacted student learning and continuity of instruction We have shifted
our instruction model to meet all student needs during the pandemic

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or

strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis Identify where those changes can
be found in the SPSA

A goal of 5% improvement will remain, utihzing 2021's scores as g baseline Students are
monitored on a grade level developed formative assessment cycle

(Strategles 2 & 4)

The curriculum support specialist is working with teacher teams to support data review and analysis
and lesson planning Teachers are currently meeting twice a month as Professional Learning

Communities to analyze student data and adjust instruction to meet student needs (Strategies 2 &
3)

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 66 North Cottonwood School

R




School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 66 North Cottonwood School

e




Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school's goals Duplicate the table as needed

Goal Subject

Social/Emotional Development

LEA/LCAP Goal

Increase Effective Communication/Connectedness and Promote a Positive Culture/Climate

Goal 5

North Cottonwood School wili provide a positive school culture and climate that supports student
learning

Identified Need

To develop student social and emotional skills Including problem solving, communication,
developing and maintaining relationships and coping

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome
Improvement in Overall School  Social/Emotional Climate of the Noticeable improvement of the
Climate school campus at the Social/Emotional Climate of the
beginning of the 2019-2020 school campus at the end of
school year the 2019-2020 school year
Improvement in peer-to-peer 70% of students of student There will be a 20% decrease
relationships among students respondents to the North in the number of student
Cottonwood 2021 school respondents reporting bullying
climate survey reported as a concern in the 2022
bullying as a concern school climate survey
Improvement in individual n/a - no baseline for this year Based on a universal screener,
student behaviors 50% of individual students

requiring Tier 2 or Tier 3
behavioral interventions upon
screening will demonstrate a
measurable improvement in
behavior and/or school
engagement

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities Duplicate
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed

Strategy/Activity 1
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups)

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 66 North Cottonwood School

D




All Students

Strategy/Activity

Develop a a multi-tiered system of supports that addresses student social, emotional and
behavioral needs

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures Specify the funding
source(s) using one or more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as
applicable), Other State, and/or Local

Amount(s) Source(s)

62,404 LCFF - Supplemental
1000-1999 Certificated Personnel Salares

Lottery Instructional Materials
4000-4999 Books And Supplies
Counseling Basket/Materials

None Specified

Annual Review
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2020-21

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school 1s In the first year of
Implementing the goal, an analysis 1s not required and this section may be deleted

ANALYSIS

Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

In 2020/21,0ne full time counselor worked with teachers and school administration to address
overall student social and emotional needs

Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

Due to COVID related school closures, cohorts and stressors, students struggled with relationships
and behaviors Services and Supports through outside agencies were extremely difficult for families
to access or were non-existent

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis Identify where those changes can
be found In the SPSA

An additional school counselor bringing the total to two and a paraprofessional was added to the
counseling team to support the development of a multi-tiered system of support Behavioral

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 66 North Cottonwood School

B




interventions have been developed and are currently being implemented Whole school SEL is
being provided included a bullying unit

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 66 North Cottonwood School



Budget Summary

Complete the table below Schools may include additional information Adjust the table as needed The Budget Summary
Is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and
Improvement (CSI)

Budget Summary
Description Amount
Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application '$109,679 80
Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI 4$39,600700
Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA $4537,4é‘8 06 )

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

List the additional Federal programs that the school Is including in the schoolwide program Adjust the table as needed If
the school Is not operating a Title | schoolwide program this section i1s not applicable and may be deleted

Federal Programs Allocation ($)

Title I Part A Allocation $87,068 00

Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this schoo! $87,068 00

List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program Duplicate the
table as needed

State or Local Programs Allocation ($)
LCFF - Base - . - $347200
| LCFF - Supplemental ' $355,420 00
iLottery Instructlioinalillaterlalsw - - ‘ $3,624 00

% Unrestnctieai o ] 7 - ' $3,904 00

Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school $366,420 00

Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school $453,488 00

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 66 North Cottonwood School



o cEwoA

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan

The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source

Funding Source Amount

Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
LCFF-Base W "
LCFF - Supplemental

rLottery Instructional Matenials

Title | Part A Allocation

f Unrestricted

Expenditures by Budget Reference

Budget Reference
1000-1999 Certfficated Personnel Salaries
,2000-2999 Classified Personnel Salaries

4060-49955 VBooks Ahd Supplies |

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source

Budget Reference Funding Source

4000-4999 Books And Supplies LCFF - Base

1000-1999 Certificated Personnel
Salaries

2000-2999 Classified Personnel
Salaries

4000-4999 Books And Supplies

1000-1999 Certificated Personnel
Salaries

4000-4999 Books And Supplies

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)

LCFF - Supplemental
LCFF - Supplemental

Lottery Instructional Maferlals

Title | Part A Allocation

Unrestricted

Page 51 of 66

Balance
Amount
347200
355,420 00
3,624 00
87,068 00
3,904 00
Amount
241,176 00
201,312 00
11,000 00
Amount
347200
154,108 00
201,312 00
3,624 00
87,068 00
3,904 00

North Cottonwood School




Expenditures by Goal

Goal Number
Goal 1
Goal 2
Goal 3
Goal 4

Goal 5

Total Expenditures
148,207 00
148,207 00
45,599 00
49,071 00

62,404 00

|
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 66 North Cottonwood School



School Site Council Membership

California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC) The SSC shall be
composed of the principal and representatives of teachers selected by teachers at the school, other school personnel
selected by other school personnel at the school, parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents, and, in
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school The current make-up of the SSC Is as follows

1 School Principal

3 Classroom Teachers

1 Other School Staff

5 Parent or Community Members

Name of Members Role
Cecile LaMar | Principal
Michael Bettes * Other School Staff
Jared Ivés ’ V ; Ciassroom Teacher
Alicia Snow Classroom 'vreachver
Joe Puentas ! Parent or Community Member
Nicole lles ) Parent or Community Member
Wendy Kamisky Parent or Community Member

Carrie Muchow Parent or Community Member

Shana Barker | Classroom Teacher

Parent or Community Member

Linda Hakey Other School Staff

At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a) At secondary schools there must
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students Members must
be selected by their peer group

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 66 North Cottonwood School




7 -

Recommendations and Assurances

The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for
approval and assures the board of the following

The SSC s correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law

The SSC reviewed its responsibilittes under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies
relating to matenal changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval

The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan
Signature Commuttee or Advisory Group Name

The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such

content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational

agency plan

This SPSA 1s based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance The actions proposed heretn form a sound,
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance

This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on January 30, 2020

Attested
Principal, Ms Cecile M LaMar on 1/30/2020

SSC Chairperson, Wendy Kamisky on 1/30/2020

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Instructions

The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of Increasing
student achievement SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and
Accountability Plan process

The SPSA consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through
the consolidated application (ConApp), and for federal school improvement programs, including
schoolwide programs, Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and
Improvement (TSI), and Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to California
Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) This template I1s designed to meet schoolwide program
planning requirements It also notes how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements, as applicable

California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to Improving student group performance
through the utilization of federal resources Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students The implementation
of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized
under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF)

The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet
the needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and Iifelong learning The
SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and Improvement
Consistent with EC 65001, the Schoolsite Council (SSC) Is required to develop and annually review
the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing
needs and priorities, as applicable

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

The SPSA template meets the requirements of schoolwide planning (SWP). Each section also
contains a notation of how to meet CSl, TSI, or ATSI requirements.

Stakeholder Involvement
Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures

Planned Strategies/Activities

Annual Review and Update

Budget Summary
Appendix A_Plan Requirements for Title | Schoolwide Programs

Appendix B Plan Requirements for Schools to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning
Requirements
Appendix C Select State and Federal Programs

For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact
the Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde ca gov

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 66 North Cottonwood School




For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title | schoolwide planning, please contact the local
educational agency, or the CDE's Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde ca gov

For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning
requirements (for CSI, TSI, and ATSI), please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support
Office at SISO@cde ca gov

Purpose and Description

Schools identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and
Improvement (TSI), or Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI) must respond to the
following prompts A school that has not been identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI may delete the Purpose
and Description prompts

Purpose

Briefly describe the purpose of this plan by selecting from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive
Support and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and
Improvement)

Description
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA requirements in alignment with the
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs

Stakeholder Involvement

Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of
the SPSA and the budget process Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory
groups, as applicable (e g , English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and
tribal organizations present in the community, as appropriate, etc ) and seek input from these
advisory groups in the development of the SPSA

The Stakeholder Engagement process Is an ongoing, annual process Describe the process used to
Involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update

[This section meets the requirements for TSI and ATSI ]

[When completing this section for CSl, the LEA shall partner with the school in the development and
implementation of this plan ]

Resource Inequities

Schools eligible for CSI or ATSI must identify resource inequittes, which may include a review of LEA-
and school-level budgeting as a part of the required needs assessment Identified resource inequities
must be addressed through implementation of the CSI or ATSI plan Briefly identify and describe any
resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment and summarize how the
identified resource inequities are addressed In the SPSA

[This section meets the requirements for CSI and ATSI! If the school is not identified for CSI or ATSI
this section i1s not applicable and may be deleted |

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 66 North Cottonwood School




S acenoa

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review

In this section a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school This
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to
meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific
strategies and activities

Goal

State the goal A goal I1s a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all
strategies/activities are directed A goal answers the question What is the school seeking to achieve?

It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals suchthe SMAR T approach ASMART
goal I1s one that is Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound A level of specificity
Is needed In order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess whether it Is
reasonably achievable Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a realistic
approach that supports student success

A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference

[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, improvement goals shall align to the goals,
actions, and services in the LEA LCAP ]

Identified Need

Describe the basis for establishing the goal The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable
state data, including local and state indicator data from the California School Dashboard (Dashboard)
and data from the School Accountability Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by
districts to measure pupil achievement

[Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements]

Annual Measurable Outcomes

Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating
progress toward accomplishing the goal A school may identify metrics for specific student groups
Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available
at the time of adoption of the SPSA The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator
Includes data reported in the annual update of the SPSA In the subsequent Expected Outcome
column, identify the progress the school intends to make in the coming year

[When completing this section for CSI the school must include school-level metrics related to the
metrics that led to the school’s identification ]

[When completing this section for TSI/ATSI the school must include metrics related to the specific
student group(s) that led to the school’s identification |

Strategies/Activities
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the described goal A school may
number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #’ for ease of reference

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 66 North Cottonwood School




7777*——_——-—————i—

Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with state
priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the local
educational agency’s budgeting, its local control and accountability plan, and school-level budgeting,
if applicable

[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, this plan shall include evidence-based
Interventions and align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA LCAP ]

[When completing this section for CSI and ATSI, this plan shall address through implementation,
identified resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-
level budgeting ]

Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the strategies/activities by indicating “All Students”
or listing one or more specific student group(s) to be served

[This section meets the requirements for CS/ ]

[When completing this section for TSI and ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received the
TSI or ATSI designation For TSI, a school may focus on all students or the student group(s) that led
to identification based on the evidence-based interventions selected |

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity

For each strategy/activity, list the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures for
the school year to implement these strategies/activities Specify the funding source(s) using one or
more of the following LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, as applicable), Other
State, and/or Local

Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the
expenditure first appears in the SPSA Pursuant to Education Code, Section 64001(g)(3)(C),
proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or
governing body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state
priorities including 1dentifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s budgeting,
its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable

[This section meets the requirements for CSI, TSI, and ATS! ]

[NOTE Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATS! In addition,
funds for CSl shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff |

Annual Review

In the following Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/ or expenditures from
the prior year This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates
to the plan

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 66 North Cottonwood Schoot



- hcENDA

Analysis

Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal Respond to the prompts as
Instructed Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal If the school is In the first year of
iImplementing the goal the Annual Review section Is not required and this section may be deleted

e Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of
the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal

¢ Briefly describe any major differences between either/or the intended implementation or the
budgeted expenditures to Implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal

e Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes,
metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable Identify where those changes
can be found in the SPSA

[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, any changes made fo the goals, annual
measurable outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the CSI, TSI, or ATSI
planning requirements CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the
Instructions For example, as a result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a
goal(s), see the Goal section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements |

Budget Summary

In this section a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures
described in the SPSA The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp and
that receive federal funds for CSI If the school is not operating a Title | schoolwide program this
section is not applicable and may be deleted

From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that meet the cniteria
for CSI to support implementation of this plan In addition, the LEA may retain a portion of its total
allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to serving schools eligible for
CSI

Budget Summary
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary as
follows

e Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application This amount Is the
total amount of funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year The
school year means the fiscal year for which a SPSA i1s adopted or updated

e Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA This amount Is the total of
the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities
reflected in the SPSA To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are
listed in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once

A school receiving federal funds for CSI should complete the Budget Summary as follows

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 66 North Cottonwood School




e Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI This amount i1s the total

amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA

[NOTE Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for TSI or ATSI In addition, funds
for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff ]

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 66 North Cottonwood School




- AcewoA

Appendix A: Plan Requirements

Schoolwide Program Requirements
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide
program plan The requirements below are for planning reference

A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is
required to develop a SPSA The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the
school through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the SSC The content of a
SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement

Requirements for Development of the Plan
I The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions

A Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the school’s
goals contained in the SPSA

1 The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall

a Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state priorities as
noted In Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by all indicators described in
Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupll
performance against state-determined long-term goals The school may include data
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes (described in the
Identified Need), and

b Be based on academic achievement information about all students in the school,
including all groups under §200 13(b)(7) and migratory children as defined in section
1309(2) of the ESEA, relative to the State's academic standards under §200 1 to—

I Help the school understand the subjects and skills for which teaching and
learning need to be improved, and

i Ildentify the specific academic needs of students and groups of students who are
not yet achieving the State's academic standards, and

I Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the components of the
schoolwide program under §200 28

v Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the participation of
individuals who will carry out the schoolwide program plan

v Document how 1t conducted the needs assessment, the results it obtained, and
the conclusions it drew from those results

B Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of the SPSA
and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA (described in the
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review and Update)

Requirements for the Plan
Il The SPSA shall include the following

A Goals set to improve pupll outcomes, including addressing the needs of student groups as
identified through the needs assessment

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 66 North Cottonwood School




- AGENDA

B Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and Activities)

1 A description of the strategies that the school will be Implementing to address school
needs, including a description of how such strategies will--

a provide opportunities for all children including each of the subgroups of students to
meet the challenging state academic standards

b use methods and instructional strategies that
I strengthen the academic program in the school,
Il increase the amount and quality of learning time, and

- provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs,
activities, and courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education

¢ Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly the needs of those at
risk of not meeting the challenging State academic standards, so that all students
demonstrate at least proficiency on the State’s academic standards through
activities which may include

I strategies to improve students’ skills outside the academic subject areas,

n preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education and
the workforce,

i implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem
behavior,

Ivprofessional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals,
and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data, and

v strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood
education programs to local elementary school programs

C Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing
board or body of the local educational agency (may include funds allocated via the
ConApp, federal funds for CSI, any other state or local funds allocated to the school), to
address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state priorities, including
identifying resource inequities, which may include a review of the LEAs budgeting, it's
LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and
Budget Summary) Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a
single cost objective

D A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met (described In
the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual Review and Update)

1 Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the schoolwide
program, using data from the State's annual assessments and other indicators of
academic achievement,

2 Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in Increasing the
achievement of students in meeting the State's academic standards, particularly for
those students who had been furthest from achieving the standards, and

3 Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to ensure
continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 66 North Cottonwood School




- AGENDA

E A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, review,
and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in Stakeholder Involvement
and/or Strategies/Activities)

F A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who experience
difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic achievement standards will be
provided with effective, timely additional support, Including measures to

1 Ensure that those students' difficulties are i1dentified on a timely basis, and
2 Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to those students

G For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool students In
the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school

H A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components
(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategles/Activities)

| A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC (described in
the Strategies/Activities)

Authonity Cited S Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200 25-26, and
200 29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(1)-(in) and 1118(b) of the ESEA EC sections 6400 et seq

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Appendix B:

Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning
Requirements

For questions or technical assistance related to meeting Federal School Improvement Planning
Requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at
SISO@cde ca gov

Comprehensive Support and Improvement

The LEA shall partner with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and
parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes,
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CS| (Stakeholder Involvement)

The CSI plan shall

1 Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual
Review and Update, as applicable),

2 Include evidence-based interventions (Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and Update, as
applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U S Department
of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” at
https //www?2 ed gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/quidanceuseseinvestment pdf),

3 Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable), and

4 Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, to
be addressed through implementation of the CSlI plan (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual
Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review and Update, as
applicable)

Authority Cited Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(1), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA

Targeted Support and Improvement

In partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and parents)
the school shall develop and implement a school-level TSI plan to improve student outcomes for each
subgroup of students that was the subject of identification (Stakeholder Involvement)

The TSI plan shall

1 Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance aganst state-determined
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual
Review and Update, as applicable), and

2 Include evidence-based interventions (Planned Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and
Update, as applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based Interventions, see the U S
Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments’
https //www2 ed gov/policy/elsec/leg/essal/guidanceuseseinvestment pdf )

Authority Cited Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(1), 1111(c)(4)(B) and 1111(d)(2) of the ESSA

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 66 North Cottonwood School




S aceNoA

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
A school identified for ATSI shall

1 Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting,
which will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Goal, Identified Need,
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review
and Update, as applicable)

Authority Cited Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(1), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA
Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement

Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall
develop a SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds
(EC Section 64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019)

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP)
and all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the
legal requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716,
effective January 1, 2019)

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option
are available in the LCAP Instructions

Authonity Cited EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January
1, 2019

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 66 North Cottonwood School




Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs

For a list of active programs, please see the following links: .
Programs included on the Consolidated Application https //www cde ca gov/fg/aalco/

ESSA Title |, Part A School Improvement https //www cde ca gov/sp/swit1/schoolsupport asp
Avallable Funding https //www cde ca gov/fg/fo/af/

Developed by the California Department of Education, January 2019

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 66 North Cottonwood School




2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name

Contact Name and Title

Email and Phone

Cottonwood Union School District

Doug Geren
Supenntendent

530-347-3165

dgeren@cwusd com

Goal 1

Increase academic growth for all students.

Rationale

Cottonwood prides itself on focusing on student academics We believe In keeping student growth at the forefront of our plan We hold high expectations for our students
and staff We have reviewed our local and state data to refine the goal, actions and services

Student engagement, social emotional learning, and explicit direct instructional strategies will be a focus in the next few years as evidence by our goals and actions
throughout the LCAP

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 1

Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Qutcome for 2023-24

Local Indicators
Credentialed Teachers

100% credential teachers

100% credential teachers

100% credential teachers

Local Indicators
Standards aligned matenals

100% standards aligned
materials

100% standards aligned
materials

100% state standards aligned
matenals

CA School Dashboard
Academic Indicator-
Mathematics

YELLOW performance level
23.4 points below standard

Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, state law has
suspended the reporting of
state and local indicators on the
2020 Dashboard

BLUE performance level
10 points above standard

CA School Dashboard
Academic Indicator-English
language arts

ORANGE performance level
10.9 points below standard

Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, state law has
suspended the reporting of

BLUE performance level10
points above standard

2122-22 Loca! Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 1 of 41



. AeENA

Priority Metric Baseline Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24

state and local indicators on the
2020 Dashboard

CA School Dashboard 2019-2020 The assessment i1s not 80% making progress towards
English Learner Progress 1 4% making progress towards |administered until the spring. English language proficiency
Indicators Proficiency English language proficiency

CA School Dashboard 2019-2020 We do not reclassify students  |50% English learners

English Learner Progress 20% reclassification until the spring. reclassified

Indicators Reclassification

Smarter Balanced Assessments |2018-19 Smarter Balanced District Results Smarter Balanced Assessments
Mathematics Assessments 42 30% students met or Mathematics
Mathematics exceeded standards In 70% of students are at or above
41 59% of students are at or mathematics. standards

above standards
North Cottonwood Elementary
School

40% all students met or
exceeded standard for
mathematics.

3rd- 43 64%

4th- 35%

West Cottonwood Junior High
School

43 80% all students met or
exceeded the standard for
mathematics

5th- 39 13%

6th- 39 51%

7th- 52.52%

8th- 42.67%

Smarter Balanced Assessments | 2018-19 Smarter Balanced District Results Smarter Balanced Assessments
English language arts Assessments English language arts
2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District Page 2 of 41

Acttons & Services Mid-Year Report

R R R R T




Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

English language arts
44.74% of students are at or
above standards

46 41% students met or
exceeded standards in English
language arts.

North Cottonwood Elementary
School

37.90% all students met or
exceeded standard for English
language arts

3rd- 40 91%

4th- 33.75%

West Cottonwood Junior High
School

51 43% all students met or
exceeded the standard for
English language arts.

5th- 44.56%

6th- 54.32%

7th- 64.64%

8th- 39 75%

70% of students are at or above
standards

Local Indicator
Other Student Outcomes
Local Assessments

Reading Data

All students at North
Cottonwood In grades K-3
Benchmark (on grade level)
50%

Strategic 19%

Intensive 31%

1st Grade

Benchmark (on grade level)
44%

Strategic 25%

FalllTnmester 1 reading data:
Kindergarten

Lower Case Letters 66%
Upper Case Letters 69%

Lower Case Sounds 56%
Lower Case Sounds 62%

1st Grade

BM 28/90 31%
ST 12/90 13%
Int 50/90 56%

Reading Data

All students at North
Cottonwood In grades K-3
Benchmark (on grade level)
85%

Strategic 10%

Intensive 5%

1st Grade
Benchmark (on grade level)
85%

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 3 of 41



Priority Metric Baseline Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Qutcome for 2023-24
Intensive 31% Strategic 10%
2nd Grade Intensive 5%
2nd Grade BM 35/104 34%
Benchmark (on grade level) ST 11/104 10% 2nd Grade
28% Int 58/104 56% Benchmark (on grade level)
Strategic 18% 85%
Intensive 54% 3rd Grade Strategic 10%
BM 55/86 64% Intensive 5%
3rd Grade ST 10/86 12%
Benchmark (on grade level) Int 21/86 24% 3rd Grade
20% Benchmark (on grade level)
Strategic 14% 85%
Intensive 66% Strategic 10%
Intensive 5%
Other Student Outcomes 100% of students will be offered | 100% of students will be offered | 100% of students will be offered

a Broad Course of Study

a Broad Course of Study

a Broad Course of Study

Williams Quarterly Reports

100% students have access to
instructional materials

100% students have access to
instructional matenals

100% students have access to
instructional materials

Local Indicator
English Learner Access

100% of English Learners had
access to the ELA/ELD
standards for the purpose of
gaining academic content
knowledge and English
language proficiency.

100% of English Learners had
access to the ELA/JELD
standards for the purpose of
gaining academic content
knowledge and English
language proficiency.

100% of English Learners had
access to the ELA/ELD
standards for the purpose of
gaining academic content
knowledge and English
language proficiency

Local Indicator
Student with Exceptional Needs

100% of Students with
Exceptional Needs have access
to programs and services

100% of Students with
Exceptional Needs have access
to programs and services

100% of Students with
Exceptional Needs have access
to programs and services

Local Indicator
Unduplicated Students

100% of Unduplicated Students
have access to programs and
services

100% of Unduplicated Students
have access to programs and
services

100% of Unduplicated Students
have access to programs and
services

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 4 of 41



Actions and Services

Goal/ Action Title/ . . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
1.1 Assessment and data On-going No Other State $19,300 $19,300 00 | YTD Expenditures
Schools use ongoing $20,750
assessment and monitoring
system that provides timely We have used and
data which in turn 1s used continue to use
to inform teachers and formative
principals about student assessments and data
placement, diagnosts, to drive instruction
progress and effectiveness
program
12 Support for teachers On-going No Federal $233,546 $233,546 00 |YTD Expenditures
Academic coaches $152,366
provided support for new
teachers and academic Continue to provide
improvement New teacher teachers with support
support-Alllance for through
Teacher Education
Continue to provide The use of academic
Curnculum & Instructional coaches to support for
Coach new teachers and
Curriculum and instruction academic
Coach for North improvement
Elementary School and
West Junior High School New teacher support-
Alliance for Teacher
Education
Continue to provide
Curriculum &
Instructional Coach
Curriculum and
instruction
Coach for North
Elementary School
and West Junior High
School
1.3 Foster Youth On-going Yes LCFF $1,500 $1,500 00 |YTD Expenditures
Foster Youth Liaison and/or $600
Designated Staff Member

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 5 of 41



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

will assist through the
following actions

Close the achievement gap
between foster youth and
the general student
population by having an
identified staff member with
each student

Promote school stability so
they have access to a full
range of educational
opportunities and don't
experience disruptions in
their education

Ensure foster youth are
promptly enrolled in school
and in the right classes so
they do not fall further
behind when they must
change schools

Ensure district foster youth
haison have adequate time,
knowledge and resources
to do their job

Ensure that every foster
youth receives services
from foster youth liaison or
designated staff member
who can provide
individualized assistance Iin
education
planning/coordination and
social emotional check-ins
Connect foster youth
families to local resources
Help foster youth enroll In
the After School Program,
extra curricular activities,
tutoring, counseling, other
support and monitor
progress to help students
stay on track

Continue to provide
support for foster
youth using the foster
youth llaison and other
designated staff
members to provide
the following actions

Close the achievement
gap between foster
youth and the general
student population by
having an identified
staff member with
each student
Promote school
stability so they have
access to a full range
of educational
opportunities and don't
experience disruptions
in their education
Ensure foster youth
are promptly enrolled
in school and in the
right classes so they
do not fall further
behind when they
must change schools
Ensure district foster
youth laison have
adequate time,
knowledge and
resources to do their
job

Ensure that every
foster youth receives
services from foster
youth hiaison or
designated staff
member who can
provide individualized
assistance in
education
planning/coordination

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 6 of 41



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

and social emotional
check-ins

Connect foster youth
families to local
resources

Help foster youth
enroll in the After
School Program, extra
curricular activities,
tutoring, counseling,
other support and
monitor progress to
help students stay on
track

1.4

Special Education
Special Education staff will
ensure Individualized
Education Plans (IEP) are
implemented and that each
student understands the
goals that they are working
towards

Students will be regularly
progressed monitored to
1dentify areas of strength
and concern Iin order for
staff to target their
individual areas of need

Special Education students
will be both challenged and
supported by their regular
ed teacher and any other
support staff Some of the
more severe students will
work directly with their
Special Education teachers
and support staff

The general ed teacher will
meet weekly with special
ed staff (speech teacher,

On-going

No

Local

Federal

$515,992
$169,945

LCFF $547,190
$23,619

$25,629

Local

Federal

$1,282,375 00

YTD Expenditures
$666,092

Special Education staff
have ensured
Individualized
Education Plans (IEP)
are implemented and
that each student
understands the goals
that they are working
towards

Students will continue
to be regularly
progressed monitored
to identify areas of
strength and concern
in order for staff to
target their individual
areas of need

Special Education
students will be both
challenged and
supported by their
regular ed teacher and
any other support
staff Some of the

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 7 of 41



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

counselor, psychologist,
instructional aide, Special
Ed teacher, etc )

Ensure students with
disabilities are provided
necessary supports

General and special
educators work together to
implement programs and
services that enable
students with disabilities to
access the state academic
content standards

Special Education students
are provided with Tier 1, 2,
and 3 supports both
academtcally and socially
Staff meet regularly to
adjust goals and discuss
each individual student
needs

e Specal
Education staff
will ensure
Individualized
Education Plans
(IEP) are
implemented
and that each
student
understands the
goals that they
are working
towards

s Students will be
regularly
progressed
monitored to
dentify areas of
strength and

more severe students
will work directly with
their Special
Education teachers
and support staff

The general education
teacher continue to
meet weekly with
special ed staff
(speech teacher,
counselor,
psychologist,
instructional aide,
Special Ed teacher,
etc)

Ensure students with
disabilities are
provided necessary
supports

General and special
educators continue to
work together to
implement programs
and services that
enable students with
disabilities to access
the state academic
content standards

Special Education
students will continue
to be provided with
Tier1,2,and 3
supports both
academically and
socially Staff meet
regularly to adjust
goals and discuss
each individual student
needs

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 8 of 41



o AeeNoa

Goal/ Action Title/ . . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report

concern In order
for staff to target
their individual
areas of need

Special
Education
students will be
both challenged
and supported
by their regular
ed teacher,
Special Ed
teacher, and any
other support
staff

Effective
communication
strategies will be

* Special
Education
staff have
ensured
Individualiz
ed
Education
Plans (IEP)
are
implemente
d and that
each
student
understand
s the goals
that they
are working
towards

s Students will

utilized between continue to
the general ed be regularly
teacher and progressed
special ed staff monitored
(speech teacher, to identify
counselor, areas of
psychologist, strength
instructional and
aide, Special Ed concern In
teacher, etc ) order for
staff to
e OurSDC target their
personnel will be individual
trained in ProAct areas of
need
¢ Special
Education
students
are both
challenged
and
supported
by their
regular ed
2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District Page 9 of 41

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

T .




Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Expenses

Non-Personnel

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

teacher,
Special Ed
teacher,
and any
other
support
staff

Effective

communica
tion
strategies
have been
utiized
between
the general
ed teacher
and special
ed staff
(speech
teacher,
counselor,
psychologis
t,
instructional
aide,
Special Ed
teacher,
etc)

Our SDC

personnel
have been
trained In
ProAct

1.5

English Learner

Using the English Learner
Road Map as our guide, we
will provide our English
Learners with the following
Language development will
occur in and through
subject matter learning and

On-going

Yes

LCFF

$2,000

$2,000 00

YTD Expenditures
$800

Using the English
Learner Road Map as
our guide, we have
provided and will
continue to provide our

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 10 of 41




Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

Is Integrated across the
curriculum, including
Integrated English Learning
Development and
designated English
Learning Development
Students are provided a
rigorous, intellectually rich,
standards-based
curriculum with instructional
scaffolding that increases
comprehension and
participation and develops
student autonomy and
mastery

Teaching and learning
emphasize engagement,
interaction, discourse,
Inquiry, and critical thinking
with the same high
expectations for English
learners as for all students
in each of the content
areas

English learners are
provided access to the full
curriculum along with the
provision of appropriate
English learner (EL)
support and services
Students’ home language
IS understood as a means
to access subject matter
content, as a foundation for
developing English, and,
where possible, Is
developed to high levels of
hteracy and proficiency
along with English

Parents will be encouraged
to participate in their child's
education

Rigorous instructional
materials support high
levels of intellectual

Enghsh Learners with
the following

Language
development will occur
in and through subject
matter learning and 1s
Integrated across the
curriculum, including
integrated English
Learning Development
and designated
English Learning
Development
Students are provided
a rigorous,
intellectually rich,
standards-based
curriculum with
instructional
scaffolding that
Increases
comprehension and
participation and
develops student
autonomy and
mastery

Teaching and learning
emphasize
engagement,
interaction, discourse,
inquiry, and critical
thinking with the same
high expectations for
English learners as for
all students in each of
the content areas
English learners are
provided access to the
full curriculum along
with the provision of
appropriate English
learner (EL) support
and services

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 11 of 41



N

Goal/ Action Title/ ' I Personnel Non-Personnel Total :
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
engagement Explicit Students’ home
scaffolding enables language 1s
meaningful participation by understood as a
English learners at different means to access
levels of English language subject matter content,
proficiency as a foundation for
Integrated language developing English,
development, content and, where possible, Is
learning, and hands-on developed to high
opportunities will be levels of literacy and
provided to all English proficiency along with
Learners English
Parents will be
encouraged to
participate in their
child’s education
Rigorous instructional
matenals support high
levels of intellectual
engagement Explicit
scaffolding enables
meaningful
participation by
English learners at
different levels of
English language
proficiency
Integrated language
development, content
learning, and hands-
on opportunities will be
provided to all English
Learners
1.6 | Textbooks/instructional |On-going No LCFF $23,500 $23,500 00 |YTD Expenditures

Materials $4,826

Ensure Californa State

Standards adopted We have ensured

textbooks and instructional California State

materials are available to Standards adopted

each student textbooks and

Supplemental curriculum Instructional materials

units, If needed are available to each
student

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District Page 12 of 41

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report




Goal/ Action Title/ . . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .

Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
Supplemental
curriculum units have
been purchased or
developed, If needed

1.7 Interventions On-going Yes LCFF $1,000 $1,000 00 | YTD Expenditures
Intervention books and $1,000
supplies
Supplemental materials We have purchased
tntervention books and
supplies
Supplemental
materials
1.8 Computer Based On-going No Other State $66,149 $66,149 00 |YTD Expenditures
Programs $74,140
Provide instructional
support {computer based Continue to provide
programs) instructional support
(computer based
programs)
1.9 Intervention for All On-going Yes LCFF $97,300 $246,04500 |YTD Expenditures
Support $106,703
Learning Lab at North Federal $148,745
School Continue to implement
Intervention for All Support Intervention for All
| Two Intervention teachers support through
| (at both sites)
Instructional assistants and Learning Lab at North
benefits to provide small School
group mstruction
Intervention for All
Support
Two intervention
teachers (at both sites)
Instructional assistants
and benefits to provide
small group nstruction
1.10 | Instructional Aides On-going Yes LCFF $152,900 $152,900 00 |YTD Expenditures
(Kindergarten & First) $76,364

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

R .

Page 13 of 41




o eeNeA T

Goal/ Action Title/ . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
Instructional Aides-
Continue to provide Instructional Aides-
kindergarten and first grade Continue to provide
Instructional assistant kindergarten and first
support grade instructional
assistant support
1.1 Professional On-going No LCFF $20,500 $62,952 00 |YTD Expenditures
Development $14,586
Continue to support Other State $4,750
professional development Local $3,000 We have continued to
to deepen and expand the support professional
implementation of State Federal $34,702 development to
Standards in reading, deepen and expand
writing, math, Next the implementation of
Generation Science State Standards in
Standards, as well as reading, writing, math,
provide training in Next Generation
Professional Learning Science Standards, as
Communities and well as provide training
technology in Professional
Conference fees Learning Communities
Consultants and technology
Conference fees
Consultants
112 | Parent Engagement On-going Yes LCFF $100 $300 00 YTD Expenditures $0
All parents are encouraged
to make decisions for the Federal $200 We have encouraged
district and school through all parents to make
serving on Site Council and decisions for the
providing feedback through district and school
Board meetings and through serving on
surveys Parents of Site Council and
unduplicated students and providing feedback
iIndividuals with exceptional through Board
are reached out to meetings and surveys
teachers, support staff, Parents of
counselors and unduplicated students
administration to and individuals with
encourage their exceptional are
participation in their reached out to
children's education teachers, support staff,
counselors and

2122-22 Local Contro! Accountabihity Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 14 of 41




Development

Support continuous school
Improvement summer
training/collaboration

Staff will be provided
additional pay for attending
two days in the summer to
collaborate and plan for the
next school year

Goal/ Action Title/ . Personnel Non-Personnel Total :

Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
administration to
encourage their
participation in their
children’s education
Parents have regularly
attended our board
meetings to provide
input to the state
masking and vaccine
mandates as well as
tn-person learning

113 |Collaboration Time On-going No LCFF no additronal $0 00 Collaboration time
Schedule collaboration cost continues to be
time for grade level/subject implemented weekly
collaboration (4 days per
month)
Continue to support weekly
collaborative day (minimum
day)
Student data analysts,
consistent assessments,
pacing guides, Response
to Intervention decisions for
reteaching/advancement
(cost associated with
additional after school
program hours)
114 | Summer Professional On-going No LCFF $47,900 $47,900 00 |YTD Expenditures $0

Summer professional
development was
implemented to
collaborate and plan
for the school year
Teachers found this to
be a valuable use of
their time

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwoaod Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 15 of 41



Provide libranans at both
sites- Libranan salary and
benefits

Support intrinsic and
extrinsic motivation (Win
Den)

Goal/ Action Title/ . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
115 |Technology On-going No LCFF $105,984 $123,984 00 | YTD Expenditures
Technology-Continue to $89,753
upgrade hardware Other State $18,000
Continue to purchase Provide upgrades and
Chromebaok replacements replacements to our
and carts technology We have
Continue to support continued our tech
software-Data contract with the high
Management System for school district We
student achievement have also purchased
assessments DnA tech supplies as therr
Continue to support was a warranted need
Increased tech support-
contracted services
Books and supplies
1.16 Early Childhood On-going Yes LCFF $179,506 LCFF $7,800 $187,306 00 |YTD Expenditures
Education $111,888
Continue to support
preschool to support early Continued to support
literacy and academic preschool to support
success early iteracy and
Preschool salaries academic success
Books and supplies through
Instructional matenals Preschool salaries
Books and supplies
Instructional matenials
1.17  |Literacy On-going No LCFF $129,473 Other State $4,400 $139,883 00 |YTD Expenditures
hPt;orran:;e reading/early Other State $6.,010 $72,548

Continued our focus
on literacy through
Promote reading/early
hteracy

Provide libranans at
both sites- Libranan
salary and benefits
Support intrinsic and
extrinsic motivation
(Win Den)

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 16 of 41




Goal/ Action Title/ . . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
1.18 |Summer School On-going Yes Other State $214,511 LCFF $2000 $288,511 00 |YTD Expenditures
Summer School Teacher $119,700
benefits and salary Other State $72,000
Instructional materials Implemented summer
Books and supplies school Students and
Services and other parents welcomed the
operating expenditures- opportunity for
Project SHARE Summer engaging activities
School during the summer
119 |Tutoring On-going Yes Other State $133,000 LCFF $1000 $134,000 00 |YTD Expenditures
Tutoring to support at-risk $23,940
students
Continue tutoring our
most at-risk students
1.20 |Speech Pathologists On-going Yes LCFF $179,190 $179,190 00 |YTD Expenditures
2 speech pathologist $187,349
Continue providing
services to our
students with speech
disabilities through our
2 speech pathologists
Goal 2

Provide a safe, welcoming, respectful and rigorous learning environment for every member of the school community and support effective communication
with our stakeholders.

Rationale

We combined goal 2 and goal 3 from our prior 3 year LCAP to ensure we included all of the 8 state prionties and make it so it I1s easier to implement the plan We believe
it 1Is important to have a positive learning environment so that students can grow both academically and socially Student engagement, social emotional learning,

interventions and explicit direct instructional strategies will be a focus in the next few years as evidence by our goals and actions throughout the LCAP CWUSD facilities
are In good repair, however, are aging and in need of continual maintenance and upkeep We have identified areas in our maintenance plan that will need repairs Using
the LCSSP grant funds, we will target students that are chronically absent to eliminate any barriers that are keeping them from attending school

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 17 of 41




Student engagement, social emotional learning, and explicit direct instructional strategies will be a focus in the next few years as evidence by our goals and actions
throughout the LCAP

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 2

Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

CA School Dashboard
Suspension Rate Indicator

GREEN performance level
2 3% suspended at least once

As of November
% suspended at least once

BLUE performance level
1% suspended at least once

Local Indicator
Expulsion Rate

0% expulsion rate

0% expulsion rate

0% expulsion rate

Local Indicator
Middle School Drop-Out Rate

0% middle school drop out rate

0% muddle school drop out rate

0% middle school drop out rate

CA School Dashboard
Chronic Absenteeism Indicator

ORANGE performance level
Chronic absenteeism rate
All Students 14.3%

Low income 19.2%
Homeless Youth 0%
Foster Youth 0%

English Learners 11.1%
SWD 17.2%

White 12 9%

American Indian 28.9%
Asian 18.2%

African American 15 4%
Filipino 0%
Hispanic/Latino 13 4%
Pacific Islander 0%

Two or more races 18.8%

As per Aeries report In
November

All Students 33%

Low income 39%
Homeless Youth 40%
Foster Youth 29%
English Learners 22%
SWD 26%

White 31%

American Indian 43%
Asian 25%

African American 44%
Filipino 0%
Hispanic/Latino 42%
Pacific Islander 50%
Two or more races 28%

BLUE performance level
Chronic absenteeism rate
All Students 7 15%

Low income 9 6%
Homeless Youth 0%
Foster Youth 0%
English Learners 5 55%
SWD 8.6%

White 6.45%

American Indian 14.45%
Asian 9.1%

African American 7 7%
Fiipino 0%
Hispanic/Latino 6.9%
Pacific Islander 0%

Two or more races 9 4%

Local Indicator
Staff survey

North Cottonwood Survey
Results

Survey Is not administered until
the spring

North Cottonwood Survey
Results

2122-22 tocal Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Unton School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 18 of 41




Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

o eeNA

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

Regarding communication from
administration, what would you
find most helpful in your role?
48% prefer an enhanced daily
communication

Regarding communication from
administration, what would you
find most helpful in your role?
Check two that are most
Important to you.

90% prefer an enhanced daily

Local Indicator
Student survey

North Cottonwood Student
Survey (3rd and 4th graders)
results are as follows

| feel that | belong at this
school

47% strongly agree

45% agree

2% disagree

7% strongly disagree

My teacher cares for me
70% strongly agree
24% agree

3% disagree

3% strongly disagree

| feel safe at school
46% strongly agree
40% agree

10% disagree

3% strongly disagree

Survey is not administered untl
the spring

North Cottonwood Student
Survey (3rd and 4th graders)
results are as follows

| feel that | belong at this
school.

100% strongly agree

My teacher cares for me.
100% strongly agree
| feel safe at school

100% strongly agree

I like this school.
100% strongly agree

My teacher believes | can learn.
100% strongly agree

Very good work Is expected at
this school.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 19 of 41

R I T




Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

| hke this school.
64% strongly agree
25% agree

7% disagree

5% strongly disagree

My teacher believes | can learn
79% strongly agree

19% agree

1% disagree

1% strongly disagree

Very good work Is expected at
this school

55% strongly agree

35% agree

5% disagree

5% strongly disagree

| feel | am treated fairly by my
teacher

60% strongly agree

31% agree

5% disagree

4% strongly disagree

School is fun.

39% strongly agree
40% agree

12% disagree

9% strongly disagree

| feel | am treated fairly by the
adults on recess and cafeteria
duty

47% strongly agree

38% agree

9% disagree

100% strongly agree

| feel | am treated fairly by my
teacher
100% strongly agree

School 1s fun.
100% strongly agree

| feel | am treated fairly by the
adults on recess and cafeteria
duty

100% strongly agree

Other students treat me with
respect.
100% strongly agree

My teacher thinks | will be
successful
100% strongly agree

My family wants me to do well
In school.
100% strongly agree

Bullying I1s a problem at this
school
100% strongly agree

My principal cares about me
100% strongly agree

West Cottonwood Student
Survey (5th, 6th, 7th, 8th
graders) results are as follows

2122-22 tocal Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 20 of 41



Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

6% strongly disagree

Other students treat me with
respect.

22% strongly agree

41% agree

23% disagree

13% strongly disagree

My teacher thinks | will be
successful

73% strongly agree

21% agree

2% disagree

2% strongly disagree

My family wants me to do well
In school

88% strongly agree

10% agree

1% disagree

1% strongly disagree

Bullying i1s a problem at this
school

48% strongly agree

27% agree

16% disagree

8% strongly disagree

My principal cares about me.
61% strongly agree

26% agree

5% disagree

6% strongly disagree

West Cottonwood Student
Survey (5th, 6th, 7th, 8th

graders) results are as follows*

| often do NOT have enough
time to get from one class to the
next

100% strongly disagree

My school 1s kept clean.
100% strongly agree

Most students in my school do
their best, even when their work
I1s difficult

100% strongly agree

Most students in my school do
all their homework
100% strongly agree

Most students in my school
think it 1s OK to cheat If other
students are cheating

100% strongly agree

Most students in my school try
to do a good job on schoolwork
even when it 1s not interesting
100% strongly agree

My teachers give me a lot of
encouragement
100% strongly agree

My teachers make learning
Interesting.
100% strongly agree

My teachers encourage
students to share their ideas

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 21 of 41




Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

| often do NOT have enough
time to get from one class to the
next.

1 5% strongly agree

16.7% agree

33.3% neutral

28 8% disagree

19.7% strongly disagree

My school I1s kept clean.
13 6% strongly agree
36 4% agree

40 9% neutral

6.1% disagree

3% strongly disagree

Most students in my school do
their best, even when their work
1s difficult

4 5% strongly agree

28.8% agree

39.4% neutral

16.7% disagree

10.6% strongly disagree

Most students in my school do
all their homework

3% strongly agree

19 7% agree

37.9% neutral

24 2% disagree

15 2% strongly disagree

Most students in my school
think it 1s OK to cheat if other
students are cheating.

6.1% strongly agree

24.2% agree

about things we are studying in
class.
100% strongly agree

My teachers notice when | am
doing a good job and let me
know about it

100% strongly agree

My teachers will help me
improve my work If | do poorly
on an assignment

100% strongly agree

My teachers provide me with
lots of chances to be a part of
class discussions or activities.
100% strongly agree

My teachers often assign
homework that helps me learn
100% strongly agree

My teachers will give me extra
help at school outside of our
regular class

100% strongly agree

Most students in my school are
well behaved.
100% strongly agree

Most students really care about
each other
100% strongly agree

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mtd-Year Report

Page 22 of 41



Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

22.7% neutral
28.8% disagree
18.2% strongly disagree

Most students in my school try
to do a good job on schoolwork
even when it 1s not interesting.
6 1% strongly agree

30.3% agree

33 3% neutral

25 8% disagree

4 5% strongly disagree

My teachers give me a lot of
encouragement.

37.9% strongly agree
45.5% agree

10 6% neutral

4 5% disagree

1 5% strongly disagree

My teachers make learning
Interesting

28 8% strongly agree
36.4% agree

25 8% neutral

7 6%% disagree

1.5% strongly disagree

My teachers encourage
students to share their iIdeas
about things we are studying in
class.

39 4% strongly agree

40.9% agree

13.6% neutral

6.1% disagree

Most students help each other
when asked.
100% strongly agree

Most students treat each other
well
100% strongly agree

I love this school
100% strongly agree

Teachers at my school treat
students with respect.
100% strongly agree

Students at my school treat
each other with respect
100% strongly agree

Most students in my school are
easlily able to work out
disagreements with other
students.

100% strongly agree

There are opportunities for
students in my school to talk
with staff members one-to-one
100% strongly agree

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 23 of 41

R R R R




Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

0% strongly disagree

My teachers notice when | am
doing a good job and let me
know about it.

22 7% strongly agree

42.4% agree

27.3% neutral

6.1% disagree

1 5% strongly disagree

My teachers will help me
improve my work If | do poorly
on an assignment.

27 3% strongly agree

50% agree

16.7% neutral

6 1% disagree

0% strongly disagree

My teachers provide me with
lots of chances to be a part of
class discussions or activities
39.4% strongly agree

40 9% agree

12.1% neutral

6.1% disagree

1 5% strongly disagree

My teachers often assign

homework that helps me learn.

19.7% strongly agree
40 9% agree

27.3% neutral

10 6% disagree

1.5% strongly disagree

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 24 of 41



S aeEwA

Priority Metric Baseline Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24

My teachers will give me extra
help at school outside of our
regular class

28.8% strongly agree

40.9% agree

25 8% neutral

3% disagree

1.5% strongly disagree

Most students in my school are
well behaved

1.5% strongly agree

27.3% agree

37 9% neutral

21.2% disagree

12 1% strongly disagree

Most students really care about
each other.

10.6% strongly agree

34 8% agree

34.8% neutral

16.7% disagree

10 6% strongly disagree

Most students help each other
when asked.

10.6% strongly agree

42.4% agree

31 8% neutral

9.1% disagree

6.1% strongly disagree

Most students treat each other
well.

6.1% strongly agree

30.3% agree

33 3% neutral

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union Schoo! District Page 25 of 41
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

T ..




Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

19 7% disagree
10 6% strongly disagree

| love this school
28.8% strongly agree
36 4% agree

21.2% neutral

4.5% disagree

9.1% strongly disagree

Teachers at my school treat
students with respect.
30.3% strongly agree

48 5% agree

18 2% neutral

3% disagree

0% strongly disagree

Students at my school treat
each other with respect.
4.5% strongly agree

27.3% agree

37.9% neutral

21.1% disagree

9.1% strongly disagree

Most students in my school are
easlly able to work out
disagreements with other
students

1.5% strongly agree

16 7% agree

37 9% neutral

28.8% disagree

15 2% strongly disagree

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 26 of 41



Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

There are opportunities for
students in my school to talk
with staff members one-to-one
24 2% strongly agree

47% agree

18 2% neutral

7 6% disagree

3% strongly disagree

Local Indicator
Parent survey

North Cottonwood Parent
Survey results are as follows
My child i1s enrolled Iin

87% in-seat instruction

13% distance learning

My child has a positive
relationship with 1 or more
adults on campus

54.3% strongly agree
42.8% agree

2.9% disagree

0% strongly disagree

My child feels safe at school
53 7% strongly agree

41 2% agree

4.4% disagree

0.7% strongly disagree

My child enjoys coming to
school

93.9% yes

6 1% no

My child has experienced
bullying at school this year
(Bullying 1s defined as

Survey 1s not administered until
the spring

North Cottonwood Parent
Survey results are as follows
My child 1s enrolled in:

99% In-seat instruction

1% distance learning

My child has a positive
relationship with 1 or more
adults on campus

100% strongly agree

My child feels safe at school.
100% strongly agree

My child enjoys coming to
school
100% yes

My child has experienced
bullying at school this year.
(Bullying 1s defined as
unprovoked, repeated and
aggressive actions done with
the intent to cause physical or
emotional harm)

0% yes

100% no

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union Schoo! District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 27 of 41



Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

unprovoked, repeated and
aggressive actions done with
the intent to cause physical or
emotional harm)

67 7% yes

32.3% no

| am satisfied with the
communication between school
and home (1.e. phone calls, auto
dialer, emails, websites,
notices, etc )

34.8% strongly agree

58 7% agree

4.3% disagree

2 2% strongly disagree

My child's teacher frequently
communicates with me
regarding my child's progress
and needs

49.3% strongly agree

34.1% agree

14.5% disagree

2 2% strongly disagree

In ight of and in consideration
of the iImpact of the COVID
crisis, | am most concerned
about

74.3% My child's
educational/academic progress.
64% My child's social and
emotional well being

24 3% My child's physical
health.

| am satisfied with the
communication between school
and home (1.e phone calls, auto
dialer, emails, websites,
notices, etc )

100% strongly agree

My child's teacher frequently
communicates with me
regarding my child's progress
and needs

100% strongly agree

In ight of and in consideration
of the impact of the COVID
crisis, | am most concerned
about

100% My child's
educational/academic progress.
100% My child's social and
emotional well being.

100% My child's physical
health.

100% Our constitutional nghts
(and children's)are being
impeded

100% | do have concerns about
my child's social emotional well-
being along with academics
100% All three of the above.
The masks need to go!

100% | am very confident that
my child will not be impacted by
the COVID 19 problem, as |
make sure she knows what is
going on

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 28 of 41



[

Prionty Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

1 5% Our constitutional nghts
(and children's)are being
impeded

0 7% | do have concerns about
my child's social emotional well-
being along with academics.

0 7% All three of the above. The
masks need to go!

0.7% | am very confident that
my child will not be impacted by
the COVID 19 problem, as |
make sure she knows what 1s
going on

0.7% Mostly wish we could not
force the kids to wear masks
and distance anymore

0.7% My child does not function
well without socialization.

0.7% none

0 7% Our family overall health
and having a routine that was
needed.

West Cottonwood Parent
Survey results are as follows
My child 1s enrolled in

96% in-seat instruction

4% distance learning

My child has a positive
relationship with 1 or more
adults on campus

63% strongly agree

30% agree

7% disagree

0% strongly disagree

My child feels safe at school

100% Mostly wish we could not
force the kids to wear masks
and distance anymore.

100% My child does not
function well without
socialization.

100% Our family overall health
and having a routine that was
needed

West Cottonwood Parent
Survey results are as follows
My child 1s enrolled In

99% in-seat instruction

1% distance learning

My child has a positive
relationship with 1 or more
adults on campus

100% strongly agree

My child feels safe at school
100% strongly agree

My child enjoys coming to
school

100% yes

0% no

My child has experienced
bullying at school this year.
(Bullying 1s defined as
unprovoked, repeated and
aggressive actions done with
the intent to cause physical or
emotional harm)

1% yes

99% no

2122-22 Local Control Accountabtlity Plan for Cattonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 29 of 41




Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

35% strongly agree
65% agree

0% disagree

0% strongly disagree

My child enjoys coming to
school

96% yes

4% no

My child has experienced
bullying at school this year.
(Bullying 1s defined as
unprovoked, repeated and
aggressive actions done with
the intent to cause physical or
emotional harm)

73% yes

27% no

| am satisfied with the
communication between school
and home (1.e phone calls, auto
dialer, emails, websites,
notices, etc )

70% strongly agree

30% agree

0% disagree

0% strongly disagree

My child's teacher frequently
communicates with me
regarding my child's progress
and needs

37% strongly agree

30% agree

26% disagree

7% strongly disagree

| am satisfied with the
communication between school
and home (i e. phone calls, auto
dialer, emails, websites,
notices, etc )

70% strongly agree

30% agree

0% disagree

0% strongly disagree

My child's teacher frequently
communicates with me
regarding my child's progress
and needs’

100% strongly agree

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 30 of 41



Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

In ight of and in consideration
of the impact of the COVID
crisis, | am most concerned
about

51.9% My child's
educational/academic progress
59.3% My child's social and
emotional well being

18 5% My child's physical
health

3.7% All of the above

3 7% The masks need to go
3.7% My child not being able to
play outside due to cohorting.

Basic Services
Facilities Inspection Tool

100% facilities in good repair

100% facilities in good repair

100% facilities in good repair

Local Indicator
Parent Input

100% of parents, including
unduplicated pupils and
individuals with exceptional
needs, have the opportunity to
make decisions for the school
district and each individual
school site through the School
Site Council, LCAP Committee,
and Parent Foundation.

100% of parents, including
unduplicated pupils and
individuals with exceptional
needs, have the opportunity to
make decisions for the school
district and each individual
school site through the School
Site Council, LCAP Committee,
and Parent Foundation

100% of parents, including
unduplicated pupils and
individuals with exceptional
needs, have the opportunity to
make decisions for the school
district and each individual
school site through the School
Site Council, LCAP Commuttee,
and Parent Foundation.

Student Engagement

94% attendance rate

% attendance rate

98% attendance rate

Student Engagement

ORANGE performance level
14 3% chronic absenteeism rate

33% chronic absenteeism rate

BLUE performance level
Less than 1% chronic
absenteeism rate

Local Indicator
Staff Survey

Staff surveys indicated the
average rating for district
progress In providing
professional learning for

Survey I1s not administered until
the spring

Staff surveys indicated the
average rating for district
progress in providing
professional learning for

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 31 of 41




. oaeewoa T

Priority Metric Baseline Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24
teaching to the recently adopted teaching to the recently adopted
academic standards in academic standards in

Rating Scale (lowest to
Rating Scale (lowest to highest) 1- Exploration and
highest) 1- Exploration and Research Phase, 2- Beginning
Research Phase, 2- Beginning Development, 3-Initial
Development, 3-Initial Implementation, 4- Full
Implementation, 4- Full Implementation, 5- Full
Implementation, 5- Full Implementation and
Implementation and Sustainability

Sustainability

Staff surveys indicated the
average rating for district
progress in providing
professional learning for
teaching to the recently adopted
academic standards In

Staff surveys indicated the
average rating for district
progress In providing
professional learning for
teaching to the recently adopted

academic standards in ELA=5
ELA=3; ELD= 5
ELD =3 Math = 5
Math =3 NGSS =5
NGSS =3

Social Science = 5
Social Science = 3
The average rating for the
districts progress in making
Instructional matenals that are
aligned to the recently adopted
academic standards in

The average rating for the
districts progress in making
Instructional materials that are
aligned to the recently adopted
academic standards in

ELA= 5
LD -4 e o
Math = 5 Math =5
NGSS = 5 NGSS =5
Social Science = 5 Social Science = 5
The average rating for the The average rating for the
districts progress In districts progress in
implementing policies or Implementing policies or
programs to support staff in
2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District Page 32 of 41

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

T




Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

programs to support staff in
identifying areas where they
can improve In delivering
instruction aligned to the
recently adopted academic
standards in

ELA=4

ELD =4

Math =4

NGSS =4

Social Science = 3

The average rating for the
districts progress In
implementing each of the
following academic standards
adopted by the state board of
education for all students in
CTE=2

Health Ed = 3

PE =4

VAPA =4

World Language = 2

The district's success at
engaging in the following
activities with teachers and
school administrators
Identifying the professional
learning needs of groups of
teachers or staff as a whole = 3
Identifying the professional
learning needs of individual
teachers =3

Identifying the professional
learning needs of individual
teachers = 3

identifying areas where they
can improve In delivering
Instruction aligned to the
recently adopted academic
standards in

ELA=5
ELD= 5
Math = 5
NGSS = 5

Social Science = 5

The average rating for the
districts progress in
implementing each of the
following academic standards
adopted by the state board of
education for all students in
CTE= 5

HealthEd= 5

PE=5

VAPA= 5

World Language = 5

The district's success at
engaging Iin the following
activities with teachers and
school administrators
Identifying the professional
learning needs of groups of
teachers or staff as a whole = 5
Identifying the professional
learning needs of individual
teachers = 5

Identifying the professional
learning needs of individual
teachers = 5

2122-22 Local Control Accountabtlity Plan for Cottanwoaod Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 33 of 41



o aeenoa

Actions and Services

Implement a user friendly
website (Google translator
Iink, inks to events with
details, parent links,
student links, daily bulletin,
monthly newsletter, parent
survey)

Provide SMS and weekly
tech updates

Monthly Principal
newsletter

Website annual fee
Apptegy-An app for all
school notifications

Goal/ Action Title/ . I Personnel Non-Personnel Total "
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
21 Parent Engagement On-going Yes LCFF $500 $500 00 YTD Expenditures $0
Students will improve, both
academically and socially, We have yet to
at school through parent implement parent
information evenings to nights However, we
aide in home-school have communicated
communication Student constantly with parents
will improve in skills on ways to support
through the use of highly their student(s) We
qualified parent volunteers have also
Students will also have implemented parent
parents that are equipped conferences and lots
to help them succeed of one-on-one
through the use of meetings to support
technology student achievement
Parent nights-supplies and student's overall
well-being
22 |Communication On-going No LCFF $13,775 $13,77500 |YTD Expenditures

$13,775

Communication
continues to be
provided through

Implementing a user
friendly website
(Google translator link,
links to events with
detalls, parent links,
student links, daily
bulletin, monthly
newsletter, parent
survey)

Providing SMS and
weekly tech updates,
monthly Principal
newsletter

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 34 of 41




Goal/ Action Title/ N Personnel Non-Personnel Total :

Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
Implementing a new
website and app for
school notifications

23 Broad Course of Study | On-going No LCFF $3,434 LCFF $35,493 $38,927 00 | YTD Expenditures
Provide a broad course of $14,524
study to include the
following Implemented a broad
Electives at West course of study
Cottonwood
VAPA
Career Technical Ed
Robotics
Culinary Arts
Agriculture
Music at North Cottonwood
Books and supplies-
instructional materials
Contracted services for
elective teachers
2.4 Behavioral On-going Yes LCFF $128,102 $252,900 00 |YTD Expenditures
Counseling/Social $177,860
Emotional Support Other State $11,272
TK-8 grade students will Federal $113,526 Provided behavioral
have access to behavioral counseling and social
counseling emotional support
Counselor salary and through
benefits
Social Emotional Learning TK-8 grade students
Support have access to
behavioral counseling
Counselor
Embedded social
emotional learning
support in the
classroom
25 |Attendance Campaign On-going Yes LCFF $7,000 $7,000 00 |YTD Expenditures $0

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 35 of 41




Absent Students

Using the LCSSP grant
funds, through another
district, we will target
students that are
chronically absent to
eliminate any barriers that
are keeping them from
attending school We will
target chronically absent
students using an
Attendance Coordinator
and Data Coordinator to

Goal/ Action Title/ I Personnel Non-Personnel
Action Description Contributing Expenses Mid-Year Report
Attendance awareness Implemented an
campaign-Address at Back attendance campaign
to School Nights and using the Chronic
Kindergarten Round Up, Absenteeism
Preschool onentation, and Coordinator and
parent events through Kindergarten
Attendance incentives will Round Up
be provided to students at
each school site
Books and supplies
2.6 Facilities $156,276 $360,000 00 |YTD Expenditures
Facility projects based on $107,470
maintenance plan
2 0 FTE Facilities We have continued to
Maintenance maintain and upgrade
Staff/Maintenance our facilities based on
Coordinator salary benefits our maintenance plan
Supplies and as needs arise
Contracts for major We have painted,
facilities work and repair repaired bathrooms,
replaced flooring i
both schools, and
added arr purifiers to
each room
2.7 Target Chronically Chronic Absenteeism

Coordinator has
targeted our students
that have missed over
10% of school days
She works with staff,
students and families
on a weekly basis to
ensure consistency
and reduce the
number of absences
She connects families
to resources In the
community

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 36 of 41




Goal/ Action Title/ . Personnel Non-Personnel Total
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds

e Set goals with
students to
attend school,

¢ Connect with
students on a
weekly basis,

¢ Meet with School
Attendance
Clerk and the
Principal weekly
to review data to
target students,

o Provide home
visits for
chronically
absent students,

¢ Implementa
buddy mentoring
program,

e Attend School
Attendance
Review Teams
(Ter 2),

e Altend School
Attendance
Review Board
(Tier 3),

e Coordinate and
provide
professional
development for
staff (customer
service, SEL,
Restorative
Justice,
Capturing Kids
Hearts),

¢ Connect families
with local
resources and
community
partners to
reduce barriers

Mid-Year Report

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District Page 37 of 41
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report




Goal/ Action Title/ . . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
for attending
school, and
e Implement an
attendance
campaign using
Attendance
Works
resources
2.8 Assistant Principal On going Yes Federal $80,117 LCFF $27,000 $107,117 00 | YTD Expenditures
Assistant Principal to assist $63,996
with behavior, chronic
absenteeism, School The Asststant Principal
Attendance Review Board has assisted with
and unduplicated pupil behavior, chronic
needs absenteeism, School
Attendance Review
Board and
unduplicated pupil
needs as well as many
other tasks She has
worked with staff at
staff meetings to
improve instruction
and has facilitated
School Site Council
meetings
29 Home School Program On going No Federal $182,068 LCFF $4,000 $186,068 00 |YTD Expenditures
Home School Program $92,130
Continue to implement
the Home School
Program to
accommodate families
that are not
comfortable sending
their children to school
during the pandemic
210 |Special Education and On-going No LCFF No additional $000 The Special Ed
Student Support costs Director and the

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 38 of 41



o AeeNoa

Goal/ Action Title/ . . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
Training in Student Study Mountain Valley JPS
Team protocols Special Ed Director
have provided training
for Student Study
Team protocols and
other Special Ed
requirements
Goal 3
Rationale
Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 3
Priority Metric Basehne Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24
Actions and Services
Goal/ Action Title/ . I Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report
Goal 4
Rationale
Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 4
2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District Page 39 of 41

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report




o AeeNoa

Priority Metric Baseline Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24

Actions and Services

Goal/ Action Title/ . I Personnel
Action Description Timespan | Contributing

Non-Personnel Total .
Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District

Page 40 of 41
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

T T




Goal 5

Rationale

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 5

Priority Metric Baseline Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24
Actions and Services
Goal/ Action Title/ . . Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Cottonwood Union School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 41 of 41




Cottonwood Union School District
School Calendar 2022-23

July 2022 \ o January 2023
S M T W T

F S § School starts Aug 17 S M T W T F S
1 2 :\\\\§ School ends June 8 1 2 | AA | * 5 6 7
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10| % {12 {13 | 14
10 | 11 12 113114 | 15 | 16 STAFF WORK DAYS 15 | 16 | 17 * 19 1 © | 21
17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 A All Staff August 16 22 | 23 |24 * | 26| 27| 28
24 | 25 126 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 AA | Teachers Aug 15,Jan 3 29 | 30 | 31
31 19/100
TR | s/t
February 2023
S M T W T F S Labor Day Sept 5 ry
Veteran’s Day Nov 11 5 M T W T F 5
1 2 3 4 5 6 Thanksgiving Break ~ Nov 21-25 - : ; 13 141
7 8 9 10 | 11 12 1 13 Winter Break Dec 19-Jan3 > 6 0
) 12 {1314 x| 16 ] X |18
14| Aa | A 777 18 19 | 20 Martin Luther King Day ~ Jan 16
4 \ 19 | 20 [ 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25
21 1 22 | 23] * | 25| 26 | 27 President's Day/
\ Feb 20-24 26 | 27 | 28
28 { 29 | 30 | * Lincoln’s Day 15115
11/11 Spring Break April 3-10
M May 2
September 2022 emenal By Ve | March2o23 |
S M T w T F S %7 MINIMUM DAYS S M T W T F S
1 2 3 'School dismissed ~ West 100 * 2 3 4
4 5 6 * 8 9 | 10 North 115 5 6 7 * 9 | 10 [ 11
11 12 | 13 * 15 | 16 | 17 Collaboration 12 | 13 | 14 * 16 | 17 | 18
18 [ 19 [ 20} * | 22 | 23 | 24 Days 19 | 20 [ 21 | * |23 | 24 | 25
*
25 |1 26 | 27 | * {29 ] 30 Aug 25, 31 Sept 7,14, 21,28 26 | 27 | 28 30 ¢ © d
21/32 Oct 5,12,19,26  Nov 9, 16, 30 3/138
October 2022 Dec 7 an 4,11,18,25 | [ N2
S M T W T F S Feb 1,8, 15,22 Mar 1,8,15,22,29 S M T wW T F S
1 Apr 12,19, 26 May 4, 10, 1
2 3 4 * 6 7 8 Parent Conferences- Nov 1-4 2 3 4 > 6 7 8
9 [ 10 f 11 | X (13] 14|15 Day Before Winter Break- Dec 16 9 y (e[ 11 | * |13 ] 14 )15
16 17 18 * 20 = 22 West open House- May 17 16 17 18 * 20 21 22
23 | 24 | 25 * 27 | 28 | 29 North Open House- May 24 23 | 24 | 25 * 27 | 28 | 29
30 | 31 Last Day of School- June 8 30
21/53 14/152
May 2023
November 2022 | WEST QUARTER ENDING DATES S M T W T F s
s M T W T F S 15t Quarter A7) Oct 21 112 1 * 121516
* | x| kK]S 2" Quarter (46) Jan 20 .
* 7 8 9 11 12 | 13
6 7 8 10 n 12 31 Quarter (45) March 31 14 15 16 * 18 19 | 20
* | 17 | 18 | 19 th
13 |14 | 15 4th Quarter (42) June 8 *
21 1 22 | 23 25 | 26 | 27
20 | 21 | 22 | 23 {24 | 25| 26
27 | 28 | 29 | * 180 28 129 |30 ] *
@ NORTH TRIMESTER ENDING DATES
16/63 15T Tnimester 47 Oct 21

22/174
2 Tnmester (66) Feb 17t
T Tnmester  (67)  JunBth [ June2023
S M T w T

F S 180 s M T W T F S
1] 213 S 1] 2] 3
Em Mak Days

4[5 ]6]* |89 10 ergency Takeup T2y 256 7%@10
1Ml 1213]14]15] |17 Apnil 17 (If Needed) 11| 12]13[14]15] 16 | 17
18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 18 |19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24

25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 June 9 (If Needed) 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30
12/81 6/180

Draft 02/09/2022 Option B



COTTONWOOD UNION

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF SHASTA
COTTONWOOD, CALIFORNIA

AUDIT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2021

Chavan & Associates, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130

Morgan Hill, CA 95037




Page Intentionally Left Blank




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
County of Shasta

Table of Contents

TITLE

FINANCIAL SECTION:

Independent Auditor’s Report
Management’s Discusston and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
1n Fund Balances
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Notes to the Basic Fmancial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes 1n Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (GAAP) - General Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (GAAP) - Cafeteria Fund

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabilities

Schedule of Changes 1n Total OPEB Liability

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Combinming Statements - Nonmajor Funds
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

State and Federal Award Compliance Section
Orgamzation (Unaudited)
Schedule of Instructional Time
Schedule of Charter Schools (Unaudited)
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis (Unaudited)
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Reconciliation of the Annual Financial and Budget Report (SACS) to the
Audited Financial Statements
Notes to State and Federal Award Compliance Section

PAGE

15
16

17

18

19

20
23

57

58
59
60
61

65

66

69
70
71
72
73

74
75




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
County of Shasta

Table of Contents

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS:

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Fmnancial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report on Complhiance for Each Major Federal Program and
Report on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements that Could
Have a Direct and Material Effect on State Programs

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Status of Prior Year Findings and Recommendations

79

81

83

87
89




FINANCIAL

SECTION




Chavan and Associates, lip

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Board of Trustees
of the Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Cottonwood, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cottonwood Union Elementary School
District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The District’s management 1s responstble for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements 1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted mn the United States of
America, this includes the design, implementation, and mantenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material musstatement,
whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contamned n Government Auditing
Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
1n the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel 408-217-8749 « E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 1 info@cnallp com « www cnallp com




Chavan and Associates, llp

Certified Public Accountants

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Dustrict, as of June 30, 2021 and the respective changes 1n financial
position for the year then ended 1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the
United States of America

Emphasis of a Matter
New Accounting Standards

During the year, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No
84, GASB Statement No 84, “Fiduciary Activities ” This statement establishes criteria for identifying
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and describes four fiduciary funds
that should be reported, 1f applicable As a result, the District increased 1ts General Fund beginning
fund balance by $26,468 to account for activities previously reported 1n fiduciary funds that do not
meet the fiduciary activity defimition per GASB 84 Our opinion has not been modified with respect
to this matter

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of pension plan
contributions, schedule of proportionate share of net pension liabilities, and schedule of changes 1n
total OPEB habulity, as listed 1n the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 1s required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 1t to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Umited States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the nformation because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements The combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements, as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, orgamization
schedule, schedule of mstructional time, schedule of Charter Schools, schedule of financial trends and
analysis, and the reconciliation of the Annual Financial and Budget report (SACS) to the audited financial

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 85037
Tel 408-217-8749 « E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 2 info@cnallp com « www cnallp com




S acENoa

Chavan and Associates, lip

Certified Public Accountants

statements, as required by the 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and
State Compliance Reporting, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U S

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniyform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, schedule of expendrtures of
federal awards, schedule of instructional time, and the reconciliation of the Annual Financial and
Budget report (SACS) to the audited financial statements are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
mn the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmayor fund financial statements, schedule
of expenditures of federal awards, schedule of instructional time, and the reconciliation of the Annual
Financial and Budget report (SACS) to the audited financial statements are fairly stated, in all
material respects, 1n relation to the basic financial statements as a whole

The orgamzation schedule, schedule of charter schools and the schedule of financial trends and
analysis have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 1n the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also 1ssued our report dated January 20,
2022 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its comphance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters The purpose of that report 1s to describe the scope of our testing of mnternal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
mnternal control over financial reporting or on compliance That report 1s an ntegral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards mn considering the District’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance

C&A UP

January 20, 2022
Morgan Hill, California

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel 408-217-8749 - E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 3 info@cnallp com - www cnallp com




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Page 4




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

INTRODUCTION

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 1s a required section of the District’s annual
financial report, as shown in the overview below The purpose of the MD&A 1s to present a discussion
and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2021
This report will (1) focus on significant financial 1ssues, (2) provide an overview of the District’s
financial activity, (3) 1dentify changes 1n the District’s financial position, (4) identify any individual fund
1ssues or concerns, and (5) provide descriptions of significant asset and debt activity

This mformation, presented in conjunction with the annual Basic Financial Statements, 1s intended to
provide a comprehensive understanding of the District’s operations and financial standing

Required Components of the Annual Financial Report

Basic
Financial Statements

Government-Wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Statements Financial Statements Financial Statements

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial lughlights for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 were as follows

> Total net position decreased by $114,937 (1%), mainly due to an increase 1n net pension Liabilities of
$631,279

» The District recorded deferred outflows of resources of $2,359,894 and deferred inflows of resources
of $1,079,816 as required by GASB 68 and GASB 75 for penston and other postemployment benefits
accounting and reporting Deferred outflows of resources are technically not assets but increase the
Statement of Net Position similar to an asset and deferred inflows of resources are technically not
liabilities but decrease the Statement of Net Position similar to liabilittes See Note 1 1n the notes to
financial statements for a definition

» The District had $12,681,129 in government-wide expenses which 1s 101% of total government-wide
revenues Program specific revenues in the form of operating grants and contributions and charges for
services accounted for $3,353,488, or 27%, of the total revenues of $12,539,724

> General revenue of $9,186,236 which includes property taxes, unrestricted federal and state grants
and LCFF sources, was 73% of total revenues in 2021 and 2020

Page 5




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

» The fund balances of all governmental funds increased by $1,155,263, which 1s a 33 9% decrease
from 2020

» Total governmental fund revenues and expenditures totaled $12,599,540 and $11,470,745,
respectively

USING THE ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of basic financial statements and notes to those statements These
statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as an entire operating entity The
statements provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities comprise the government-wide financial
statements and provide information about the activities of the whole District, presenting both an aggregate
view of the District’s finances and a longer-term view of those finances Fund financial statements
provide the next level of detail For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed
1n the short-term as well as what remains for future spending The fund financial statements also look at
the District’s most significant funds with all other non-major funds presented 1n total in one column In
the case of the Dustrict, the General Fund 1s by far the most significant fund The basic financial
statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide
more detailed data

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The full annual financial report 1s a product of three separate parts the basic financial statements,
supplementary information, and this sectton, the Management’s Discussion and Analysts The three
sections together provide a comprehensive financial overview of the District The basic financials are
comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial information from different perspectives,
government-wide and fund statements

» Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-
term and long-term information about the District’s overall financial position

» Individual parts of the District, which are reported as fund financial statements, focus on reporting the
District’s operations 1n more detail These fund financial statements comprise the remaining
statements

» Notes to the financials, which are included 1n the financial statements, provide more detailed data and
explain some of the information 1n the statements The required supplementary information section
provides further explanations and provides additional support for the financial statements

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the District to provide programs and
activities, the view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question,
“How did we do financially during the fiscal year 2020 - 2021?” The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities answer this question These statements mclude all assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting simtlar to the accounting practices used by most private-sector companies

Page 6



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

This basis of accounting takes mnto account all of the current year revenues and expenses regardless of
when cash 1s recerved or paid

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in net posttion This change 1n net
position 1s important because 1t tells the reader that, for the District as a whole, the financial position of
the District has improved or diminmished The causes of this change may be the result of many factors,
some financial, and some not Non-financial factors include the District’s property tax base, current
property tax laws mn Califorma restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, required educational
programs and other factors

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District reports governmental
activities Governmental activities are the activities where most of the District’s programs and services
are reported including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of
plant, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities The District does not have any business type
activities

REPORTING THE DISTRICT’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the District’s major funds begins on with the Balance Sheet Fund financial reports
provide detailed information about the District’s major funds The District uses many funds to account for
a multitude of financial transactions These fund financial statements focus on each of the District’s most
significant funds The District’s major governmental fund was the General Fund and Cafeteria Special
Revenue Fund

Governmental Funds

Most of the District’s activities are reported m governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending 1n the future periods
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s general government operations and the
basic services 1t provides Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent 1n the future to finance educational programs The relationship
(or differences) between governmental activities (reported 1n the Statement of Net position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds 1s reconciled 1n the financial statements

Page 7




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole Table 1
provides a summary of the District’s net position as of June 30, 2021 as compared to June 30, 2020

EEPositio
Percentage
Description 2021 2020 Change Change
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 5,755,176 $ 4,054,248 $ 1,700,928 41 95%

17,306,033

Capttal Assets
Total Assets

16,676,175

TotalDeferred OO

Liabilities

Current Liabilities $ 1,189,666 $
Long-term Liabilit

L8189

Totalllliabilities

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 14,364,712 $ 15,506,193 $ (1,141,481) -7 36%
Restricted 634,659 472,988 161,671 34 18%

Unrestricted
MotaliNefiPosition

During the year, deferred outflows of resources decreased by 11%, and long-term liabilities increased by
3% mostly because of changes 1n pension and benefit amounts and actuarial assumptions related to GASB
68 and GASB 75 GASB 68 requires all local governments that participate in cost sharing pension plans
to record 1ts proportionate share of net pension labilities from pension plans in the government-wide
financial statements There was no impact on fund balance as a result of GASB 68 and GASB 75

Page 8




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Table 2 shows the changes n net position for fiscal year 2021 as compared to 2020

Percentage

Description 2021 2020 Change Change
Revenues
Program revenues $ 3,353,488 §$§ 2,123,210 $ 1,230,278 57 94%
General revenues

Property taxes 2,708,283 2,497,233 211,050 8 45%

Grants and entitlements - unrestricted 6,159,048 6,476,227 (317,179) -4 90%

Other 318,905 384,091 (65,186) -16 97%
Total Revenues 12,539,724 11,480,761 1,058,963 9 22%
Program Expenses
Instruction 8,091,048 8,050,682 40,366 0 50%
Instruction-related services 988,182 1,145,203 (157,021) -13 71%
Pupil services 1,288,086 1,417,827 (129,741) -9 15%
General administration 782,262 772,193 10,069 1 30%
Plant services 1,167,983 1,260,990 (93,007) -7 38%
Ancillary services 253,489 220,115 33,374 15 16%
Interest on long-term debt 110,079 178,763 (68,684) -38 42%
Total Expenses 12,681,129 13,045,773 (364,644) -2 80%
Change in Net Position (141,405) (1,565,012) 1,423,607 90 96%
Begininng Net Position 7,848,841 9,413,853 (1,565,012) -16 62%
P

rior Period Adjustments

26,468 v 100 00%
Endi Sitio 6%
The District's expenses for instructional services were 72% of total expenses 1n 2020-21 as compared to
70% tn 2019-20 The purely administrative activities of the District accounted for 6% of total costs 1n
2020-21 and 1n 2019-20 Interest on long-term debt represented 1% of total expenses in 2020-21 and n
2019-20 Total expenses were 101% of revenue 1n 2020-21 and 114% 1n 2019-20, which 1s reflected in
the deficit change 1n net position of $114,937 1n 2020-21 versus $1,565,012 in 2019-20 In regard to
revenue, program revenues were 27% of total revenues 1n 2020-21 and 18% of total revenues 1n 2019-20




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

The following 1s a summary of government wide revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Gov't Wide Revenues

$14,000,000 _}/\\\\\‘

$12,000,000 1
$10,000,000

$8,0(X),000 “ % Other

# Grants and enttlements unrestricted
$5,000,000 1 B Property taxes
Program revenues
$4,000,000 -
$2,000,000
$0 -

2020

The following 1s a summary of expenses by function for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Gov't Wide Program Expenses

9,000,000
8,000,000
7,000,000
6,000,000
B Instruction
5,000,000 Instruction related services
Pupil services
4,000,000 General administration
® Plant services
3,000,000
B Other outgo
2,000,000 : Interest on long term debt
1,000,000

Page 10




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services Table 3 shows the net cost of services as compared to the prior fiscal year That
1s, 1t 1dentifies the cost of these services supported by general revenues for the government-wide
statements (not the Genera!l Fund)

Percentage
Description 2021 2020 Change Change
Instruction $ 5903243 $§ 6,713,609 $  (810,366) -12 1%
Instruction-related services 855,624 1,088,246 (232,622) 21 4%
Pupil services 757,697 1,054,919 (297,222) -28 2%
General administration 719,743 729,885 (10,142) -1 4%
Plant services 1,066,420 1,260,990 (194,570) -15 4%
Ancillary services 8,031 15,058 (7,027) -46 7%
Other outgo (93,196) (118,907) 25,711 27 6%

The following summarizes the District’s functions

Instruction expenditures include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils
Instruction-related Services mnclude the activities mvolved with assisting staff with the content and
process of educating students

Pupil Services include guidance and counseling, psychological, health, speech and testing services,
transporting students, as well as preparing, delivering, and serving meals to students.

General Admumstration reflects expenditures associated with the admnistrative and financial
supervision of the School District Typical functions would include the Board of Trustees and
Superintendent, Human Resources, Data Processing and Business Services

Plant Services mvolve keeping the school grounds and equipment 1 effective working condition
Ancillary Services represent the expenditures associated with co-curricular and athletic programs
Other Outgo ncludes turtions and transfers of resources between the District and other educational
agencies for services provided to District students

THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Table 4 provides an analysis of the District’s fund balances and the total change in fund balances from the
prior year

TFufid Balances’

Percentage
Description 2021 2020 Change Change
General Fund $ 4,116,132 $ 3,057,779 $ 1,058,353 34 6%
Cafeteria Fund 87,746 45,245 42,501 93 9%
Special Reserve Fund for Cap Out Proj 85,883 60,171 25,712 42 7%
Capttal Facilities Fund 15,039 2,257 12,782 566 3%

260,710 244,795

5%
565,510 5ok

Page 11




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GENERAL FUND AND BUDGETING HIGHLIGHTS

The District’s budget 1s prepared according to California law and 1n the modified accrual basis of
accounting During the course of the 2020-21 fiscal year, the District revised 1ts General Fund budget
twice, at 1% Interim and 2™ intenm The following charts summarize the changes from the District’s

original and final budgets

$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
S,

$4,000,000
$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
3-

General Fund Budgeted Revenues

Federal

LCFF sources
Other local
Other state

General Fund Budgeted Expenditures

Page 12

s Sum of Onginal Budget

2 Sum of Final Budget

* Sum of Onginal Budget

® Sum of Final Budget




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

CAPITAL ASSETS

Table 5 shows June 30, 2021 balances as compared to June 30, 2020

Percentage
Description 2021 2020 Change Change
Land 5 168,450 $ 168,450 $ - 0 00% |
Buildings 15,961,176 16,492,714 (531,538) -322% ;
Site Improvements 249,423 286,552 (37,129) -1296%

Equipment 297 126 358317 17 08%

LONG TERM DEBT

Table 6 summarizes the percent changes in Long-term Debt over the past two years

Percentage
Description 2021 2020 Change Change
General Obligation Bonds $ 1,363,504 $ 1,480,942 $ (117,438) -7 93%
Captrtal Lease Obligations 1,069,870 1,228,452 (158,582) -1291%
Net Pension Liabilities 11,543,307 10,912,028 631,279 579%
Total OPEB Liability 709,644 615,799 93,845 15 24%

101,534 5,61 18 60%

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE

The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) model 1s now at the fully funded level This means that
enrollment needs to be monittored closely as declining enrollment most likely means declining revenue
The Dustrict has been 1n decliming enrollment for many years with the 2018/19 year being an exception
Due to the pandemic, the 2020/21 school year funding was based on the P-2 ADA for 19/20 school year,
districts were held harmless for changes 1n enrollment 1n the 2020/21 fiscal year The Cottonwood Union
School District had approximately 20% of 1ts students enrolled in Distance Learming during this year
Enrollment will continue being monitored very closely and projected enrollment numbers are
conservatively based on the current enrollment

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report 1s designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money tt
recerves For questions regarding this report or additional financial information, please contact

Mr Doug Geren, Superintendent

Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
20512 W First Street

Cottonwood, CA 96022

Page 13



Basic Financial Statements

Page 14



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Capital assets - net
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension adjustments and changes
OPEB adjustments
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Long-term labilities
Due within one year
Due after one year
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension adjustments and changes
OPEB adjustments
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment 1n capital assets
Restricted for

Educational programs

Debt service

Cafeteria programs
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Page 15

Governmental
Activities

$ 3,652,918

2,096,909
4,335
1,014

16,676,175

§ 22431,351

$ 2,278,424

81,470

$ 2,359,894

$ 1,123,367

66,299

179,123

14,608,736

$ 15977525

$ 957,868

121,948

$ 1,079,816

$ 14,364,712

290,538

260,710

83,411
(7,265,467)

$ 7,733,904




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes 1 Net
Program Revenues Position
Operating Total
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions Activities
Governmental activities
Instruction $ 8,091,048 § 1,235  § 2,186,570 $§  (5,903,243)
Instruction-related services
Supervision of mstruction 123,079 - 46,928 (76,151)
Instruction library, media and technology 146,992 - 19,183 (127,809)
School site administration 718,111 - 66,447 (651,664)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 419,480 - 25,481 (393,999)
Food services 451,831 - 409,989 (41,842)
All other pupil services 416,775 - 94,919 (321,856)
General administration
Data processing 19,626 - - (19,626)
All other general administration 762,636 937 61,582 (700,117)
Plant services 1,167,983 - 101,563 (1,066,420)
Ancillary services 253,489 - 245,458 (8,031)
Other outgo - 91,817 1,379 93,196
Interest on long-term debt 110,079 - - (110,079)
Total governmental activities $ 12,681,129 §$ 93989 § 3,259,499 (9,327,641)
General revenues
Taxes and subventions
Taxes levied for general purposes 2,505,092
Taxes levied for debt service 203,191
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 6,159,048
Interest and mmvestment earnings 94,385
Interagency revenues 140,974
Miscellaneous 143,365
Special 1item
Loss on disposal of capital assets (59,819)
Total general revenues and special items 9,186,236
Change m net position (141,405)
Net position begmning 7,848,841
Prior period adjustment - GASB 84 26,468
Net position beginning, as adjusted 7,875,309
Net position ending $ 7,733,904

The notes to basic financial statements are an mtegral part of this statement

Page 16




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2021

Nonmajor Total
General Cafetaria Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 3217522 § 73,764 $ 361,632 $ 3,652,918
Accounts receivable 2,032,925 63,984 - 2,096,909
Inventory - 4,335 - 4,335
Other assets 1,014 - - 1,014
Total Assets $ 5251461 $ 142,083 $ 361,632 $ 5,755,176
Liabihities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,069,030 $ 54,337 § - $ 1,123,367
Unearned revenue 66,299 - - 66,299
Total Liabilities 1,135,329 54,337 - 1,189,666
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Revolving fund 2,000 - - 2,000
Inventory - 4,335 - 4,335
Prepaid expenditures 1,014 - - 1,014
Restricted for
Educational programs 290,538 - - 290,538
Cafeteria programs - 83,411 - 83,411
Debt service - - 260,710 260,710
Caprtal projects - - 100,922 100,922
Assigned for
Educational programs 2,051,026 - - 2,051,026
Bus fleet replacement 125,000 - - 125,000
Technology 100,000 - - 100,000
Textbooks 200,000 - - 200,000
Special education programs 200,000 - - 200,000
Staffing 400,000 - - 400,000
Other postemployment benefits 203,919 - - 203,919
Unassigned
Reserve for economic uncertainties 542,635 - - 542,635
Total Fund Balances 4,116,132 87,746 361,632 4,565,510
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,251,461 $ 142,083 $ 361,632 $ 5,755,176

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Page 17




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Caprtal assets for governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported as assets 1n governmental funds The cost of the assets 1s $27,503,566
and the accumulated depreciation 1s $10,827,391

Deferred outflows of resources include amounts that will not be mcluded 1n the calculation of the
District's net penston hiability of the plan year included 1n this report such as current fiscal
year contributions as recorded in the fund statements

The differences from pension plan assumptions 1n actuarial valuations are not included in the
plans' actuarial study until the next fiscal year and are reported as deferred inflows of
resources in the Statement of Net Position

The differences between projected and actual amounts 1n the OPEB plan 1s not included
in the plan's actuarial study until the next fiscal year and are reported as deferred
outflows or inflows of resources 1n the statement of net position

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable 1n the current period and therefore are not
reported as liabilities 1n the funds Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of

General obligation bonds $ 1,363,504
Capital lease hability 1,069,870
Net pension liabilities 11,543,307
Total OPEB hability 709,644
Compensated absences 101,534

Total net posttion - governmental activities

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Page 18

§ 4,565,510

16,676,175

2,278,424

(957,868)

(40,478)

(14,787,859)
8 773,004




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes tn Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Nonmajor Total
General Cafeteria Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
LCFF Sources $ 8,462,742 $ - $ - $ 8,462,742
Federal 1,144,158 334,645 - 1,478,803
Otbher state 1,378,027 37,742 2,723 1,418,492
Other local 926,822 15,864 296,817 1,239,503
Total revenues 11,911,749 388,251 299,540 12,599,540
Expenditures
Instruction 7,092,452 - - 7,092,452
Instruction-related services
Supervision of instruction 113,632 - - 113,632
Instruction hibrary, media and technology 122,542 - - 122,542
School site administration 660,344 - - 660,344
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 302,916 - - 302,916 |
Food services 65,879 350,750 - 416,629 |
All other pupil services 384,786 - - 384,786
General administration
Data processing 18,120 - - 18,120
All other general administration 696,372 - 758 697,130
Plant services 1,022,609 - - 1,022,609
Ancillary services 253,489 - - 253,489
Debt service
Principal 84,209 - 163,710 247,919
Interest and fees 32,514 - 105,663 138,177
Total expenditures 10,849,864 350,750 270,131 11,470,745
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,061,885 37,501 29,409 1,128,795
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - 5,000 25,000 30,000
Transfers out (30,000) - - (30,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (30,000) 5,000 25,000 -
Changes in fund balances 1,031,885 42,501 54,409 1,128,795
Fund balances beginning 3,057,779 45,245 307,223 3,410,247
Prior period adjustments - GASB 84 26,468 - - 26,468
Fund balances beginning - as adjusted 3,084,247 45,245 307,223 3,436,715
Fund balances ending $ 4,116,132 § 87,746 § 361,632 § 4,565,510

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Page 19



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 1n Fund Balance
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total net change 1n fund balances - governmental funds

Captal outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures However, in the
statement of activities , the cost of those assets 1s allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense There was a depreciation expense of $570,039 1n the period

Governmental funds do not report loss on disposal of capital assets However, n the
government-wide statement of activities and changes tn net position, the cost to dispose
of capital assets, net any proceeds, 1s accounted for as a special item

The governmental funds report long-term debt proceeds as an other financing source,
while repayment of debt principal 1s reported as an expenditure Also, governmental
funds report the effect of prepaid 1ssuance costs and premiums when debt 1s first 1ssued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 1n the statement of activities
Interest 1s recognized as an expenditure 1n the governmental funds when 1t 1s due
The net effect of these differences 1n the treatment of long-term debt and related
items 1s as follows

General obligation bond principal $ 89,337
Capital lease principal 158,582
Accreted Interest 20,101
Amortization of bond premiums 8,000

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amount earned
during the year In governmental funds, however, expenditures for those items are
measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially the amounts paid)
This year vacation earned was less than vacation used

In governmental funds, actual contributions to pension plans are reported as expenditures 1n
the year incurred However, 1n the government-wide statement of activities, only the
current year pension expense as noted 1n the plans' valuation reports 1s reported as an
expense, as adjusted for deferred inflows and outflows of resources

In governmental funds, actual contributions to OPEB plans are reported as expenditures
1n the year incurred However, 1n the government-wide statement of activities, only the
current year OPEB expense as noted 1n the plan's valuation reports 1s reported as an
expense, as adjusted for deferred inflows and outflows of resources

Change 1n net position of governmental activities

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Page 20

$ 1,128,795

(570,039)

(59,819)

276,020

(15,923)

(861,967)

(38,472)

3405



Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 21




Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Page 22




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A Accounting Principles

Cottonwood Union Elementary School District (the "District") accounts for 1ts financial
transactions 1n accordance with the policies and procedures of the Department of Education’s
Califorma School Accounting Manual. The account policies of the District conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the U S
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("AICPA™)

B Reporting Entity

The District 1s the level of government primarily accountable for activities related to public
educatton The governing authority consists of five elected officials who, together, constitute the
Board of Trustees The District’s combined financial statements include the accounts of all 1ts
operations The District evaluated whether any other entity should be included 1n these financial
statements using the criteria established by GASB  The basic, but not the only, criterion for
including a governmental department, agency, institution, commission, public authority, or other
governmental organization in a governmental unit’s reporting entity for general purpose financial
reports 1s the ability of the governmental umit’s elected officials to exercise oversight
responsibility over such agencies Oversight responsibility implies that one governmental unit 1s
dependent on another and that the dependent umt should be reported as part of the other
Oversight responsibility 1s dertved from the governmental umit’s power and 1ncludes, but 1s not
limited to

¢ Fmancial interdependency

e Sclection of governing authority
Designation of management

e Ability to significantly influence operations

e  Accountability for fiscal matters

The Dustrict does not have any component units and 1s not a component unit of any reporting
entity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

C Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (1 ¢, the Statement of Net Posttion and the Statement
of Activities) report mformation on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the District Eliminations
have been made to minimize the effect of interfund of activities The Statement of Net Position
reports all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net
position

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
This 1s the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund
financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements
are prepared Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with

Page 23



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

brief explanations to better 1dentify the relationship between the government-wide statements and
the statements for the governmental funds

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each function or program of the District’s governmental activities Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function The District does not allocate indirect
expenses to functions 1n the Statement of Activities Program revenues include charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as well as grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or caprtal requirements of a particular program Revenues
that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with
certain exceptions The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the
extent to which each governmental function 1s self-financing or draws from the general revenues
of the District

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements report detailled information about the District The focus of
governmental fund financial statements 1s on major funds rather than reporting funds by type
Each major governmental fund 1s presented 1n a separate column, and all non-major funds are
aggregated 1nto one column The Enterprise Fund 1s presented in the proprietary fund statements
Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type

The accounting and financial treatment applied to a fund 1s determined by 1ts measurement focus
All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are
generally included on the balance sheet The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances for these funds present increases (1 e, revenues and other financing sources)
and decreases (1 e , expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus except for agency
fund, which have no measurement focus

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized mn the accounts and
reported m the financial statements Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting
Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and recetves essentially
equal value, 1s recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place On a modified
accrual basis, revenue 1s recorded 1n the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and
become available “Available” means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year
or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
fiscal year To achieve comparability of reporting among Califorma districts, and so as not to
distort normal revenue patterns with specific respect to reimbursement grants and correction to

Page 24




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

state-aid apportionments, the Califorma Department of Education has defined available for
district as collectible within one year

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value 1n return, include property taxes, grants, and entitlements Under the accrual basis, revenue
from property taxes 1s recogmzed 1n the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied Revenue from
grants and entitlements 1s recognized 1n the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when
the resources are to be used or the fiscal year when use 1s first permitted, matching requirements,
in which the District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose, and
expenditure requirements, 1n which the resources are provided to the District on a retmbursement
basis Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be
available before 1t can be recognized

Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows:

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as such will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then The District has
recognized a deferred outflow of resources related to the recognition of the benefit plans liability
reported 1n the Statement of Net Position

In addition to labilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time The District has recogmized a
deferred inflow of resources related to the recognition of the pension and OPEB hability reported
which 1s 1n the Statement of Net Position

Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue arises when assets (such as cash) are received before revenue recognition
criteria have been satisfied Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements (such
as qualified expenditures) are met are recorded as liabilities from unearned revenue

Unavailable Revenue:

In the governmental fund financial statements, receivables associated with non-exchange
transactions that will not be collected within the availability period have been recorded as
deferred inflows of resources as unavailable revenue

Expenses/Expenditures:

Using the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a lability 1s incurred
On the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recogmzed in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability 1s incurred, as under the accrual basis of
accounting However, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, debt service expenditures,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded

Page 25




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

only when payment 1s due Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized 1n the governmental funds When both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available for use, 1t 1s the Dustrict’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
resources as they are needed

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which 1s considered to be
a separate accounting entity The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows,
fund equity or retamned earnings, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate District
resources are allocated to and accounted for 1n individual funds based upon the purpose for which
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled The District’s
accounts are organized into major, nonmajor, and fiduciary funds as follows

Major Governmental Funds:

The General Fund 1s the general operating fund of the District It 1s used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for i another fund and includes
transactions accounted for 1n the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects
and the Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits These funds are not substantially
composed of restricted or committed revenue sources and do not meet the definition of a special
revenue fund Because these funds do not meet the definition of a special revenue fund under
GASB 54, the activity 1n these funds are being reported within the General Fund

The Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 1s used to account separately for federal, state, and local
resources recetved to operate the District’s food service program (Califorma Education Code,
Sections 38091 and 38100)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the proceeds from specific resources that
are restricted to the financing of particular activities The District has no nonmajor special

revenue funds for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021

Capital Projects Funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities

e The Capital Facilities Fund 1s used primarily to account for funds received from fees levied
on developers or others as a condition for approving development (Califorma Education
Code, Sections 17620-17626)

e The Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects was established to provide for the
accumulation of General Fund monies for capital outlay purposes only

Page 26




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Debt Service Funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment
of the principal and 1nterest on long-term debt

e The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 1s used to account for the repayment of bonds
(Califorma Education Code, Sections 15125-15262)

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary Fund reporting focuses on net position and changes 1n net position Fiduciary funds are
used to report assets held 1n a trustee or custodial capacity for others and therefore cannot be used
to support the District’s own programs The fiduciary fund category includes pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and custodial
funds The District did not report any Fiduciary Funds as of year end

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
for all governmental funds By state law, the District’s governing board must adopt a final budget
no later than July 1 A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption
The District’s governing board satisfied these requirements

These budgets are revised by the District’s governing board during the year to give consideration
to unanticipated income and expenditures The original and final revised budgets for the General
Fund and major special revenue funds are presented as Required Supplementary Information

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the year for
all budgeted funds The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual
appropriation accounts

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting 1s used n all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commuitments have been made Encumbrances are recorded for purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written Encumbrances are liquidated
when the commitments are paid All encumbrances are liquidated on June 30

Benefit Plans
Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension hability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
District’s Califorma Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and Califorma State
Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) plans and additions to/deductions from the plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS
and CalSTRS For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable m accordance with the benefit terms Investments are
reported at fair value

Page 27




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

GASB Statement No 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of
GASB Statement No 27 requires that the reported results must pertain to hiability and asset
information within certain defined time frames

For this period, the following time frames were used

Valuation Date June 30, 2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2020
Measurement Period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

The following summarizes the District’s penstion plan balances for the fiscal year

PERS STRS Total
Deferred outflows of resources $ 720,816 $ 1,557,608 $ 2,278,424
Deferred inflows of resources $ 218,341 $ 739,527 $ 957,868
Penston expense $ 811,729 $ 1,338,819 $ 2,150,548
Net pension liabilities $ 3,790,587 $ 7,752,720 $ 11,543,307

Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB lhability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources, and OPEB expense, information about the District’s Retiree Benefits Plan
(the OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions are based on when they are due and payable 1n
accordance with the benefit terms for the measurement period included in the OPEB plan’s
actuarial reports

Valuation Date June 30, 2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2020
Measurement Period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

a) Cash and Investments

Cash balances held 1n banks and 1 revolving funds are insured to $250,000 by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of
1ts cash 1n the County Treasury The county pools these funds with those of other districts in
the county and nvests the cash These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates
market value Interest earned 1s deposited quarterly into participating funds Any investment
losses are proportionately shared by all funds 1n the pool

All District-directed investments are governed by Government Code Section 53601 and
Treasury investment guidelines The guidelines hmit specific mvestments to government
securities, domestic chartered financial securities, domestic corporate issues, and Califorma
municipal securities The District’s securities portfolio 1s held by the County Treasurer
Interest earned on investments 1s recorded as revenue of the fund from which the mnvestment
was made

Page 28




- acewoa

Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Fmancial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

b)

d)

The county 1s authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by Califorma Government
Code Section 53648 The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal
depository insurance or are collateralized

Fair Value Measurements

Investments are recorded at fair value 1n accordance with GASB Statement No 72, Fair
Value Measurement and Application Accordingly, the change 1n fair value of investments 1s
recognized as an increase or decrease to investment assets and investment income Fair value
1s defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 1n
an orderly transaction

In determiming this amount, three valuation techniques are available

® Market approach - This approach uses prices generated for 1dentical or similar assets or
liabilities The most common example 1s an investment in a public security traded 1n an
active exchange such as the NYSE

e Cost approach - This technique determines the amount required to replace the current
asset This approach may be 1deal for valuing donations of capital assets or historical

treasures

e Income approach - This approach converts future amounts (such as cash flows) into a
current discounted amount

Each of these valuation techniques requires mputs to calculate a fair value Observable inputs
have been maximized in fair value measures, and unobservable inputs have been mimmized

Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures

Inventories

Inventories consist of supplies and materials Expenses are recorded as the supplies and
materials are consumed Inventories are valued on the average cost method for purchased
supplies and materials Donated commodities inventory 1s valued at 1ts fair value at the time
of donation

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses consist of operating expenses for which payment 1s due in advance and are
expensed when the benefit 1s recerved

Caprtal Assets

Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or
more and an estimated useful hfe m excess of one year, except for buildings and
improvements for which a higher capitalization threshold of $15,000 or more s used All
fixed assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost 1f actual 1s unavailable,
except for donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets

Page 29




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

g)

received 1n a service concession arrangement are reported at acquisition value rather than fair
value Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets acquired prior to
June 30, 2001

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets 1s recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net
position

Depreciation on all capital assets 1s computed using a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives

Assets Years

Improvement of sites 20

Buildings 50

Building improvements 20

Vehicles 8

Equipment 7-20
Compensated Absences

The lability for earned but unused vacation leave 1s recorded as long-term debt for
compensated absences 1n the government-wide statements The current portion of this debt 1s
estimated based on historical trends In the fund financial statements, governmental funds
report only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial
resources

Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as habilities 1n the Statement of Net Position Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds Bonds payable are reported net of
applicable bond premium or discount Issuance costs are expensed in the period incurred

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts
as well as bond 1ssuance costs, during the current period The face amount of the debt 1ssued,

premiums, or discounts are reported as other financing sources/uses

Fund Balance Policy and Classifications

The District 1s committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect
against the need to reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or
unpredicted expenditures The District’s mimimum fund balance policy requires a reserve for
economic uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, of 3 percent of general fund
operating expenditures and other financing uses

Page 30




o acENA

Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

h)

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the District classifies governmental fund balances
as follows

* Non-spendable includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because 1t 1s
not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints

e Restricted includes fund balance amounts that are constramned for specific purposes
which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due
to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation

¢ Commutted includes fund balance amounts that are constramed for specific purposes that
are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of
decision making authority and does not lapse at year-end Commutted fund balances are
imposed by the District’s board of education

¢ Assigned includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that are neither considered restricted nor committed Fund balance may be
assigned by the Superintendent

* Unassigned includes positive fund balances within the general fund which has not been
classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances 1n other
governmental funds

The Dustrict uses restricted/commutted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance 1s available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit
doing this, such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending Additionally, the
District would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of
unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows Net imvestment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for
the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets In addition, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also are included i the net
Investment in capital assets component of net position As of June 30, 2021, capital assets net
of accumulated depreciation totaling $16,676,175 was reduced by related capital lease
liabilities of $1,069,870 and related debt of $482,051, which excluded accreted interest of
$860,464 and premiums attributed to cash reserves for debt service of $20,989

Page 31




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Net postition 1s reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on 1ts use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments The District
applies restricted resources when an expense 1s incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position 1s available

Capital Projects restrictions will be used for the acquisition and construction of capital
facilities

Debt Service restrictions reflect the cash balances in the debt service funds that are restricted
for debt service payments by debt covenants

Educational Program restrictions reflect the amounts to be expended on specific school
programs funded by federal and state resources and from locally funded programs with
stipulated uses

Cafeteria Program restrictions reflect the cash balances in the Cafeteria fund that are
restricted for food services and child nutrition programs

Unrestricted net position reflects amounts that are not subject to any donor-imposed
restrictions This class also includes restricted gifts whose donor-imposed restrictions were
met during the fiscal year A deficit unrestricted net position may result when significant
cash balances restricted for capital projects exist Once the projects are completed, the
restriction on these assets are released and converted to capital assets

Local Control Funding Formula and Property Taxes

The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) creates base, supplemental, and concentration
grants 1n place of most previously existing K—12 funding streams, including revenue limits
and most state categorical programs The revenue limit was a combination of local property
taxes, state apportionments, and other local sources

The county 1s responsible for assessing, collecting, and apportioning property taxes Taxes
are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property in the county The levy 1s
based on the assessed values as of the preceding March 1, which 1s also the lien date
Property taxes on the secured roll are due on August 31 and February 1, and taxes become
delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively Property taxes on the unsecured roll
are due on the lien date (March 1), and become delinquent 1f unpatd by August 31

Secured property taxes are recorded as revenue when apportioned, 1n the fiscal year of the
levy The county apportions secured property tax revenue in accordance with the alternate
method of distribution prescribed by Section 4705 of the California Revenue and Taxation
Code Ths alternate method provides for crediting each applicable fund with 1ts total secured
taxes upon completion of the secured tax roll - approximately October 1 of each year The
County Auditor reports the amount of the District’s allocated property tax revenue to the
Califormia Department of Education Property taxes are recorded as local revenue hmit
sources by the District

Page 32



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

J)) Rusk Management

The District 1s exposed to various risks, including loss or damage to property, general
liability, and 1njuries to employees Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded insurance coverage n any of the past three years No sigmificant reductions 1n
insurance coverage from the prior year have been made As described above, the District
participates in risk pools under joint powers agreements for property, hiability, workers’
compensation, health care, and excess liability coverage

k) Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reported as either loans, services provided, retmbursements, or
transfers Loans are reported as interfund recervables and payables, as appropriate, and are
subject to elimination upon consolidation Services provided, deemed to be at market or near
market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses Reimbursements occur when
one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces 1ts related cost as
a retmbursement All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers Transfers among
governmental funds are eliminated as part of the reconcihiation to the government-wide
financial statements

) Eliminations and Reclassifications

In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were
eliminated and reclassified Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize
the “grossing up” effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column

m) Accounting Estimates

The presentation of financial statements 1n conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted 1n the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes Actual results may differ from those estimates

Implemented Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No 84, “Fiduciary Activities ” Issued 1 January 2017, this statement
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable The statement
1s effective beginning fiscal year 2021 Items previously reported as part of the agency fund and
private purpose trust fund classifications of the Fiduciary Funds statements were reviewed to
evaluate 1f they met the new fiduciary funds cniteria The Dustrict restated 1ts general fund’s
beginming fund balance by $26,468 to reclassify student body and scholarship accounts
previously reported as fiduciary funds These accounts were 1dentified as non-fiduciary under
GASB 84

Page 33




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

K Upcoming Accounting and Reporting Changes

The District 1s currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on
the financial statements of the following recent GASB Statements

GASB Statement No 87, “Leases ” Issued n June 2017, this statement establishes standards of
accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors It provides guidance on
accounting treatment of lease assets, lease liability, short-term leases, certain regulated leases,
measurement for leases other than short-term leases and contracts that transfer ownership,
subleases, lease-leaseback transactions, intra-entity leases, and leases between related parties The
statement will be effective beginning fiscal year 2022

GASB Statement No 91, “Condwit Debt Obligations ” Issued i May 2019, this statement
provides a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity
In practice associated with (1) commitments extended by 1ssuers, (2) arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures The statement will be effective
beginning fiscal year 2023

GASB Statement No 92, “Omnibus 2020 > Issued 1n January 2020, this statement was 1ssued for
clarity and consistency by addressing practice issues tdentified from the implementation and
application of certain GASB statements The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year
2022

GASB Statement No 93, “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates  Issued in March 2020, this
statement 1s to address accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the
replacement of an interbank offered rate (IBOR) such as the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) As a result of global reference rate reform, LIBOR 1s expected to cease to exist mn 1ts
current form at the end of 2021 The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year 2022

GASB Statement No 94, “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability
Payment Arrangements ” Issued in March 2020, this statement 1s to improve financial reporting
by establishing the definitions of public-private and public-public partnership arrangements
(PPPs) and available payment arrangement (APAs) and providing uniform guidance on
accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet those definitions The statement will
be effective beginning fiscal year 2023

GASB Statement No 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements ” Issued 1n
May 2020, the statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for governments by (1)
defining a SBITA, (2) establishing that a SBITA results in a night-to-use subscription asset-an
intangible asset-and a corresponding subscription liability, (3) providing the capitalization criteria
for outlays other than subscription payments, including tmplementation costs of a SBITA, and (4)
requiring note disclosures regarding a SBITA The statement will be effective beginming fiscal
year 2023

GASB Statement No 97, “Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment
of GASB Statements No 14 and No 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No 32 ” Issued
in June 2020, the statement will result 1n more consistent financial reporting of defined

Page 34




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans
(e g, certain Section 457 plans), while mitigating the costs associated with reporting those plans
The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year 2022

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A summary of cash and investments as of June 30, 2021 1s as follows

Carrying Fair Investment
Description Amount Value Rating |
Government-Wide Statements: |
Cash m revolving fund $ 2,000 § 2,000 Not Rated
Cash n banks 29,268 29,268 Not Rated
Cash with County 3,621,650 3,621,650 A
Total Cash and Investments $ 3,652,918 $ 3,652,918

Cash in Banks and in Revolving Funds

Cash balances 1n banks and revolving funds are insured up to $250,000 per bank by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") These accounts are held within various financial
nstitutions  As of June 30, 2021, the bank balances of the District’s accounts were fully insured by
FDIC

Cash in County Treasury

The District 15 considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool as the
District 1s required to maintain substantially all of its cash with the County Treasurer in accordance
with Education Code Section 41001 The fair value of the District’s investment 1n the pool 1s reported
1n the accounting financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro rata share of the fair
value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of
that portfolio) The balance available for withdrawal 1s based on the accounting records maintained
by the County Treasurer, which 1s recorded on the amortized cost basis

Fair Value Measurements

GASB 72 established a hierarchy of mputs to the valuation techniques above This hierarchy has three
levels

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices 1n active markets for identical assets or habilities

e Level 2 mputs are quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for 1dentical
or similar assets or liabilities 1n markets that are not active, or other than quoted prices that are
not observable

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable 1nputs, such as a property valuation or an appratsal

Investments 1n the Shasta County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input levels

above because the Dustrict’s transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share All
contributions and redemptions are transacted at $1 00 net asset value per share

Page 35



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Policies and Practices

The District 1s authorized under Californta Government Code Section 53635 to make direct
ivestments in local agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State, U S Treasury instruments,
registered State warrants or treasury notes, securities of the U S Government, or 1ts agencies, bankers
acceptances, commercial paper, certificates of deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings
and loan companies, repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, medium-term corporate notes,
shares of beneficial interest 1ssued by diversified management companies, certificates of participation,
obligations with first priority security, and collateralized mortgage obligations

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk that changes in market 1nterest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an mvestment Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of 1ts
fair value to the changes 1n market interest rates The District manages 1ts exposure to interest rate
risk by nvesting in the County Treasury The District maintains cash with the County of Shasta
Investment Pool The pool has a fair value of approximately $624 1 million and an amortized book
value of $631 9 million The average weighted maturity for this pool 1s 614 days

Credit Risk

Credit risk 1s the risk of loss due to the failure of the security i1ssuer This 1s measured by the
assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization The mvestment with
the County of Shasta Investment Pool 1s governed by the County’s general investment policy The
mvestment with the County of Shasta Investment Pool 1s rated at least A by Moody’s Investor
Service

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk 1s the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be
returned to 1t The District does not have a policy for custodial credit nisk for deposits However, the
California Government code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or
local governmental units by pledging securities 1n an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit) The market value of the
pledged securities 1 the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited
by the public agencies California law also allows financial nstitutions to secure public deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits
and letters of credit 1ssued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105
percent of the secured deposits

Concentration of Credit Risk
The nvestment policy of the District contains no Itmitations on the amount that can be 1nvested 1n
any one 1ssuer beyond the amount stipulated by the California Government code District investments

that are greater than 5 percent of total investments are 1n either an external investment pool or mutual
funds and are, therefore, exempt

Page 36




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts recervable consisted of the following as of June 30, 2021

General Cafeteria
Recervables Fund Funds Total
Federal Government $ 433,962 $ 61,123 $ 495,085
State Government 1,534,774 2,861 1,537,635
Other resources 64,189 - 64,189

Total Accounts Recetvable $ 2,032,925 $ 63,984 $2,096,909

4. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital asset activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 were as follows

Balance Adjustments & Balance

Capital Assets July 01, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021
Land - not depreciable $ 168,450 $ - $ - $ 168,450
Site improvements 933,619 - (14,344) 919,275
Buildings and improvements 26,625,333 - (2,051,263) 24,574,070
Vehicles and equipment 1,936,724 - (94,953) 1,841,771
Total capital assets 29,664,126 - (2,160,560) 27,503,566
Less accumulated depreciation for

Site improvements 647,067 35,578 (12,793) 669,852

Buildings and improvements 10,132,619 473,269 (1,992,994) 8,612,894

Vehicles and equipment 1,578,407 61,192 (94,954) 1,544,645
Total accumulated depreciation 12,358,093 570,039 (2,100,741) 10,827,391

Total capital assets - net depreciation $ 17,306,033 § (570,039) §$ (59.819) $16,676,175

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities follows

Depreciation

Governmental Activity Expense
Instruction $ 408,971
Instruction hibrary, media and technology 14,263
Home-to-school transportation 90,548
Food services 566
All other general admmistration 3,598
Plant services 52,093
Total depreciation expense 8 570,039

Page 37




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transactions are reported as erther loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers
Loans are reported as tnterfund receivables and payables (Due From/To), as appropriate, and are
subject to eliminatton upon consolidation Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market
rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses Rermmbursements occur when one fund
ncurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a retmbursement
All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers Transfers among governmental funds are
netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which
the resources are to be expended Interfund transfers for fiscal year 2021 were as follows

Transfers Transfers

Fund In Out
General Fund $ - $ 30,000
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 5,000 -
Nonmajor Funds 25,000 -
Totals $ 30,000 $ 30,000

Interfund Receivables/Payables (Due From/Due To)
Interfund receivables and payables had a balance of $0 as of June 30, 2021

6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Schedule of Changes 1n Long-term Liabilities

The following summarizes the District’s changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June
30,2021

Balance Adjustments Balance Due Within
July 01,2020  Additions & Deletions June 30, 2021 _One Year

Description

General Obhgation Bonds $ 1,480,942 $§ 85,562 $ 203,000 §$ 1,363,504 $ 86,040
Capttal Lease Liabilities 1,228,452 - 158,582 1,069,870 67,699
Net Pension Liability 10,912,028 3,766,493 3,135,214 11,543,307 -
Total OPEB Liability 615,799 303,708 209,863 709,644 -
Compensated Absences 85,611 15,923 - 101,534 25,384

Total Long-term Liabilities $14,322,832 § 4,171,686 $3,706,659 $14,787,859 $ 179,123

Payments on bonds were made from the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund using local revenues
Compensated absences, net pension liabilities and total OPEB hability were paid by the fund for
which the employee worked Capital leases were paid from the General Fund and Capital Factltties

Fund

Page 38



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

General Obligation Bonds Payable

The following summarizes the bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2021

Bonds Bonds
Maturity Interest  Origmal Outstanding Adjustments  Outstanding
Description Date Rate Issue July 01, 2020  Issued & Redeemed June 30, 2021
2003A GOB 2029 325-5 $2,199946 $ 571,388 § - $ 89,337 $ 482,051
Accreted Interest 1,585,054 880,565 85,562 105,663 860,464
Premwum 185,743 28,989 - 8,000 20,989
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 1,480,942 $85,562 $§ 203,000 $ 1,363,504

The annual debt service requirements of the bonds are as follows

For the Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 86,040 $ 118,144 $ 204,184
2023 82,670 126,617 209,287
2024 79,097 136,445 215,542
2025 78,014 162,480 240,494
2026 42,026 186,628 228,654
2027-2031 114,204 505,656 619,860

Total Debt Service $ 482,051 $ 1235970 $ 1,718,021

Capital Leases

In June 2006, the District entered 1nto an agreement with Municipal Services Group, Inc in which the
North Cottonwood School (project at Gas Pomt and Rancho Road, Cottonwood, CA owned by the
Dustrict) was leased to a third party for a $1,435,383 advance and subsequently leased back to the
District pursuant to a 15 year lease The District retained ownership of the underlying land and,
therefore, accounted for the transaction under the deposit method of accounting as a lease purchase

In July 2019, the District entered into an agreement with WestAmerica Bank to finance the costs of
construction and/or reconstruction, acquisition, and installation of capital facilities at its North
Cottonwood School campus In order to obtain funds to finance the Project, the District has proposed
to lease certain existing District-owned property consisting generally of its West Cottonwood Junior
High School campus located at 20512 West First Street, Cottonwood, California (the "Leased
Property") to the Public Property Financing Corporation of California, a Califormia nonprofit public
benefit corporation (the "Corporation”) pursuant to a Site Lease, dated as of August 1, 2019 (the "Site
Lease"), between the District as lessor, and the Corporation as lessee, for an up-front rental payment
of $1,170,000 (the "Site Lease Payment") Which 1s sufficient for that purpose, and the Corporation
has proposed to lease the Leased Property back to the District under that certain Lease Agreement,
dated as of August 1, 2019 (the "Lease Agreement"), to be entered between the District as sublessee,
and the Corporation as sublessor, n consideration of the payment by the Dustrict of annual lease
payments as the rental for the Leased Property (the "Base Rental Payments") payable thereunder

Page 39




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Future minimum lease payments are as follows

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 5 67,699 § 26,145 § 93,844
2023 69,388 24,456 93,844
2024 71,120 22,724 93,844
2025 72,895 20,949 93,844
2026 74,714 19,130 93,844
2027-2031 402,484 66,738 469,222
2032-2036 311,570 15,704 327,274

Total Debt Service § 1,069,870 $ 195,846 $ 1,265,716

7. CALPERS PENSION PLAN

General Information about the PERS Pension Plan

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate 1n
the District’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS) Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and District resolution
CalPERS 1ssues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time
employment Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily
reduced benefits All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service
The death benefit 1s one of the following the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the
Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit The cost of living adjustments for the Plan are applied as
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows

CalPERS

Classic PEPRA
Benefit formula 2% @55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 Years 5 Years
Benefit payments Monthly for Life ~ Monthly for Life
Retirement age minimum 50 52
Monthly benefits as a % of eligible compensation ) n
Required employee contribution rates 7 000% 7 000%
Required employer contributton rates 20 700% 20 700%

(1) Monthly benefit 1s a product of benefit factor, years of service, and final compensation

Page 40



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the Califormia Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basts by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate Funding
contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuanal basis as of June 30 by CalPERS
The actuarially determined rate 1s the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability The Dustrict 1s required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District’s contributions were as follows

CalPERS
Employer Contributions $ 296,022

Pension Luabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
PERS

As of June 30, 2021, the District reported net pension habulities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability of the Plan as follows

Proportionate Share
of Net Pension
Liability/(Asset)
CalPERS $ 3,790,587

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan 1s measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension hiability The net pension liability of the Plan 1s measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total
pension hability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension hiability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard update procedures The
District’s proportion of the net penston liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension hability for the Plan as of June 30, 2020 and
2021 was as follows

CalPERS
Proportion - June 30, 2020 0 01265%
Proportion - June 30, 2021 0 01235%
Change - Increase/(Decrease) -0 00030%

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $811,729 for the Plan

Page 41




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

} CalPERS
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Changes of Assumptions $ 13,900 $ -
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 188,001 -
Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 78,908 -
Differences between Employer's Contributions and

Proportionate Share of Contributions - 160,353
Change n Employer's Proportion 143,985 57,988
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date 296,022 -
Total 3 720,816  $ 218,341

The District reported $296,022 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability 1n the year
ended June 30, 2022 Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows

Deferred Outflows/

(Inflows) of
Fiscal Year Resources
Ending June 30: CalPERS
2022 $ 111,582
2023 52,951
2024 9,887
2025 32,033
Total $ 206,453

Actuanal Assumptions - The total pension liabilities 1n the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions

Valuation Date June 30, 2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2020
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7 15%

Inflation 2 50%

Payroll Growth 2 75%

Projected Salary Increase )]

Investment Rate of Return 7 15% (2)

Mortality 3)

(1) Varies by entry age and service

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including mflation

(3) Derved using CalPERS' membership data for all funds

Page 42



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 15% To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used 1n the calculation of a discount rate for the
Plan, CalPERS stress tested employer rate plans within the Plan that would most likely result in a
discount rate that would be different from the actuanally assumed discount rate Based on the testing,
none of the tested employer rate plans run out of assets Therefore, the current 7.15% discount rate 1s
adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation 1s not necessary. The stress test results are
presented 1n a detailed report, GASB Statements 67 and 68 Crossover Testing Report for
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 based on June 30, 2019 Valuations, that can be obtamed from the
CalPERS website

According to Paragraph 30 of GASB 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without
reduction for pension plan administrative expense For the CalPERS Plan, the 7 00% nvestment
return assumption used 1 this accounting valuation 1s net of administrative expenses Administrative
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points An investment return excluding administrative expenses
would have been 7 15% Using this lower discount rate has resulted 1n a shightly higher total pension
liability and net pension Lability CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference mn
calculation and did not find 1t to be a material difference

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan nvestments was determined using a building-
block method 1n which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan vestment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took 1nto account both short- term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows Such cash
flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required
contributions on time and as scheduled 1n all future years Using historical returns of all the Plan’s
asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 11
years) and the long-term (60 years) using a building-block approach Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long- term, the present value of benefits was calculated for the Plan
The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at
the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and
long-term returns The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent

Page 43




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class The rate of return
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses

Assumed
Asset Real Return Real Return
Asset Class (a) Allocation Years 1 - 10 (b) Years 11+ (¢)
Global Equity 50 00% 4 80% 598%
Fixed Income 28 00% 1 00% 2 62%
Inflation Sensitive 0 00% 077% 181%
Private Equity 8 00% 6 30% 7 23%
Real Estate 13 00% 375% 4 93%
1 00% 0 00% -0 92%

Liquidity
Total 100 00%

(a) In the System's CAFR, Fixed Income 1s included in Global Debt Securtties, Liquidity
Liquidity 1 included n Short-term Investments, Inflation Assets are included n both
Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities

(b) An expected mflation of 2 00% used for this period

(c) An expected mflation of 2 92% used for this period

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate - The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension hability for the
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share
of the net pension liabihity would be 1f 1t were calculated using a discount rate that 1s 1-percentage
pomt lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate

CalPERS

1% Decrease 6 15%
Net Pension Liability $ 5,449,660

Current 7 15%
Net Pension Liability $ 3,790,587

1% Increase 8 15%
Net Pension Liability $ 2,413,640

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position 1s available in the separately 1ssued CalPERS financial reports

Page 44




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

8. CALIFORNIA STATE TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (STRS) PENSION

PLAN

General Information about the STRS Pension Plan

Plan Description - The District contributes to the State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by STRS The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to
beneficiaries Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the
State Teachers’ Retirement Law STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information

Benefits Provided - STRS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment The cost
of living adjustments for the Plan are applied as specified by the retirement Law

The Plan’s provisions and benefits m effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows

CalSTRS

Tier 1 Tier 2
Benefit formula 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule S Years 5 Years
Benefit payments Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a % of eligible compensation 2% 2%
Required employee contribution rates 10 250% 10 205%
Required employer contribution rates 16 150% 16 150%
Required State contribution rates 10 328% 10 328%

Contributions - As part of the annual valuation process, the Normal Cost rate 1s determined as the
basis for setting the base member contribution rate for the following fiscal year Generally, the base
member contribution rate 1s one-half of the Normal Cost rate within certain parameters Required
member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the Califorma Legslature and Governor and
detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law Contribution rates are expressed as a level percentage of
payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District’s contributions were as follows

CalSTRS
Employer Contributions $ 603,768
State Contributions 456,280
Total $ 1,060,048

Page 45




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
STRS

As of June 30, 2021, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension hability of the Plan as follows

Proportionate Share of
Net Pension
Liability/(Asset)

District $ 7,752,720
State 3,996,527
Total $ 11,749,247

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan 1s measured as the proportionate share of the net
penston liability The net pension hability of the Plan 1s measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard update procedures The
District’s proportion of the net pension lability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined The state contributed 8 49 percent of the members’ creditable
earnings from the fiscal year ending m the prior calendar year plus an additional $139,323 as required
by SB90 Also, as a result of AB 1469, the additional state appropriation required to fully fund the
benefits 1n effect as of 1990 by 2046 1s specific in subdivision (b) of Education Code Section
22955 1 The increased contributions end as of fiscal year 2045-2046

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension hability for the Plan as of June 30, 2020 and
2021 was as follows

CalSTRS
Proportion - June 30, 2020 0 00800%
Proportion - June 30, 2021 0 00800%
Change - Increase/(Decrease) 0 00000%

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recogmzed pension expense of $1,338,819 for the Plan,
of which, a total of $456,280 came from state contributions

Page 46




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

At June 30, 2021, the Dustrict reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

CalSTRS
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 756,000 $ -
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 13,680 218,640
Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 184,160 -
Differences between Employer's Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Contributions - 520,887
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date 603,768 -
Total $ 1,557,608 $ 739,527

The District reported $603,768 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date that will be recogmzed as a reduction of the net pension hablity in the year
ended June 30, 2022

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
penstons will be recognized as pension expense as follows

Deferred Outflows/
(Inflows) of

Fiscal Year Resources
Ending June 30: CalSTRS

2022 $ (43,562)
2023 146,438
2024 233,878
2025 175
2026 (92,716)
Thereafter (29,900)
Total $ 214,313

Page 47




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities 1n the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuations were

determined using the following actuarial assumptions

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions

June 30, 2019
June 30, 2020

Entry-Age Normal

Cost Method

Discount Rate 7 10%
Inflation 2 75%
Wage Growth 3 50%
Postretirement Benefit Increases )
Investment Rate of Return 7 10% (2)
Mortality 3)

(1) 2% simple for DB (annually), maintam 85% purchasing power
level for DB Not applicable for DBS/CBB

(2) Net of mvestment expense but gross of admmnstrative expenses

(3) Based on 110% of the MP-2016 Ultimate Projection

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total penston liabtlity was 7 10 percent The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members and employers will be made at statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate
increases per AB 1469 Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long
term assumed investment rate of return (7 10 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit
payments, and admimstrative expense occur midyear Based on those assumptions, the plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to
current plan members Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class The rate of return
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation These rates of return are net of administrative expenses

Assumed Long-Term

Asset Expected Real Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return (a) (b)
Global Equity 42 00% 4 75%
Private Equity 13 00% 625%
Real Estate 15 00% 355%
Inflation Sensitive 6 00% 325%
Fixed Income 12 00% 1 25%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 10 00% 175%
Liquidity 2 00% -0 35%
Total 100 00%

(a) Real return 1s net of assumed 2 75% inflation
(b) 20-year geometric average

Page 48




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate - The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension hability for the
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share
of the net pension hability would be 1f 1t were calculated using a discount rate that 1s 1-percentage
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate

CalSTRS
1% Decrease 6 10%
Net Pension Liability $ 11,713,280

Current 7 10%
Net Pension Liability $ 7,752,720

1% Increase 8 10%
Net Pension Liability $ 4,482,720

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position 1s available 1n the separately 1ssued STRS financial reports

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

Plan Description - The District’s Postemployment Healthcare Plan (the OPEB plan) 1s a single-
employer defined benefit healthcare plan

Benefits Provided - The District’s Postemployment Healthcare Plan (PHP) 1s a single-employer
defined benefit healthcare plan including medical, dental, and viston benefits for the following groups
of employees The District provides postemployment health care benefits to all certificated employees
and all classified employees hired prior to September 2010 who retire from the District with at least
ten years of full-time service to the District Classified employees hired after September 2010 must
work at least six hours per day to qualify The District provides medical benefits to retirees for a
period of up to five years or until the retirees reach age 65

The required contribution to the PHP 1s based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements
The District’s agreement with employees 1s for monthly contributions for members who meet the
ehgibility criteria of their collective bargamning agreement and who retire during the term of the
contract The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and may be
amended by the District’s Board of Trustees through the collective bargaining process The members
receiving benefits contributions vary depending on the level of coverage selected

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - At June 30, 2019 (the valuation date), the benefit
terms covered the following employees

Active employees 77
Inactive employees 10
Total employees 87

Page 49




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Contributions - The District makes contributions based on an actuarially determined rate and are
approved by the authority of the District’s Board Total contributions to the OPEB plan during the
year were $53,478 Total benefit payments included 1n the measurement period were $58,866 The
actuarially determmed contribution for the measurement period was $108,132 The District’s
contributions were 1 12% of covered employee payroll during the measurement period June 30, 2019
(reporting pertod June 30, 2020) Employees are not required to contribute to the plan There have
been no assets accumulated 1n a trust to provide for the benefits of this plan

Actuarial Assumptions - The following summarized the actuarial assumptions for the OPEB
plan included 1n this fiscal year

Valuation Date: June 30, 2019
Measurement Date: June 30, 2020
Actuanal Cost Method: Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Penod: 19 years
Actuanal Assumptions:
Discount Rate 220%
Inflation 2 75%
Salary Increases 2 75%
Healthcare Trend Rate 4 00%
Mortality
Certificated 2009 CalSTRS Mortality
Classified 2014 CalPERS Active Mortalty for Miscellaneous employees
Retirement
Certificated 2009 CalSTRS Retirement Rates
Classified Hired <1/1/2013 2009 CalPERS Rates for School Employees

Hired >12/31/2012 2009 CalPERS 2% @ 60 Rates for
Miscellaneous Employess
Service Requirement 100% at 10 Years of Service

Discount Rate - The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-bond General Oblhigation
Index

Page 50




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability - The following summarizes the changes in the total
OPEB hability during the year ended June 30, 2021, for the measurement date of June 30, 2020

Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Total OPEB  Plan Fiduciary Liability
(Measurement Date June 30, 2020) Liability Net Posttion (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 615,799 § - $ 615,799
Service cost 61,663 - 61,663
Interest m Total OPEB Liability 21,854 - 21,854
Employer contributions - 53,478 (53,478)
Balance of diff between actual and exp experience 9,041 - 9,041
Balance of changes in assumptions 54,765 - 54,765
Benefit payments (53.,478) (53.478) -
Net changes 93,845 - 93.845
Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 709,644 $ - $ 709,644
Covered Employee Payroll $ 4,824,623
Total OPEB Liabiity as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 14 71%
Plan Fid Net Position as a % of Total OPEB Liability 0 00%
Service Cost as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 1 28%
Net OPEB Liabultty as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 14 71%

The District's plan 1s nonfunded, meaning there have not been assets placed nto an irrevocable
trust, therefore the plan fiduciary net position 1s zero

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources - At June 30, 2021, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources

Deferred
Outflows of  Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Difference between actual and expected experience $ - $ 121,948
Change in assumptions 47,034 -
OPEB contribution subsequent to measurement date 34,436 -
Totals $ 81,470 $ 121,948

Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $34,436
resulting from Dastrict contributions subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of
the fiscal year will be included as a reduction of the total OPEB liability 1n the year ended June
30,2022

Page 51




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recogmzed in OPEB expense as follows

Year Ended June 30,

2022 $ (10,608)
2023 (10,608)
2024 (10,608)
2025 (10,608)
2026 (10,608)
Thereafter (21,874)
Total $ (74,914)

OPEB Expense - The following summarizes the OPEB expense by source during the year
ended June 30, 2021, for the measurement date of June 30, 2020

Service cost $ 61,663
Interest in TOL 21,854
Difference between actual and expected experience (15,753)
Change in assumptions 5,145
OPEB Expense S 72,909

The following summarizes changes 1n the total OPEB lability as reconciled to OPEB expense
during the year ended June 30, 2021, for the measurement date of June 30, 2020

Total OPEB liability ending $ 709,644
Total OPEB liability begmning (615,799)
Change n total OPEB hability 93,845
Changes 1n deferred outflows (56,424)
Changes n deferred mflows (17,990)
Employer contributions and implicit subsidy 53,478
OPEB Expense $ 72,909

Page 52




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

10.

11.

Sensitivity to Changes in the Municipal Bond Rate - The total OPEB hability of the District,
as well as what the District's total OPEB lhability would be 1f 1t were calculated using a
municipal bond rate (used to determine the discount rate) that 1s one percentage point lower or
one percentage point higher, 1s as follows

Municipal Bond Rate

(1% Decrease ) 2.20% (1% Increase )
Total OPEB Liability $ 741,104 $ 709,644 $ 666,209

Sensitivity to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The total OPEB lLiability of the
District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability would be 1f 1t were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher
than current healthcare cost trend rates, 1s as follows

Trend Rate
(1% Decrease ) 4.00% (1% Increase )
Total OPEB Liability $ 677,190 § 709,644 $ 741,055

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Various claims involving the District arise during the normal course of business However,
management beheves, based on consultation with legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the District’s financial position or results of
operations

Federal and State Allowances, Awards and Grants

The District has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by the grantor agencies Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under
terms of the grants, 1t 1s believed that any required retmbursement will not be material

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

The District partictpates n joint ventures under joint powers agreements with the following joint powers
authorities (JPAs) Northern California Schools Insurance Group (NCSIG), Northern California Regional
Excess Liabihty Fund (ReL1EF), and Shasta-Trinity Schools Insurance Group (STSIG) The relationship
between the District and the JPAs 1s such that the JPAs are not component units of the District for
financial reporting purposes

The JPAs arrange for and provide property, hability, workers’ compensation, health care, and excess
liability coverage for their members Each JPA 1s governed by a board consisting of representatives from
the members The boards control the operations of the JPAs, including selection of management and
approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the members beyond their representation
on the boards Each member pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and
shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to its participation in the JPA The District’s share of year-end
assets, liabilities, or fund equity 1s not calculated by the JPAs Separately 1ssued financial statements can
be requested from each JPA

Page 53




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus surfaced (COVID-19) and spread around the world,
with resulting business and social disruption The operations and business results of the District could
be materially and adversely affected in the future, including a reduction in the level of funding and
potential impacts from the timing of cash flows In addition, significant estimates may be materially
and adversely impacted by national, state and local events designed to contain the coronavirus Debt
ratings for outstanding issuances may further be impacted For the 2021-2022 school year, the
District 1s offering instruction in formats consistent with local health guidelines Throughout the
pandemic the District has put into practice a number of safety measures to protect students and
employees and will continue to revise them as needed At the date of the 1ssuance of these financial
statements, the future impact of the CV19 Crisis cannot be reasonably estimated

Page 54



Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 55




REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION

Page 56




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP)
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts Vartance with
Final Budget
Actual Positive -
Original Final (GAAP Basis) (Negative)
Revenues

LCFF sources $ 7,800,314 § 8475710 § 8,462,742 $ (12,968)

Federal 642,299 1,243,789 1,144,158 (99,631)

Other state 691,736 858,783 1,378,027 519,244

Other local 788,448 857,871 926,822 68,951
Total revenues 9,922,797 11,436,153 11,911,749 475,596
Expenditures

Certificated salaries 3,793,124 3,883,336 4,012,146 (128,810)

Classified salanes 1,505,266 1,524,356 1,579,064 (54,708)

Employee benefits 2,407,563 2,337,632 2,351,936 (14,304)

Books and supplies 424,317 788,044 773,035 15,009

Services and other operating expenditures 1,571,033 2,031,843 2,016,960 14,883

Capital outlay 70,000 40,000 - 40,000

Debt service

Principal 121,788 78,015 84,209 (6,194)

Interest and fees 28,048 27,836 32,514 (4,678)
Total expenditures 9,921,139 10,711,062 10,849,864 (138,802)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 1,658 725,091 1,061,885 336,794
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers out (5,000) (25,964) (30,000) (4,036)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,000) (25,964) (30,000) (4,036)
Changes n fund balance $ (3,342) $ 699,127 1,031,885 _§ 332,758
Fund balance beginning 3,057,779
Fund balance ending $ 4,089,664

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts Budgets are prepared on
the modified accrual basis of accounting 1 accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the United States
of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board The budgets are revised during the year by
the Board of Education to provide for revised priorities Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major
object code The originally adopted and final revised budgets for the General Fund are presented as Required
Supplementary Information The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP Employee benefits exceeded budget as noted
above partly because of unanticipated onbehalf payments for STRS from the state, which 1s offset by revenue and partly
because of one time payment for employee early retirement incentives

Page 57




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
mn Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP)
Cafeteria Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Actual Positive -
Original Final (GAAP Basis) (Negative)
Revenues

Federal $ 278810 $ 268810 § 334,645 § 65,835

Other state 16,000 30,030 37,742 7,712

Other local 101,300 15,777 15,864 87
Total revenues 396,110 314,617 388,251 73,634
Expenditures

Classified salaries 107,125 116,816 112,392 4,424

Employee benefits 58,809 54,302 62,735 (8,433)

Books and supplies 178,310 80,029 115,875 (35,846)

Services and other operating expenditures 49,900 53,804 59,748 (5,944)
Total expenditures 394,144 304,951 350,750 (45,799)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 1,966 9,666 37,501 27,835
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Changes 1n fund balance $ 6,966 $ 14,666 42501 $ 27,835
Fund balance beginning 45,245
Fund balance ending $ 87,746

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts Budgets are prepared on
the modified accrual basis of accountng m accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the United
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board The budgets are revised during the
year by the Board of Education to provide for revised priorities Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by
major object code The originally adopted and final revised budgets for the Cafeteria Fund are presented as Required
Supplementary Information The basis of budgeting 1s the same as GAAP

Page 58




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

CalPERS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contractually Required Contributions $ 130,043 $ 138528 $ 168,806 $ 217015 § 248813 § 310,921 $ 296,022
Contributions 1n Relation to Contractually
Required Contributions 130,043 138,528 168,806 217,015 248,813 310,921 296,022

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered Payroll $ 1,104,774 $ 1,169279 S 1215481 S 1,397,302 § 1,377,550 S 1,576,599 § 1,430,058
Contributions as a % of Covered Payroll 11.77% 11 85% 13 89% 1553% 18 06% 19 72% 20 70%
Notes to Schedule
Valuation Date June 30, 2019
Assumptions Used  Entry Age Method used for Actuarial Cost Method

Level Percentage of Payroll and Direct Rate Smoothing

7 Years Remaming Amortization Period

Inflation Assumed at 2 5%

Investment Rate of Returns set at 7 15%

CalPERS mortality table based on CalPERS' experience and nclude 15 years of projected ongoing

mortality improvement using 90 percent of Scale MP 2016 pubhished by the Society of Actuaries
CalSTRS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Contractually Required Contnbutions $ 278410 § 350318 § 419684 $ 510,718 $ 588,130 $ 626,137 $ 603,768
Contributions n Relation to Contractually

Required Contributions 278,410 350,318 419,684 510,718 588,130 626,137 603,768

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ -
Covered Payroll $ 3,135248 S 3,264,846 § 3,336,121 § 3,539,279 $ 3,612,592 $ 3,661,620 $ 3,738,502
Contributions as a % of Covered Payroll 8 88% 10 73% 12 58% 14 43% 16 28% 17 10% 16 15%
Notes to Schedule-
Valuation Date June 30, 2019

Assumptions Used  Entry Age Method used for Actuarial Cost Method
Level Percentage of Payroll Basis
7 Years Remaming Amortization Period
Inflation Assumed at 2 75%
Investment Rate of Returns set at 7 10%
Mortahity tables are based on 110% of the MP-2016 Ultimate Projection Scale table 1ssued by the Society
of Actuaries

Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only five years are shown

The CalPERS discount rate was mcreased from 7 5% to 7 65% 1 the District's fiscal year 2016 and then decreased
from 7 65% to 7 15% 1n the District's fiscal year 2018

The CalPERS inflation assumption was decreased from 2 75% to 2 50% during the Dustrict's fiscal year 2019

The CalPERS mortality assumptions was adjusted n the District's fiscal year 2019

The CalSTRS discount rate was decreased from 7 6% to 7 1% in the District's fiscal year 2017

The CalSTRS mvestment rate of return was decreased from 7 6% to 7 1% during the District's fiscal year 2017

The CalSTRS nflation rate was decreased from 3% to 2 75% during the Dstrict's fiscal year 2017

The CalSTRS wage growth was decreased from 3 75% to 3 5% during the Dastrict's fiscal year 2017

This schedule provides information about the District’s required and actual contributions to CalPERS / CalSTRS
during the year

Page 59




Cottonwood Umion Elementary School District
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

CalPERS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
District's Proportion of Net Penston Liability 0 01000% 001084% 001068% 001076% 001182% 001265% 001235%
District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability $1,135243  $1,597,683 $ 2,108,699 §$ 2,568,696 § 3,151,584 $ 3,686,748 3§ 3,790,587
Dastrict's Covered Payroll $1,054,151 $1,104,774 $ 1,169279 § 1,215,481 $ 1,397,302 $ 1,377,550 $ 1,576,599
District's Proportionate Share of NPL as a

% of Covered Payroll 107 69% 144 62% 180 34% 211 33% 225 55% 267 63% 240 43%
Plan’'s Fiduciary Net Position as a % of the TPL 8338% 79 43% 73 90% 71 87% 70 85% 70 05% 70 00%
CalSTRS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

District's Proportion of Net Penston Liability 0 00800% 000847% 0 00839% 0 00800% 0 00800% 0 00800% 0 00800%

District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability $4,674,960 $5,698983 § 6,783,543 § 7398320 $ 7,352,560 $ 7,225,280 $ 7,752,720
State's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Associated with the Distnict 2,822,928 3,014,135 3,861,735 4,376,772 4,209,708 3,941,896 3,996,527

Total $7.497888 $8713.118 $10645278 $11,775,092 $11,562,268 $11,167,176 $11,749,247

Dustrict's Covered Payroll $3,407,600 $3,135248 § 3,264,846 $ 3,336,121 § 3,539,279 § 3,612,592 $ 3,661,620

District's Proportionate Share of NPL as a
% of Covered Payroll 137 19% 181 77% 207 78% 221 76% 207 74% 200 00% 211 73%

Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as a % of the TPL 76 52% 74 02% 70 04% 69 46% 70 99% 72 56% 71 82%

Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown

The CalPERS discount rate was increased from 7 5% to 7 65% 1n the District's fiscal year 2016 and then decreased from 7 65% to 7 15%
n the District's fiscal year 2018

The CalPERS inflation assumption was decreased from 2 75% to 2 50% duning the District's fiscal year 2019

The CalPERS mortality assumptions was adjusted i the District's fiscal year 2019

In 2019, the amortization period for actuanal gains and losses was shortened from 30 years to 20 years

The CalSTRS discount rate was decreased from 7 6% to 7 1% 1n the District's fiscal year 2017

The CalSTRS investment rate of return was decreased from 7 6% to 7 1% dunng the District's fiscal year 2017

The CalSTRS inflation rate was decreased from 3% to 2 75% during the District's fiscal year 2017

The CalSTRS wage growth was decreased from 3 75% to 3 5% during the District's fiscal year 2017

Thus schedule presents information on the District’s portion of the net pension hability of CalPERS / CalSTRS tn compliance with

GASB 68

Page 60




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2021

Fiscal Year Ended 2018 2019 2020 2021
Total OPEB habihty

Service cost $ 61,382 § 61,382 64,804 $ 61,663

Interest 24,387 24 387 28,049 21,854

Differences between expected and actual experience - - (163,417) 9,041

Changes of assumptions - - 8 543 54,765

Benefit payments (60,802) (64,016) (58,866) (53,478)

Other - - (7361) -
Net change 1n Total OPEB Luiability 24,967 21,753 (128,248) 93,845
Total OPEB Liabulity - beginning 697,327 722,294 744 047 615,799
Total OPEB Liabtlity - ending $ 722,294 $ 744 047 615 799 $ 709,644
Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions S 60802 $ 64 016 58866 $ 53,478

Benefit payments (60,802) (64,016) (58,866) (53,478)
Net change 1n plan fiduciary net posttion - - - -
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning - - - -
Plan fiduciary net posttion - ending 3 - $ - - 3 -
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 722,294 744,047 615799 709,644
Plan fiducrary net position as a percentage of the

total OPEB liability 000% 000% 0 00% 0 00%
Covered Employee Payroll $ 4,101,716 $ 4,214 513 4,330,412 $ 4,756 465
Net OPEB hability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 1761% 17 65% 14 22% 14 92%
Total OPEB hability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 1761% 17 65% 14 22% 14 92%

Other Notes

GASB 75 requires a schedule of contributions for the last ten fiscal years, or for as many years

There were no changes 1n benefit terms
There were no changes 1n trend rates or assumptions

In 2019, the discount rate was decreased from 3 8% to 3 5%, then to 2 2% 1n 2020

Page 61




SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION

Page 62




Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 63




Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Schedules

Page 64



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Fund Balances
Fund balances
Restricted for
Debt service
Capatal projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Fund Balances

Debt Service

Capital Projects Fund Fund
Special Reserve Bond
Capital Fund for Interest and
Facilities Capital Outlay Redemption
Fund Projects Fund Totals
$ 15,039 § 85,883 § 260,710 361,632
$ 15039 § 85,883 8 260,710 361,632
$ - $ - $ 260,710 260,710
15,039 85,883 - 100,922
15,039 85,883 260,710 361,632
$ 15039 § 85,883 § 260,710 361,632

Page 65




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes n Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Revenues
Other state
Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures
General administration

All other general administration

Debt service
Principal
Interest and fees

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Changes i fund balances
Fund balances beginning

Fund balances ending

Debt Service

Capttal Projects Fund Fund
Special Reserve Bond
Capital Fund for Interest and
Facilities Capital Outlay Redemption
Fund Projects Fund Totals
$ - $ - 3 2,723 $ 2,723
87,913 712 208,192 296,817
87,913 712 210,915 299,540
758 - - 758
74,373 - 89,337 163,710
- - 105,663 105,663
75,131 - 195,000 270,131
12,782 712 15,915 29,409
- 25,000 - 25,000
- 25,000 - 25,000
12,782 25,712 15,915 54,409
2,257 60,171 244,795 307,223
$ 15039 § 85,883 § 260,710 $ 361,632

Page 66




Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 67



STATE AND FEDERAL
AWARD COMPLIANCE

SECTION

Page 68




- Acenoa

Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Organization (Unaudited)
June 30, 2021

The Cottonwood Union Elementary School District was established in 1938 and is located 1n
Shasta County There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the current year
The District is currently operating one elementary school and one junior high school. The
District 1s the sponsoring local educational agency for one charter school

The Board of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was comprised of the following
members

Governing Board

Name Office Term Expires
Deidre McDougall President 2022
Heather Sulzer Clerk 2022
Matt Iles Member 2024
James O’Brien Member 2024
Kim Cordova Member 2022
Administration

Mr Doug Geren
Superintendent

Laura Merrick
Chief Business Official

Page 69




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Instructional Time
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Actual
Number Number
2021 of Days of Days
Minutes Actual Traditional ~Multitrack

Grade Level Requirements  Minutes Calendar Calendar Status
Kindergarten n/a n/a 180 0 In Comphance
Grade 1 n/a n/a 180 0 In Compllance(l)
Grade 2 n/a n/a 180 0 In Compliance m
Grade 3 n/a n/a 180 0 In Compliance M
Grade 4 n/a n/a 180 0 In Compliance ‘"
Grade 5 n/a n/a 180 0 In Compliance M
Grade 6 n/a n/a 180 0 In Compliance "
Grade 7 n/a n/a 180 0 In Comphiance
Grade 8 n/a n/a 180 0 In Compliance M

School districts and charter schools must maintain their instructional minutes as defined in Education
Code Section 46207 This schedule 1s required of all districts and charter schools, including basic aid
districts However, for tiscal year 2021, districts are only required to offer a mimimum number of days
based on Education Code Section 46200, chapter 2, part 26 This schedule reports the District's
compliance with this Ed Code Section

Page 70




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Charter Schools (Unaudited)
June 30, 2021

The purpose of this schedule is to list all charter schools chartered by the District and displays
information for each charter school on whether or not the charter school 1s included 1n the
District audit.

Charter School Included n
Charter School Number Audit
Cottonwood Creek Charter School 1183 No
Page 71




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

General Fund
Revenues and other financial sources

Expenditures
Other uses and transfers (out)

Total outgo
Change 1n fund balance

Ending fund balance

Available reserves

Designated for economic uncertainty
Unassigned fund balance

Available reserves as a percentage
of total outgo

Total long-term debt

Average daily attendance at P-2

(Budget) ¥

2022 2021 2020 2019

$ 14,193,573 § 11,911,749 § 10,859,731 § 11,186,295
12,280,509 10,849,864 11,022,083 10,955,610
65,000 30,000 225,888 605,000
12,345,509 10,879,864 11,247,971 11,560,610
1,848,064 1,031,885 (388,240) (374,315)
$ 6,312,043 §$ 4,463,979 § 3,432,094 § 3,820,334
$ 553,336 § 542,635 § 567,160 § 578,035
$ 619,710 § 542,635 § 567,160 § 578,035

$ (66,374) $ - $ - $ -
4% 5% 5% 5%
$ 14,608,736 $ 14,787,859 § 14,322,832 § 13,084,961
900 899 899 890

Average daily attendance has increased by 9 over the past three years The District anticipates no change in ADA

1n the next year

The general fund balance has increased by $643,645 over the past three years and operated at a deficit in all of
the last three years For a District this size, the state recommends available reserves of at least 4% of total general
fund expenditures, transfers out and other uses (total outgo)

Total long-term debt has increased by $1,702,898 over the past three years

) Budget numbers are based on the first adopted budget of the fiscal year 2021/22

@ Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances n the general fund, which includes the reserve for

economic uncertainties

Page 72




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Pass-Through

Federal Entity
Catalog Identifying Program
Program Name Number Number Expenditures
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through Califorma Department of Education
Thtle I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income & Neglected 84010 14329 $ 200,348
Title I Improving Teacher Quality 84 367 14341 37,403
Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 84 424 15396 16,800
Governor's Emergency Education Relief (GEER) Fund 84 424C 15517 19,644
Education Stabilization Fund (ESF)
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund 84 425D 15536 179,254
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief II (ESSER II) Fund 84 425D 15547 36,509
Total Education Stabilization Fund (ESF) 215,763
Special Education Cluster
Special Ed IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement 84 027 13379 195,574
TOTAL U S DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 685,532
U S DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Passed Through California Department of Education
Coronavirus Relef Fund (CRF) Learning Loss Mrtigation 21019 (1) 25516 459,579
TOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 459,579
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through California Department of Education
Forest Reserve 10 665 10044 11,252
Child Nutrition Cluster
Child Nutrition School Programs 10 555 13524 334,645
TOTAL U S DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 345,897
TOTAL FEDERAL PROGRAMS $ 1,491,008
8y Audited as major program

Page 73




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report (SACS)
to the Audited Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Other
Nonmajor
General Cafeteria Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
June 30, 2021 Annual Financial and Budget
Report Fund Balances $ 3,885,655 S 87,746 $ 592,109
Adjustments to reconcile audited financials
Special Res Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay
Cash and investments and due from other funds 203,919 00 - (203,919)
Student Activity Special Revenue Fund
Cash and investments 26,558 - (26,558)
June 30, 2021 Audited Financial Statements
Fund Balances $ 4,116,132 $ 87,746 §$ 361,632

Page 74




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to State and Federal Award Compliance Section
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

1.

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time/days offered by the District
and whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through
46206

Schedule of Charter Schools

This schedule 1s provided to list all charter schools chartered by the District and displays information
for each charter school on whether or not the charter school 1s included 1n the District audit

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

This schedule discloses the District’s financial trends by displaying past years’ data along with current
year budget information These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Tule 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Admimistrative Regulations, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) requires a disclosure of
the financial activities of all federally funded programs This schedule was prepared to comply with
Uniform Guidance requirements.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconctle the fund balances of all funds reported
on the SACS report to the audited financial statements

RESULTS OF RECONCILIATIONS OF EXPENDITURES PER SCHEDULE OF GRANT
ACTIVITY WITH THE DISTRICT’S ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

There were no unreconciled differences between the District’s records and the Schedule of Federal Grant
Activity as shown on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Page 75




- AcENDA

Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Notes to State and Federal Award Compliance Section
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
District and 1s presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting The information 1n this schedule 1s
presented 1n accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Admuimstrative Regulations, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) Therefore, some amounts presented m this schedule may differ from amounts
presented 1n, or used 1n the preparation of, the basic financial statements

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contamed 1n the Uniform Guidance, wheremn
certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement Negative amounts shown
on the schedule represent adjustments or credits made n the normal course of business to amounts
reported as expenditures in prior years

Page 76




Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 77




OTHER INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR’S REPORTS

Page 78




Chavan and Associates, lIp

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
of the Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Cottonwood, California

We have audited, 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted n the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 1n Government Auditing
Standards 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaming fund information of
Cottonwood Union Elementary School District (the District) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements, and have 1ssued our report thereon dated January 20, 2022

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmnion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees m the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct musstatements on a timely basis A material weakness 1s a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 1s a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis A significant deficiency 1s a defictency, or
a combination of deficiencies, 1n internal control that 1s less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described 1 the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to 1dentify all deficiencies 1n
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies Given these Iimitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been 1dentified

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel 408-217-8749 « E-Fax 408-872-4169
Page 79 info@cnallp com « www cnallp com




#

Chavan and Associates, lip

Certified Public Accountants

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts However, providing an
optnion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion The results of our tests disclosed no 1nstances of
noncomphance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report 1s solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opmion on the effectiveness of
the District’s imnternal control or on comphiance This report 1s an mtegral part of an audit
performed 1 accordance with Government Auditing Standards 1n considering the District’s
internal control and compliance Accordingly, this communication 1s not suitable for any other
purpose

C 4 A UP

January 20, 2022
Morgan Hill, Califormia

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel 408-217-8749 - E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 80 info@cnallp com « www cnallp com




N
&

Chavan and Associates, lip

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees
of the Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Cottonwood, Califorma

Report on Comphance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Cottonwood Union Elementary School District (the District)'s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and matenial effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2021 The District’s major federal programs are 1dentified mn the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs

Management’s Responsibility

Management 1s responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of 1ts federal awards applicable to 1ts federal programs

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above We
conducted our audit of compliance n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Admiristrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtamn
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a mayor federal program occurred
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 1n the
circumstances

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s
comphiance

Opmion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District complied, 1in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and matenal effect on each of its major
federal programs-for the year ended June 30, 2021

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 85037
Tel 408-217-8749 « E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 81 info@cnallp com « www cnallp com




-

Chavan and Associates, lIp

Certifted Public Accountants

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District 1s responsible for establishing and matntaiming effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above In planning and
performing our audit of comphance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and matenal effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 1n the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on 1nternal control over compliance 1n accordance with Umform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an optnion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, n the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis A material weakness in internal control over
compliance 1s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, 1n internal control over compliance, such
that there 1s a reasonable possibility that material noncomphiance with a type of complance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis
A significant deficiency in internal control over comphance 1s a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, 1n internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that 1s less severe than a material weakness in internal control over complhance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance

Our consideration of internal control over comphance was for the limited purpose described 1n the
first paragraph for this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 1n nternal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies We did not 1dentify
any deficiencies 1n internal control over comphance that we consider to be material weaknesses
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 1dentified

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance 1s solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over comphiance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance Accordingly, this report 1s not suitable for any other purpose

CL4A UP

January 20, 2022
Morgan Hill, California

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel 408-217-8749 « E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 82 info@cnallp com - www cnallp com




Chavan and Associates, lIp

Certifled Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON STATE PROGRAMS

The Honorable Board of Trustees
Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Cottonwood, Califorma

Compliance

We have audited the Cottonwood Union Elementary School District's (the District) compliance with the
types of comphance requirements described in the 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel,
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s state programs 1dentified below for the
year ended June 30, 2021

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to 1ts state programs

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified i the
State’s audit gwide, 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel We conducted our audit of
comphance 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial audits contamned in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the 2020-2!/ Gude for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel
Those standards, and state audit, guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above, that could
have a matenal effect on compliance with the state laws and regulations described n the schedule below,
occurred An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the District’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary n the
crrcumstances We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opmion Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with those requirements

In connection with the compliance audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records
to determme the District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following
items

Procedures
Description Performed
Local Education Agencies Other than Charter Schools
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study N/A
Continuation Education N/A

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel 408-217-8749 « E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 83 info@cnallp com « www cnallp com




Chavan and Associates, lip

Certified Public Accountants

Procedures
Description Performed
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive N/A
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools N/A
Middle or Early College High Schools N/A
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort N/A
Apprenticeship Related and Supplemental Instruction N/A
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes
District of Choice N/A
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
After and Before School Education and Safety Program
General Requirements N/A
After School N/A
Before School N/A
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan N/A
Independent Study-Course Based N/A
Charter Schools
Attendance N/A
Mode of Instruction N/A
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study for Charter Schools N/A
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction N/A
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based N/A
Charter School Facility Grant Program N/A
Opinion

In our opinion, the District complied, 1n all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on State Programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021

C&A LUP

January 20, 2022
Morgan Hull, Califormia

15105 Concord Circle, Ste 130, Morgan Hill, CA 95037
Tel 408-217-8749 - E-Fax 408-872-4159
Page 84 info@cnallp com « www cnallp com



Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 85




FINDINGS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

Page 86




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Page 87

Type of audrtor's report 1ssued Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses? Yes x__No
Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? Yes x _No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs
Material weaknesses? Yes x_No
Significant deficiencies 1dentified not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes x__None Reported
Type of audttor's report 1ssued on compliance over major programs Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200 516(a) Yes x No
Identification of Major Programs
CFDA Numb Name of Federal Program
21019 Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) Learning Loss Mitigation
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs $ 750,000
Audttee qualified as low risk auditee? X Yes No
State Awards
Internal control over state programs
Matenal weaknesses? Yes x _No
Significant deficiencies 1dentified not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes _ x_None Reported
Type of audrtor's report 1ssued on comphance over state programs Unmodified




Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

Page 88



Cottonwood Union Elementary School District
Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Recommendations
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None
Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

Page 89




- ncewoa

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0420 42(a)

CHARTER SCHOOL RENEWAL

Note When the term of a charter granted by the Goverming Board pursuant to Education Code 47605 1s due
to expure, the charter school must submut a petition for renewal to the Board 1n accordance with Education
Code 47607

For a charter that was granted by the State Board of Education (SBE) on appeal after being denied by the
district pursuant to Education Code 47605, the renewal petition must first be submitted to the chartering
authority designated by SBE the-distriet-board-that-dented-the-charter—pursuantto in accordance with
Education Code 47605 For charters granted by SBE on appeal pursuant to Education Code 47605, as
that section read on January 1, 2019, the charter school may continue operating until it is up for
renewal, at which point 1t must submit a renewal petition to the board in the geographic boundaries
where the charter school is located, pursuant to Education Code 47605.9.

A petition for the renewal of a charter that was origmally granted by the County Board of Education on
appeal after being denied by the district must be submutted directly to the County Board as the chartering
authority pursuant to 5 CCR 11966 5

Pursuant to Education Code 47607.4, as added by AB 130 (Ch. 44, Statutes of 2021), notwithstanding
the renewal process established in Education Code 47605.9, 47607, 47607.2, or any other law, all
charter schools whose term expires on or between January 1, 2022 and June 30, 2025 shall have their
term extended by two years.

The Governing Board believes that the ongoing operation of a charter school should be
dependent on the school's effectiveness 1 achieving 1ts mission and goals for student
learning and other student outcomes Whenever a charter school submits a petition for
renewal of its charter, the Board shall review the petition thoroughly and 1n a timely manner,
consistent with the timelines set out in the Education Code The Board shall consider
renewal petitions only of charters originally authorized by the Board 1tself or by the State
Board of Education (SBE) on appeal after initial denial by the Board

(cf 0420 4 - Charter School Authorization)
(cf 0420 41 - Charter School Oversight)
(cf 0420 43 - Charter School Revocation)
(cf 0500 - Accountabulity)

The Board shall deny the renewal petition of any charter school operated as or by a for-profit
corporation, a for-profit educational management orgamization, or a for-profit charter
management organization (Education Code 47604)

When a charter school, concurrently with 1ts renewal petition, proposes to expand operations
to one or more additional sites or grade levels, the charter school shall request a material
revision to its charter The material revision may be made only with the approval of the
Board and in accordance with the standards and criteria 1n Education Code 47605 for
material revisions (Education Code 47607)




BP 0420 42(b)

CHARTER SCHOOL RENEWAL (continued)

Note The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district timelines for the submussion of
charter renewal petitions  Education Code 47605 requires that the Board grant or deny the renewal petition
within 90 days of recetving the petition, see section entitled "Timelines for Board Action" below However,
1t 15 recommended that charter schools submut their petition sufficiently early (e g , as much as nine months
before the term of the charter 1s due to expire) so that, in the event that the Board dentes the renewal, the
charter school may be able to appeal to the County Board and then to SBE and, 1f the school closes, to allow
students of the charter school to transfer to another school

The Board recommends that a charter school submut its petition for renewal to the Board
sufficiently early before the expiration of the term of the charter to allow the Board's
deliberations and decision on the renewal petition to be completed with minimal disruption to
the charter school's educational program 1n the renewal year.

The petition for renewal shall include a reasonably comprehensive description of how the
charter school has met all new charter school requirements enacted nto law after the charter
was originally granted or last renewed (Education Code 47607; S CCR 11966 4)

Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal

Note Education Code 47607 and 47607 2 authorize different lengths of renewals for high-performing,
mrddle-performing, and low-performing charter schools

Pursuant to Education Code 47607, charter renewals are subject to the same standards and criteria as mitial
charter authorizations as specified in Education Code 47605, except that the Board may not deny the
renewal of an existing charter school based on a finding that (1) the district has a negative or qualhified
intenm certification, or is under state receivership